A4

Public Document Pack

Cambridge City Council

==

HOUSING SCRUTINY COMMITTEE

To:

Scrutiny Committee Members: Councillors Todd-Jones (Chair), Avery,
Baigent, Bird, Blackhurst, Holland and Robertson

Alternates: Councillors Gawthrope, Hipkin and Pitt

Tenants and Leaseholders: Diane Best (Leaseholder Representative),
Kay Harris (Tenant Representative), John Marais (Tenant Representative),
Diana Minns (Vice Chair /Tenant Representative), Caroline Oriokot (Tenant
Representative) and Terry Sweeney (Tenant Representative).

Executive Councillor for Housing: Councillor Price

Despatched: Wednesday, 17 December 2015

Date: Wednesday, 14 January 2015

Time: 5.30 pm

Venue: Committee Room 1 & 2 - Guildhall

Contact: Claire Tunnicliffe Direct Dial: 01223 457012

AGENDA

1 Apologies

2 Appointment of Councillor Vice Chair

3 Declarations of Interest
Members are asked to declare at this stage any interests that they may
have in an item shown on this agenda. If any member of the Committee is
unsure whether or not they should declare an interest on a particular
matter, they should seek advice from the Head of Legal Services before
the meeting.

4 Minutes

To approve the minutes of the previous meeting.
(Pages 9 - 26)



5 Public Questions
(See information below).

Items for Decision by the Executive Councillor for Housing, Without Debate

These Items will already have received approval in principle from the Executive
Councillor. The Executive Councillor will be asked to approve the recommendations
as set out in the officer’s report.

There will be no debate on these items, but members of the Scrutiny Committee and
members of the public may ask questions or comment on the items if they comply
with the Council’s rules on Public Speaking set out below.

Items for Debate by the Committee and then Decision by the Executive
Councillor for Housing

These items will require the Executive Councillor to make a decision after hearing
the views of the Scrutiny Committee.

There will be a full debate on these items, and members of the public may ask
questions or comment on the items if they comply with the Council’s rules on Public
Speaking set out below.

Part 1: To be chaired by Vice Chair (Tenant/Leaseholder Representative)

Items for Decision by the Executive Councillor for Housing, Without Debate

6 Standard Item: Write Off of Former & Current Tenant Arrears
(Pages 27 - 30)

Items for Debate by the Committee and then Decision by the Executive
Councillor for Housing

7 Housing Revenue Account Rent Setting Policy
(Pages 31 - 42)

8 2015/16 Housing Revenue Account Budget Setting Report
(Pages 43 - 162)




Part 2: To be taken by the Chair of the Committee

Items for Debate by the Committee and then Decision by the Executive
Councillor for Housing

9

10

11

12

13

Housing Portfolio Revenue and Capital Budgets 2015/16 (Estimate)
and 2016/17, 2017/18, 2018/19 and 2019/20 (Forecast)
(Pages 163 - 182)

Council Housing at Homerton College
(Pages 183 - 198)

Homelessness Prevention Grants
(Pages 199 - 212)

Local Government Ombudsman Maladministration Finding:
Homelessness
(Pages 213 - 222)

Fundamental Review of the Housing Revenue Account
(Pages 223 - 232)

Items for Decision by the Executive Councillor for Housing, Without Debate

14

15

15a

15b

15¢

Delegation of Powers to make Interim Management Orders
Report attached separately

Record of Urgent Decision

To note decisions taken by the Executive Councillor for Housing since the
last meeting of the Housing Scrutiny Committee

New Build Budgets
(Pages 233 - 240)

Refurbishment of the Cambridge Access Surgery
(Pages 241 - 250)

Recommendation to Buy Back a Dwelling
(Pages 251 - 264)




Location

Public
Participation

Information for the Public

The meeting is in the Guildhall on the Market Square
(CB2 3QJ).

Between 9 a.m. and 5 p.m. the building is accessible
via Peas Hill, Guildhall Street and the Market Square
entrances.

After 5 p.m. access is via the Peas Hill entrance.

All the meeting rooms (Committee Room 1,
Committee 2 and the Council Chamber) are on the
first floor, and are accessible via lifts or stairs.

Some meetings may have parts that will be closed to
the public, but the reasons for excluding the press
and public will be given.

Most meetings have an opportunity for members of
the public to ask questions or make statements.

To ask a question or make a statement please notify
the Committee Manager (details listed on the front of
the agenda) prior to the deadline.

 For questions and/or statements regarding
items on the published agenda, the deadline is
the start of the meeting.

 For questions and/or statements regarding
items NOT on the published agenda, the
deadline is 10 a.m. the day before the meeting.

Speaking on Planning Applications or Licensing
Hearings is subject to other rules. Guidance for
speaking on these issues can be obtained from
Democratic  Services on 01223 457013 or
democratic.services@cambridge.gov.uk.

Further information about speaking at a City Council
meeting can be found at:



Filming,
recording
and
photography

Fire Alarm

Facilities for
disabled
people

Queries on
reports

General
Information

https://www.cambridge.qov.uk/speaking-at-
committee-meetings

Cambridge City Council would value your assistance
in improving the public speaking process of
committee meetings. If you any have any feedback
please contact Democratic Services on 01223 457013
or democratic.services@cambridge.gov.uk.

The Council is committed to being open and
transparent in the way it conducts its decision making.
The public may record (e.g. film, audio, tweet, blog)
meetings which are open to the public.

Anyone who does not want to be recorded should let
the Chair of the meeting know. Those recording
meetings are strongly urged to respect the wish of
any member of the public not to be recorded.

In the event of the fire alarm sounding please follow
the instructions of Cambridge City Council staff.

Level access to the Guildhall is via Peas Hill.

A loop system is available in Committee Room 1,
Committee Room 2 and the Council Chamber.

Accessible toilets are available on the ground and first
floor.

Meeting papers are available in large print and other
formats on request prior to the meeting.

For further assistance please contact Democratic
Services on 01223 457013 or
democratic.services@cambridge.gov.uk.

If you have a question or query regarding a committee
report please contact the officer listed at the end of
relevant report or Democratic Services on 01223
457013 or democratic.services@cambridge.gov.uk.

Information regarding committees, councilors and the
democratic process is available at
http://democracy.cambridge.gov.uk.




Mod.Gov Modern.gov offer an app that can be used to ensure
App you always have the latest meeting papers for the
committees you are interested in.

http://www.moderngov.co.uk/our-solutions/tablet-app-
paperless-meetings

vi



Housing Scrutiny Committee Tuesday, 30 September 2014

HOUSING SCRUTINY COMMITTEE 30 September 2014
5.30 -7.45 pm

Present: Councillors Todd-Jones (Chair), Avery, Baigent, Blackhurst, Holland
and Robertson

Executive Councillor for Housing: Councillor Price

Tenant/Leaseholder Representatives: Diane Best, Kay Harris, John
Marais, Diana Minns (Vice Chair: Tenant / Leaseholder Representative),
Caroline Oriokot and Terry Sweeney

Officers:

Director of Customer & Community Services: Liz Bisset
Head of City Homes: Robert Hollingsworth

Head of Strategic Housing: Alan Carter

Head of Legal Services: Simon Pugh

Housing Strategy Manager: Helen Reed

Area Housing Manager: Sandra Farmer

Business Manager / Principal Accountant: Julia Hovells
Housing Advice Service Manager: David Greening
Operations Manager: Lui Graziano

Involvement Facilitator: James Bull

Committee Manager: Claire Tunnicliffe

| FOR THE INFORMATION OF THE COUNCIL |

The following items were Chaired by Councillor Todd-Jones

14/20/HSC Apologies

Apologies were received from Councillor Bird. Councillor Gawthrope attended
as the alternate.

The Chair informed the Committee that former Councillor Birtles had resigned
from the Council with immediate effect and would not be present.

Page 7



Housing Scrutiny Committee Tuesday, 30 September 2014

14/21/HSC Declarations of Interest

Name Item Interest
Personal: Alternate
Member of the Planning
Councillor Avery 14/30/HSC Committee
Personal: Alternate
Member of the Planning
Councillor Holland 14/30/HSC Committee
Councillor Personal: Member of the
Gawthrope 14/30/HSC Planning Committee
Personal: Member of
Kay Harris ROAM and resident
14/26/HSC inspector.

14/22/HSC Minutes

Diane Best who attended the Housing Scrutiny Committee meeting on 1 July
2014 requested that her declaration of interest be added under item 14/9/HSC.

Kay Harris who attended the Housing Scrutiny Committee meeting on 1 July
2014 requested that her second declaration of interest be added under item
14/12/HSC.

Name Item Interest
Kay Harris 14/9/HSC.: Personal: Member of ROAM and
(Tenant Leasehold resident inspector.
Representative) Services
Update.
Kay Harris 14/12/HSC: Personal: Member of ROAM and
(Tenant Affordable resident inspector
Representative) Housing
Programme
Diane Best | 14/9/HSC: Personal: Leaseholder
(Leaseholder Leasehold Representative
Representative) Services
Update.

Page 8



Housing Scrutiny Committee Tuesday, 30 September 2014

Minutes of 1 July 2014 were then approved and signed as correct record.

14/23/HSC Public Questions

There were no public questions.

The following items were Chaired by Diana Minns

14/24/HSC Write-Off of Former and Current Tenant Arrears

Matter for Decision
Write off of six former tenant arrears.

Decision of Executive Councillor for Housing

Approved the six cases of former tenant arrears totalling £15,216.21 detailed
in the attached appendix be written off, due to recovery activity being
exhausted or being unable to recover the debit.

Reason for the Decision
As set out in the Officer’s report.

Any Alternative Options Considered and Rejected
Not applicable.

Scrutiny Considerations
This item was not requested for pre-scrutiny and the Committee made no
comments in response to the report.

The Committee:

The Executive Councillor approved the recommendation.

Conflicts of Interest Declared by the Executive Councillor (and any
Dispensations Granted)

No conflicts of interest were declared by the Executive Councillor.

14/25/HSC Housing Revenue Account (HRA) Mid-Year Financial Review

Page 9



Housing Scrutiny Committee Tuesday, 30 September 2014

Matter for Decision

The Housing Revenue Account Budget Setting Report, considered and
approved in January / February of each year is the long-term strategic
planning document for housing landlord services provided by Cambridge City
Council.

The Housing Revenue Account (HRA) Mid-Year Financial Review provides an
opportunity to review the assumptions incorporated as part of the longer-term
financial planning process, recommending any changes in response to new
legislative requirements, variations in external economic factors and
amendments to service delivery methods, allowing incorporation into budgets
and financial forecasts at the earliest opportunity.

Decision of Executive Councillor for Housing under Part 1 of the Housing
Scrutiny Agenda:

i.  Approved the Housing Revenue Account Mid-Year Financial Review
attached, to include all proposals for changes in:

e Financial assumptions as detailed in Appendix C of the
document.

e Revenue budgets as introduced in Section 4, detailed in
Appendix D, and summarised in the HRA Summary
Forecast at Appendix G of the document.

Decision of Executive Councillor for Housing under Part 2 of the Housing
Scrutiny Agenda:

Recommend to Council:

e Proposals for changes in existing housing capital budgets,
as introduced in Sections 6 and 7 and detailed in Appendix
E of the document, with the resulting position summarised in
Appendix H, for decision at Council on 6th November 2014.

e Inclusion of a new scheme in the Housing Capital
Investment Plan, relating to the replacement of air cooling
systems at the area housing offices, at a cost of £11,000.

Reason for the Decision
As set out in the Officer’s report.

Paget10



Housing Scrutiny Committee Tuesday, 30 September 2014

Any Alternative Options Considered and Rejected
Not applicable.

Scrutiny Considerations
The Committee received a report from the Business Manager/Principal
Accountant

The Committee made the following comments in response to the report:

iv.

V.

Vi.

Thanked the Business Manager / Principal Account for such a clear and
comprehensive report.

Noted a saving of £20,000 from the Resident Involvement Budget and
queried how the saving would be made.

Expressed concern that any future reductions to the Resident
Involvement Budget would equate to a reduction to services.

Reiterated the importance retaining the Resident Involvement Budget for
future developments to ensure that support could be provided.
Requested further information on 101a Gywdir Street and asked if there
would be any implications to residents in neighbouring properties.

Noted that when the shift had been made to self-financing, external
advice had been sought and asked had that external advice been
updated and how often.

In response to Committees comments, Officers and the Director of
Community and Customer Services stated the following:

With regards to the Resident Involvement Budget, savings would be from
staffing across the cost centre. The majority of savings had been taken
from the balance in reduction of full time hours for one staff member to
22.5 hours.

Concerning the Resident Involvement Budget, it was important to look at
output and outcomes of what was hoped to be achieved. The Council
would be looking at the results of the residents’ survey which would give
indicators of what should be explored in the longer term.

Invited all Committee Members to meet with Officers of the Resident
Involvement Team who would advise in detail the work programme and
the long term goals.

At the time of writing the report the business case for 101a Gywdir Street
was still being evaluated with a number of options assed. It had been
confirmed that the existing bedsit would be refurbished within its existing
footprint. The occupier had been informed and there would no impact on
the residents on the same site.

Page 11



Housing Scrutiny Committee Tuesday, 30 September 2014

v. External Advice was sought on a regular basis from organisations such
as SECTOR and The Chartered Institute of Housing.

vi. The Housing Revenue Account (HRA) was due to be reviewed and it
was highly probable that further advice would be sought after the review.

The Committee:

Resolved (11 Votes to 0, with 2 abstentions) to approve the
recommendations under Part 1 of the Housing Scrutiny Agenda:

The Executive Councillor approved the recommendations.

Conflicts of Interest Declared by the Executive Councillor (and any
Dispensations Granted)

No conflicts of interest were declared by the Executive Councillor.

The following vote was Chaired by Councillor Todd Jones.

Resolved (unanimously) to approve the recommendations under Part 2 of
the Housing Scrutiny Agenda:

Committee Manager’s Note: Tenant and Leaseholders Representatives did not
vote on this recommendation.

The Executive Councillor approved the recommendations.

Conflicts of Interest Declared by the Executive Councillor (and any
Dispensations Granted)

No conflicts of interest were declared by the Executive Councillor.

The following items were Chaired by Diana Minns

14/26/HSC Repairs Improvement Plan - Performance Update

Matter for Decision

The decision to implement a 2 year improvement plan for the responsive
repairs and voids service was approved at the meeting of Housing
Management Board on 28 Sept 2010. The Executive Councillor subsequently
agreed to extend the period by a further 1 year to enable further investigation
into the procurement of alternative IT solutions and to implement the most

Pagesl12



Housing Scrutiny Committee Tuesday, 30 September 2014

appropriate option. A report detailing the success of the improvement plan was
discussed at the meeting of Housing Management Board in October 2013, at
which the decision was made to retain the delivery of the service by the in-
house team, providing the high service standards achieved during the period
of the improvement plan were maintained.

A further report was requested in October 2013 to demonstrate the impact and
improvements on service delivery once mobile working has been established
for a period of months. The tables included below make a comparison between
service delivery before and after implementation of mobile working and the
new integrated Orchard software.

Decision of Executive Councillor for Housing

i. Agreed that a review report be presented to the June cycle each year
which monitors annual performance and provides certainty that the
decision to retain the service in house is still valid.

Any Alternative Options Considered and Rejected
Not applicable.

Scrutiny Considerations
The Committee received a report from the Operations Manager.

The Committee made the following comments in response to the report:

i.  Commented that it was good to see improvements were being made and
the service was going well.

ii. Asked if the data for residents satisfaction had been circulated and how
this compared with the recent star survey

iii. Queried if the introduction of South View Solutions (SVS) mobile working
affected the number of post or pre inspections which were carried out.

iv. Requested an explanation as to why the ‘appointments made’ had
significantly increased.

v. Questioned what the target figure was referenced in the report.

In response to Committees comments Officers and the Director of Community
and Customer Services stated the following:

i. Data on satisfaction for repairs has been obtained but it did not
differentiate between planned and responsive repairs.

Page 13



Housing Scrutiny Committee Tuesday, 30 September 2014

ii. Further work was required to determine if the data was linked to the
planned maintenance programme or the responsive repairs programme.
Once the work had been completed the results would be shared.

iii.  Mobile working did not directly affect the post or pre inspections.

iv. Before the consolidation of mobile working there had been several
categories which had now merged into the ‘Appointments Made’. All
jobs were now appointed.

v. The target was 98%.

The Committee:

Resolved (unanimously) to approve the recommendation.
The Executive Councillor approved the recommendation.

Conflicts of Interest Declared by the Executive Councillor (and any
Dispensations Granted)

No conflicts of interest were declared by the Executive Councillor.

14/27/HSC Tenant Complaints Panel

Matters for Decision.

The report proposed a model for a tenant complaints panel inline with the
changes introduced by the Localism Act in 2013. If a tenant (or leaseholder)
remained unsatisfied with the outcome of a complaint at the conclusion of the
landlord’s complaints process, they may submit their complaint to a Councillor,
an MP, or a Tenant Panel which represents a new option for complaints.

Decision of Executive Councillor for Housing

i. Approved the proposed model for a new Tenant and Leaseholder
Complaints Panel.

Reason for the Decision
As set out in the Officer’s report.

Any Alternative Options Considered and Rejected
Not applicable.

Scrutiny Considerations
The Committee received a report from the Residents Involvement Facilitator.

Pagesl4d



Housing Scrutiny Committee Tuesday, 30 September 2014

The Committee made the following comments in response to the report:

iii.
iv.

V.

Vi.

Questioned if there would be enough work for the Tenant and
Leaseholder Panel.

Asked if consideration had been given for a joint panel with other Local
Authorities.

Suggested that the Officer explore the possibility of partnership working.
Queried if an environmental complaint would go the Tenant and
Leaseholder Complaints Panel.

Enquired to the number of complaints that went to the Housing
Ombudsman in the last twelve months.

Enquired how Tenant / Leaseholder Representatives would be recruited
to the post.

In response to Committees comments Officers and the Director of Community
and Customer Services stated the following:

iv.

Vi.

Vii.

The long term goal for the Panel would be to give advice and become
the first level of mediation, in effect a Tenant Advice Bureau.

Agreed to investigate the possibility of partnership working.

An environmental complaint could go to the Panel, although there were
exceptions.

The Housing Ombudsman would deal with complaints from the tenants
and the leaseholder only. It was about getting the services provided by
the landlord right and not social behaviour.

As the Housing Ombudsman had only recently taken on the complaints
regarding Council stock there were no comparable figures.

Reports had been referred to the General Ombudsman but not
maladministration

A number of tenant and leaseholder had expressed an interest in the
Panel through the recently completed star survey. Those residents would
be contacted to discuss the matter further.

The Committee:

Resolved (unanimously) to endorse the recommendation.

The Executive Councillor approved the recommendation.

Conflicts of Interest Declared by the Executive Councillor (and any
Dispensations Granted)

Page 15



Housing Scrutiny Committee Tuesday, 30 September 2014

No conflicts of interest were declared by the Executive Councillor.

The following items were Chaired by Councillor Todd-Jones

14/28/HSC Findings by the Local Government Ombudsman of
Maladministration in Respect of the Council’s Homelessness Function

Matters for Decision.

The report referred to The Local Government Ombudsman findings of
maladministration in respect of three complaints. The complaints related to the
Council’s homelessness functions.

In these circumstances, the Head of Legal Services, as the Council’s
Monitoring Officer, has an obligation to report the findings to the Executive.
The Executive is obliged to set out what action had already been taken in
respect of the findings, what action it intends to take and the reasons for taking
the action.

Decision of Executive Councillor for Housing
The Executive Councillor for Housing resolved to

i. Endorsed the actions taken by officers in response to the findings of the
Local Government Ombudsman.

Reason for the Decision
As set out in the Officer’s report.

Any Alternative Options Considered and Rejected
Not applicable.

Scrutiny Considerations
The Committee received a report from the Head of Legal Services, the
Council’'s Monitoring Officer.

The Committee made the following comments in response to the report:
i. Questioned at which point had the former Executive Councillor been
informed of the issues.

ii. Queried how many people were still being housed miles outside of
Cambridge.

Paged6



Housing Scrutiny Committee Tuesday, 30 September 2014

Asked if people were still being housed in bed and breakfast
accommodation in Peterborough.

Stated that this had been a wakeup call for the Council and wanted
reassurance this would not reoccur again.

Enquired if people were placed in bed and breakfast because capacity
had been exceeded or the particular configurations of the households did
not match what was available.

In response to Committees comments Officers, the Director of Community and
Customer Services stated the following:

Vi.

Vii.

viii.

iX.

At the time the letter from the Ombudsman did not indicate that it was a
Maladministration case in the way that would be expected.
The matter had been discussed with the former Executive Councillor, but
could not give an exact time frame when this was.
A report had also been presented to the Community Services Scrutiny
Committee on the homeless service. As there were indication that the
certain areas of the service needed to be addressed. Among the areas
that were addressed were:

¢ Increasing the number of temporary housing in the City.

e Tighter monitoring of caseloads.

¢ Closer monitoring the length of time it was taking to resolve cases.
A number of actions taken at time had been completed.
Bed and breakfast accommodation in Peterborough had not been used
for at least eight months.
Between 1 April 2013 and 25 October 21013, the Council had housed
five families in bed and breakfast for no more than six weeks. Since then
no families had been housed in Bed and Breakfast for more than three
weeks.
Since November 2013 there have been no more than three households
in Bed and Breakfast accommodation at any one time.
The Configuration of the household could be an issue but occasionally
other issues were identified.
The Council were now in a much better position than at the time.

The Committee:

Resolved unanimously to endorse the recommendation.

The Executive Councillor approved the recommendation.

Page 17



Housing Scrutiny Committee Tuesday, 30 September 2014

Conflicts of Interest Declared by the Executive Councillor (and any
Dispensations Granted)

No conflicts of interest were declared by the Executive Councillor.

14/29/HSC Intermediate Market Housing
Matter for Decision.

The report referred to the high demand for housing in Cambridge and the
surrounding area, and house prices and private rent levels are high. As a
result, there is a significant proportion of local people who do not receive
priority for social housing for rent, but are also unable to afford to access good
quality market housing. As house prices and rents continue to rise faster than
incomes the issue is becoming more and more acute.

The report provided data and information on demand for, and costs and
affordability of, market and intermediate market housing in Cambridge;
Outlined the main models of intermediate housing available, including shared
ownership, equity loans, intermediate rent and rent to buy, and some
variations on those models; Summarised the Council’s current strategic
approach to intermediate housing, and made recommendations around
priorities moving forward.

Decision of Executive Councillor for Housing

i. Endorsed the need to address a range of intermediate housing needs
amongst people who cannot afford to buy or rent good quality housing on
the open market but who also do not have priority for social housing for
rent.

ii. Considered options for a social lettings agency to help meet the needs of
the intermediate housing market in Cambridge, including consideration of
future development of the sub-regional lettings agency Town Hall
Lettings.

iii.  Prioritised exploring how different models of intermediate market housing
for rent might be delivered through the Council’s Affordable Housing
Development programme.

PageZ8



Housing Scrutiny Committee Tuesday, 30 September 2014

iv.

V.

Provision of intermediate market housing is prioritised in the future is
considered as part of the review of the Council’s Housing Strategy due to
take place during 2015.

Reason for the Decision

As set out in the Officer’s report.

Any Alternative Options Considered and Rejected

Not applicable.

Scrutiny Considerations
The Committee received a report from the Housing Strategy Manager.

The Committee made the following comments in response to the report:

Vi.

Vii.
Viii.

Xi.

Xil.
Xiii.

Indicated disappointment that the Committee were looking at various
intermediate shared ownership schemes and not Council Housing.
Recognised shared ownerships schemes were financially viable but
would like it to be made clear that the Committee should be looking to
see an increase in Council Housing.

Stated that there was a lack of Council Housing in Cambridge.
Recognised that the Council was doing its best under the restrictions that
were placed upon it.

Specified that the many developments for example in Trumpington did
deliver affordable housing for some people.

Acknowledged that shared ownership properties brought a balance to
the City.

Welcomed the report as it offered a variety to meet a range of needs.
Stated that shared ownership offered an opportunity for those who
couldn’t afford to buy at market prices.

Asked which social economic groups the report was referring to.

Asked what the percentage of older people was who wanted to downsize
had been referenced in the report.

Noted that Cambridge University on the North/ West development were
using a simple formula to target their market audience. Could the profiles
of the market audience be identified as to who the Council were aiming
for?

Asked what the income to qualify for intermediate housing was.
Questioned if there would be / was a difference between social housing
and intermediate housing.

Page 19



Housing Scrutiny Committee Tuesday, 30 September 2014

Xiv.

XV.

XVi.

Asked what the percentage was for those people who build up their
share.

Where there any housing associations who could assist the Council in
the intermediate market as there were examples of Housing Associations
being innovative in field.

Enquired if there was a time scale.

In response to Committees comments Officers, the Executive Councillor for
Housing, the Director of Community and Customer Services stated the
following:

Vi.

Vii.

viii.

Xi.
Xil.

Xiii.

Applicants for intermediate housing must be earning less than £60,000
per year, an amount that had been set by the Government.

The target market for Intermediate housing were usually people up to 35
years of age, who were earning an income but could not afford housing
on the open market.

There was limited information nationally on the figures for the market for
older people who wanted to downsize.

The profile for the renting sector was changing as people are renting for
longer which had impacted on the market figures.

In the last ten years the standard of social housing had been built to the
same level, if not better than other forms of marketing housing, which it
was envisaged would not change.

Investigation would be ongoing to determine the areas of need as there
were different social and economic groups who were not accessing the
housing and a better understanding was required.

The policy will be developed further with the intermediate market as the
marker.

Officers working toward developing a better understanding of the market.
Ideally the Council would be building a high percentage of Council
Houses but unfortunately were not in a position to do so.

People who are on an average income who are being forced out of
buying / renting in the City and are not eligible for Council Housing. The
report offers an alternative for this situation.

A review carried out in 2013 on shared ownership provided the figures
for people who had built up their share.

She believes that the Council are as enterprising as some Housing
Associations, if not more so.

A new housing strategy would be brought back to a future Committee
meeting.

Page4{0



Housing Scrutiny Committee Tuesday, 30 September 2014

The Committee:

Resolved unanimously to endorse the recommendations.
The Executive Councillor approved the recommendations

Conflicts of Interest Declared by the Executive Councillor (and any
Dispensations Granted)

No conflicts of interest were declared by the Executive Councillor.
14/30/HSC Council Housing at Homerton College Redevelopment

Matter for Decision The report referred to the Homerton College scheme
which is the first to be brought forward in the next phase of the Council’s own
Social Housing Programme and is notable to be the first opportunity to work on
a site not owned by the Council.

The report described the funding background to the next phase of the Social
Housing Programme and explains that the factor that is driving our decision
making on which schemes to prioritise is the need to spend Right to Buy
receipts within a given time limit.

Decision of Executive Councillor for Housing
The Executive Councillor for Housing resolved to:

i. Approved in principle for the Council to deliver social housing on the
Homerton College scheme - noting that a final scheme will be brought
back to Committee for scrutiny and approval.

ii. Reason for the Decision
As set out in the Officer’s report.
Any Alternative Options Considered and Rejected

Not applicable.

Scrutiny Considerations
The Committee received a report from the Head of Strategic Housing.

Page 21



Housing Scrutiny Committee Tuesday, 30 September 2014

The Committee made the following comments in response to the report:

Vi.

Vii.

Congratulated the Head of Strategic Housing and his team.

Queried if and how many properties would be tailored for disabled users,
such as wheel chair access.

Stated it would be helpful for the Government to remove the constraints,
particularly on the amount that the Council could borrow in order to move
forward.

Acknowledged that it was a good news story for the Council but
expressed disappointment that the properties did not have to be built to
code level five.

Asked if it was too late to negotiate with the developer to build to code
level five.

Noted the news release as being slightly misleading as the Housing
Scrutiny Committee had not formally agreed the report and planning
permission had not yet been granted by the Planning Committee.

Asked if the percentage of affordable housing would change.

In response to Committees comments Officers, the Director of Community and
Customer Services stated the following:

I.  Noted the comments regarding the press release.

ii. As the scheme is well on the way to a detailed planning application
the Council has very limited influence on the detail.

iii. Very pleased that the Council that are part of the project.

iv.  With future projects it is hoped that the Council work in partnership
from the start and would be able to influence such factors as
building to code level five.

v. The 40% affordable housing should not change as it would be a
breach of planning policy.

The Committee:

Resolved (unanimously) to endorse the recommendation.

The Executive Councillor approved the recommendation.

Conflicts of Interest Declared by the Executive Councillor (and any
Dispensations Granted)

No conflicts of interest were declared by the Executive Councillor.

Pagea22



Housing Scrutiny Committee Tuesday, 30 September 2014

14/31/HSC Record of Urgent Decision

12a Acquisition of Market Housing on 146 Programme Development Sites

The Committee noted that the Executive Councillor for Housing had approved
the acquisition of 13 market housing on 146 Programme Development Sites,
Atkins Close, Colville Road and Wadloes Road

This decision was required as the Council’s Acquisition and Disposals policy
stipulates that such decisions will be made by urgent decision as this allows for
Officers to gather the required information and costs to then present a paper,
which will provide a decision before that information and those costs become
out dated. The housing market could change significantly in a month therefore
being able to agree a price at a certain point in time is paramount to agreeing
to purchase properties. Agreeing to the price for these properties was vital to
the agreement with Keepmoat and the ability to start the legal process to
purchase these properties

The Executive Councillor

i. Approved the purchase of 4 market dwellings on the Atkins Close
(garage re-development) site at an estimated cost of £1,106,400.

ii. Approved the purchase of 6 market dwellings on the Colville Road (re-
development) site at an estimated cost of £1,051,350.

iii. Approved the purchase of 3 market dwellings on the Wadloes Road
(vacant housing land) site at an estimated cost of £736,500.

iv. Gave delegated authority to the Director of Customer & Community
Services to enter into a build contract with Keepmoat for the delivery of
dwellings on the Wadloes Road site should this be deemed appropriate.

Conflicts of Interest Declared by the Executive Councillor (and any
Dispensations Granted)

No conflicts of interest were declared by the Executive Councillor.

The meeting ended at 7.45 pm

CHAIR

Page 23



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 24



Agenda Iltem 6

A Cambridge City Council Item
S =
To: Executive Councillor for Housing
Report by: Director of Customer & Community Services
Relevant scrutiny Housing Committee 14/01/2015
committee:
Wards affected: All Wards

WRITE-OFF OF CURRENT AND FORMER TENANT ARREARS

Not a Key Decision

The background information used in the preparation of this report is
exempted from publication by virtue of paragraph 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.

1. Executive Summary

This report sets out the detail of one current tenant arrear cases and five
former tenant arrears cases together with a summary of the action taken to
try to recover the debts.

2. Recommendations

The Executive Councillor is recommended:

2.1 To approve the one case of current tenant arrears totalling £2,850.29
as detailed in the attached appendix be written off.

2.2 To approve the five cases of former tenant arrears totalling
£18,569.18 as detailed in the attached appendix be written off.

3. Background

3.1 The current and former tenant arrears cases have been subject to the
standard rent arrears recovery process where applicable.

4. Implications
(a) Financial Implications

Provision for writing off of bad debts has been made in the Housing
Revenue Account.

(b) Staffing Implications (if not covered in Consultations Section)

Report Page No: 1 Page 25



()

(d)

(e)

(f)

(9)

There are no staffing implications associated with this report.

Equal Opportunities Implications

An Equalities Impact Assessment has not been undertaken in respect
of this report, as each case has been individually considered prior to
submission for write off.

Environmental Implications

There are no environmental implications associated with this report.

Procurement

There are no direct procurement implications associated with this
report.

Consultation and communication

This report considers an individual case for write off. A number of
attempts will have been made to contact the tenant concerned prior to
the preparation of this report.

Members and tenant and leaseholder representatives are reminded
that they are welcome to spend time with City Homes officers to gain
further insight into the arrears recovery and write off process.

Community Safety

There are no environmental implications associated with this report.

5. Background Papers

The background papers used in the preparation of this report are exempt
from publication as they contain information relating to the financial or
business affairs of any particular person.

6. Appendices

The following appendix is included as part of this report:

e Appendix 1: Individual arrears cases and action taken.

Report Page No: 2 Page 26



7. Inspection of Papers

If you have a query on the report please contact:

Author’'s Name: Cherie Carless
Author’'s Phone Number: 01223 - 457824
Author’s Email: cherie.carless@cambridge.gov.uk

Report Page No: 3 Page 27



Ly'6Ly'1Z3

[E301 [[B19A0

Ly6L¥'1e3

Sjueud] JauLo4

‘pauleq a)njels s jqap ay} se A1anodal a2Jojud Jabuol ou ued Ajuoyine ay) pue plo SJeak g JOA0 MOU S| SIUL ‘JUBUS) BY} WOJ) PaAIBJaI Juswabpajmousoe
ou INg ‘¢L0Z UDJeA Ul Jueus) ay} aded) 0} apew alam sjdwalpe |un jgap ay) Buipiebal Jueus) sy} Yim apew Sem JOBJUOD Jayuny ON "PaAIadal alom sjuswied
ou Ing Yoam Jad ¢£3 Aed 0] apew sem juswaalbe ue pue GOOzZ Ael\ Ul siealle Jueus) Jawuo) ay} Buipiebal Jueus) ay) YIm apew Sem JOeju0) ‘siealle Jual
10} 800Z Alenuer ul pajoine Sem Jueud) dyl ‘/00Z dUN[ JB)e JUNOJOe By} 0} apew aiam sjuswAed oN "a)ep jey) Jaye Ajdieys paniodoe uay) siealle ‘pasead
gH uaym 200z AIne Ul 000‘L3 1e aiam sieadly ‘pouad Aoueus)y ay) Jono Ajjenpelb paniode ¢ zzz'SF 10 siealle g00zZ/L0/0Z - £002/60/6Z wody Aoueus)
enbasqns ay) Bung ‘paAledal a1em sigap snolnaid jsuiebe sjuswAed ou Ing ‘paniode Judl 18U S EdaM BUO AJUO JO siealle £002/60/8Z - Z00Z/S0/L 1L pouad
ay} Buung "Aoueus) auua ay} jo pouad Jano Ajjenpelb paniode |4°ZG6‘ | JO Siealie aidym L00Z/80/S0 - 8661/80/4¢ porad ay) Joj sem Adueus) [eniul 8yl

palieg sjnjels

67'261°G3

ploysieed

yinos

‘palieq aynje)s Buleq
11 0} anp A1oA0084 92J0Us JoBUO| OU UBD AJlIoyIne By} ‘plo SIedA 9 JI9A0 MOU S| 1op 8y} SY ‘|NJSS800NSUN SB pauln}al Jaje| SeM SIY} JOABMOY 6002 YoJBeN Ul
urebe pue gooz AInr ul syusbe Buioes) 0y passed sem jgap Sy "Usy) S0UIS 1gap 8y} JO Juswabpa|Mouyoe 10 JOBIU0D JBYMNS OU Y)IM ‘800Z AJeniga ul paAladal
sem jJuswAed jse| ayl "800z UoJey Ul passassodal Ajjenjusns sem Auadoud ay) nun Aoueus) ayy jo pouad oy} JoA0 pajenionyi 1gep 8yl ‘juai 8y} JOA0D
0} ybnous jou alom paAleoal Buieq sjuswAed ayy se 00z [Mdy woli AjlenpelB paniooe sieally ‘8002/€0/60 - £002/.0/.0 pouad ayy Joj sem Aoueusy ay |

palieg ajnels

06'LL6V3

Aeqay

yinos

‘palieq aynje)s s jgep oy} se AloAooal 9240jus Jabuo| ou ued Ajoyine sy} pue pjo siesk
9 J8A0 MOU SI SIUYL "600Z YOJEA Ul UOIOS||00 Jgep 0} JUSS “Jusluuopuege aouiW JUNoooe 8y} 0} opew Usaq JaAs aaey sjuswAed ou ‘jgap ay} ebpsimousoe 0}
JueUs) Aq epew J0BjU0D ON "800Z YOJelN Ul papua sem Aoueus | "paAles DN pue pabueyo alom s)007 "ol SWOs Ul Usss uaad jou pey Aay) se Auadoid ayy
pauopueqe Ajgissod pey jueus) Jey) 200Z JOGUISAON Ul PaUIION "/00Z 1daS ul paddols sem gH Jole GL'gL/ L3 JO panJdde sieally "800z/S0/60 - 900Z/60/70
woJj Aoueusy meN "900Z Asenuepr ul uoioiAe pue sBuipesocold uoissessod 0} Joud L9°'GAG'LF JO BnjeA 8y} 0} peniooe slealie pue spew alom sjuswAed
ou alaym ‘9002/L0/S1 - S00Z/+0/81 Wols uoizednooo @ asn Jopun Ausdold 0} uinjal 0) paMO|e SEM JUBUS) JNg ‘papud sem Aoueua] A} Joyjoue Ul Sssawoy
se soAjesWway) Buijuasald ‘eale sy} JO JNO paAoW @ DIN Ul papuey JUBUS) UBYM Siealle ON ‘S00Z/v0/LL - S00Z/Z0/¥L pouad ay) o} sem Aoueus) [eljiul 8y

paiieg a)ne}s

9/°80€°€3

Keqqy

Page 28

‘palieq aynje)s sl }qap ay) se A1enodal 9210jud Jabuo| ou ued Ajuoyine sy} pue pjo SiesA g JSA0 MOU SI SIY] “1gap 8y} abpa|moude 0} JUeUs)
By} WOl paAi@dal sem J10ejuod oN “dauls sjuswAed ou Ing ‘200z Asenuer un dn paaigoal sjuswAed [jews yim ‘Zo0z Jequiadsq o} udy wolj paAiedal sem
1BUaq [BWIUIW UBYM panJode 1gap 8y ‘sJeaule jual ybiy o} anp 00 Ul paloIne SEm Jueus) 8yl "/00Z/70/80 - 2661/L0/SL pouad ay) oy sem Aoueus) ay |

paleg sjnels

6.'6€9C3

uojuIH
Aayn

YMON

‘paileq aynje;s
S| }g9p 8y} se AJonodal da.10jus Jabuo] ou ued Ajuoyjne sy} pue sieak g JOAO U0} pabpajmouyoe uasq mou jou sey }gap siy] suonsabbns asay) Buipiebal
JUBUS) WO} 8oUe}dado. JO UOBOIUNWWOD OU INg ‘}qap JUBUS) Joawio) 8y} aonpal 0} ulebe sjuswAed asealoul 0} apew aiam suo)sabbng "aouls sapew usaq
aAey sjuawAed ou 1ng ‘go0z Aleniga4 o} ybnouyy gep 1084ip AQ Jual JuauInd apisbuoje apew aiem sjuswAed "aJed apinoid O} pasn Jayjow ay} Se Ja)Iom
|e100s ou Ing ‘Ajijigesip yjjeay |ejuaw e Sey jueus)} ay] ‘|lBAB OU 0} SBM SIU} ‘Janamoy ‘@ousaping apinoid pue ‘suoneoldde gH a19|dwod jueusy ayy diay
0} Aoueusy ay} noybnoly) sapew atem sydwapy “poruad Aoueus) aaus ayy ul g3 Buijejo} syjuswAhed spew % gH Jo 1d19da1 Ul Jou sem Jueus)} syl "Z00z/20/01
0] 000Z/60/81 wouy uel Aoueus} snoinaid 8yl "zo0zZ ul O} sajejds 1gep siy) jeyy Auadoid ay) wouy passjsuely Buiaey ‘Jueus) juaund e S| Jueus} siyl

palleg snjeis

62°058°C3

uojuiH
Asyn

YLON

‘pauleq a)njels s jqap ay) se Alanodal adlojua Jabuo| ou ued Ajuoyine ayy
pue pjo sieak 9 JaAo mou si SIyl "0L0z |Mdy ul Jusbe A1anooal 1gap B 0} JUSS Sem }gap ay | ‘JUeUS) SU} WO} POAISDSS SEM JOBJUOD OU ‘JOABMOY ‘JUds SJa)ld| B
‘6002 Ul Jueua) 8y} aoel) 0} apew alom sjdwany "z00z d2uls 19j-qns Ajjebsj usaq pey Auadoud ay) jey) jooid Buimol|oy 900z Ul Auadold ay) wody pajoIne sem
JUBU®) BY] 'GOOZ Ul pasead Jijauad Sjueus) ay} Joye paje|nwndoe jey) siealle sasudwod 1gap ayl "9002/90/L L - 2002/60/60 pouad ay} Joj sem Aoueus) ay|

paliieg ajnjels

vZ'LSY'T3

uoyburdwini

yinos

1J0-9)LIM\ 1O} uoseay

}qaQ 1aA029y o]
uaye] uonoy

junowy

piem

wea]
ealy

| XION3ddV

‘U9 e} UOIJOE pue SOSED SIBdLIe [eNpPIAIPU|




Agenda Item 7

A Cambridge City Council Item

W

To: Executive Councillor for Housing: Councillor Kevin
Price

Report by: Julia Hovells, Business Manager / Principal
Accountant

Relevant scrutiny Housing Scrutiny Committee  14/1/2015

committee:

Wards affected: Abbey Arbury Castle Cherry Hinton Coleridge

East Chesterton King's Hedges Market Newnham
Petersfield Queen Edith's Romsey Trumpington
West Chesterton

CAMBRIDGE CITY COUNCIL RENT SETTING POLICY

Key Decision

1. Executive Summary

1.1 Following a government consultation on the future rent policy for local
authority landlords in late 2013, the government issued revised
‘Guidance on Rents for Social Housing’ in May 2014.

1.2 This report highlights the changes in rent setting guidance compared
with previous government guidance and sets out the proposed
approach to rent setting at a local level from April 2015, with an
update to the local ‘Rent Policy’ at Appendix A.

2. Recommendations
The Executive Councillor is recommended:

2.1 To approve the revised ‘Rent Policy’ at Appendix A, to be effective
from April 2015.

3. Background

3.1 Prior to the government consultation ‘Rents for Social Housing from
2015/16’, issued on 31% October 2013, local authorities were expected
to increase social housing rents annually by inflation, using the
measure of the retail price index (RPI) at the preceding September,
plus 0.5%, plus up to an additional £2.00 per week, until target rents
were achieved across the entire housing stock.

Report Page No: 1 Page 29



3.2

3.3

3.3

The comprehensive spending review in 2013 highlighted the
government’s intention review national rent guidance, providing some
certainty over rent levels in the longer-term.

The outcome of the consultation resulted in revised guidance for
setting rents in social housing, with a number of key changes
incorporated. These changes include:

e Arent policy that is intended to apply for 10 years from April
2015.

e A change in the inflation factor used for setting rents in social
housing, to instead use the consumer price index (CPI) at the
preceding September, plus 1%.

e The cessation of the annual transition towards target rent for
existing tenants, ie; removal of the £2.00 element of the rent
setting formula.

e The expectation that all properties will move directly to target rent
at re-let.

e The expectation that new homes will be let at affordable rent
levels, of up to 80% of market rent, including service charges,
being mindful, but not governed by, Local Housing Allowance
(LHA) levels.

e The expectation that any household with an annual income of at
least £60,000 per annum (taking into account the two highest
incomes in any one household), will be charged market rent
levels.

The authority is not statutorily obliged to follow government guidance
in setting rent levels, but to date the national policy has been adhered
to locally. This was historically due to the penalties that used to exist
in the HRA subsidy system for deviating from the policy and more
recently was due to the level of debt that the authority was required to
take on when the subsidy system was abolished. However, flexibility
can and will be applied as to whether all government guidance should
be adhered to in the context of Cambridge's uniquely pressured
housing market.

Report Page No: 2 Page 30



Inflation factor of CPI plus 1%

3.4

The HRA Budget Setting Report, and subsequent Mid-Year Financial
Review, incorporated the assumption that the authority would adopt
the new inflationary measure of CPI plus 1% from April 2015, but left
any other changes in policy to be considered as part of this review of
the local ‘Rent Policy’ as part of the 2015/16 budget process.

Transition of void properties to target rent at re-let

3.5

3.6

3.7

The existing local ‘Rent Policy’ allows for the rent in void properties to
be moved directly to target rent levels at re-let only if the property is
assessed as having an above average energy efficiency rating when
inspected during the void period.

In the 18 months since this policy was introduced, in April 2013, 362
properties have had rents increased at re-let to target rent levels,
compared with the 658 properties that were re-let in total.

Given the authority's commitment to energy efficiency, no change to
the rent policy is proposed and voids will continue to move to target
rent only when assessed as having an above average energy rating.

Rents for new homes at up to 80% of market rent

3.8

3.9

3.10

The rent levels for new build housing schemes need to be driven by
the financial viability of the scheme, recognising the impact upon
viability of a number of different funding streams, including borrowing,
right to buy receipts, other capital receipts and application of HRA
revenue surpluses as direct revenue funding of capital.

The authority is primarily keen to deliver its Cambridge Social Rent
Programme (CSRP) to ensure rents remain affordable, whilst
recognising the constraints imposed in some of the funding
mechanisms. The CSRP strives to deliver new social rented homes
with rents up to the level of the LHA in Cambridge, which is currently
estimated to be between 60 - 65% of market rents. It should be noted
that social housing tenants are eligible for housing benefit at levels
above Local Housing Allowance. However, Local Housing Allowance
rates are used as a fair and equitable benchmark of what is
‘affordable’ for non-working or low income households.

It is also recognised that there are circumstances where an
intermediate product may be required, to meet an identified need or to
ensure financial viability of a particular site, where rents above Local

Report Page No: 3 Page 31



3.1

3.12

Housing Allowance levels may be adopted, using the measure of 80%
of market rent as a maximum rent level.

It is therefore proposed that the local rent policy indicates that rents for
new build homes will be delivered at rents of between 60% and 80%
of market rent levels, dependent upon scheme mix and scheme
viability, thus allowing for rents to be set at as low as 60% where
viable, but still complying with the government guideline that rents
should be set at up to 80%.

In practice, any new build social homes let at LHA rates at any time in
a financial year will be set at the prevailing Local Housing Allowance
at 1 April at the start of that financial year. The rents will be assessed
against the latest available market data at that time as a check how
they compare with the 60% target level, bearing in mind that market
rents can vary significantly over time and depending on the area of the
city analysed.

Market rents for households with incomes of at least £60,000

3.13

3.14

3.15

3.16

3.17

In the guidance provided by Communities and Local Government for
‘Rents for Social Housing', it is expected that local authorities will
charge market rent levels for properties where the house hold income
is at least £60,000, taking into consideration the incomes of the two
highest earners in the household.

The consultation indicated that government would expect the process
for identification of those households meeting this criterion to be self-
disclosure in the first instance, with earnings in the previous financial
year dictating rent levels for the coming financial year. The guidance
does indicate, however, that local authorities should take into account
any material change in a household’s financial circumstances,
amending rent levels accordingly.

For existing tenants, there are currently no legal grounds under which
the local authority can demand this level of financial information,
making self-disclosure the only option in the short term. This
constraint is being explored at a national level.

Collection of the financial information required to make appropriate
judgements about rent levels would be expected to be relatively labour
intensive, and the authority would also need to identify an appropriate
ongoing source of market rent level data.

At this time it is not proposed to incorporate the ability to charge
market rent levels for households with an income of £60,000,

Report Page No: 4 Page 32



recognising that self-disclosure by tenants is likely to be ineffective.
This will be reviewed should any legislative changes occur to facilitate
collection of the necessary financial information.

4. Implications

(@)

(b)

()

(d)

(e)

(f)

Financial Implications

The financial implications of the revised ‘Rent Policy’ have been
incorporated into the financial assumptions made as part of the
2015/16 HRA Budget Setting Report.

Staffing Implications

There are no direct staffing implications associated with this report at
this stage, although consideration will need to be given to staffing
levels as and when the ability to expand the data collection exercise
for higher income households, when there will be an increased
administrative burden and a cost to obtaining ongoing up to date
market rent data.

Equal Opportunities Implications

An Equalities Impact Assessment will be undertaken as part of the
preparation of this report and proposed amended rent setting policy.
The assessment will be found as part of the background papers
associated with this report.

Environmental Implications

There are no direct environmental implications identified as part of this
report or proposed revised policy.

Procurement

There are no initial procurement implications identified as part of this
report or proposed revised policy. Any future decision to procure
services to provide market rent level data will be subject to the
Council’'s Contract Procedure Rules.

Consultation and communication
Consultation with the tenant and leaseholder representatives on

Housing Scrutiny Committee is undertaken as part of this report being
presented to the Housing Scrutiny Committee.

Report Page No: 5 Page 33



(g0 Community Safety

There are no direct community safety implications identified as part of
this report or proposed revised policy.

5. Background Papers
These background papers were used in the preparation of this report:
e Rents for Social Housing from 2015/16 — Consultation: Summary
of Responses

e Guidance on Rents for Social Housing
e Equalities Impact Assessment

6. Appendices
e Appendix A - Rent Policy (from April 2015)
7. Inspection of Papers

To inspect the background papers or if you have a query on the report
please contact:

Author’s Name: Julia Hovells
Author’'s Phone Number: 01223 — 457822
Author’s Email: julia.hovells@cambridge.gov.uk

Report Page No: 6 Page 34



Appendix A

Housing Revenue Account

Rent Setting Policy

1

Infroduction

The purpose of this policy is to explain how Cambridge City Council will set rent levels

for its properties.

Policy Statement

Cambridge City Council’'s Rent Setting Policy focuses around the following

statements of principle:

The Council will set rents following consideration of the Government’s ‘Guidance on
Rents for Social Housing’, in the context of both local housing demand and

Cambridge's pressured housing market.

Rents are set at a level that ensures that the Council can meet its landlord obligations
to tenants and maintain stock to a minimum of the Decent Homes Standard, whilst
also delivering a financially viable Housing Revenue Account over the longer term,

facilitating investment in the delivery of new Social Housing provision.

Policy Objectives

The objectives of the rent setting policy are:

To consider, and respond locally, o Government guidance on setting rents for social
housing

To identify how Cambridge City Council will set rents for general stock properties

To identify how Cambridge City Council will set rents for shared ownership properties

To identify how Cambridge City Council will set rents for new build properties

To identify how Cambridge City Council will set rents for garages and parking spaces

To identify the process for providing statutory notice to tfenants of proposed changes

inrent levels

Page 35



Background

Rent restructuring was infroduced with effect from April 2002, with the aim of
infroducing consistency in the calculation of rent across local authorities and other
Registered Providers (RP's), ensuring that social rents were more affordable, fairer and

less confusing for all tenants.

The Government rent restructuring policy requires rents to be set based upon formula
driven by a combination of relative county earnings and relative property values,

weighted for the number of bedrooms that a property has.

The latest Government ‘Guidance on Rents for Social Housing’ document sets outs
the anticipated approach to setting rents in the social sector over the coming ten

years.

Detailed Implementation

In line with the rent restructuring policy, Cambridge City Council calculates a ‘target’
rent for all existing, and any new socially rented properties, based on the

Government’s ‘target’ rent formula as set out below:

70% based on the average county-level manual earnings compared with the

national average manual earnings;

30% based on the January 1999 property valuation of an individual property,

compared with the national average value of a social housing property;
An additional ‘weighting’ based on the number bedrooms in the property.

A weekly rent cap for properties based upon the number of bedrooms in the

property.

Actual rents currently charged below target rents will move towards target rents only
when an existing property becomes void and can be assessed as having an above
average energy efficient rating. This is a deviation from the Government guidance to
move all void properties directly to target rent, recognising the authority’s

commitment to introducing energy efficiency measures and reducing fuel poverty.

Page 36



é

Annual Rent Review

In line with the Council's tenancy conditions, fenants will be given 4 weeks written
notice of any change in rent, which will usually be effective from the annual date for

rent changes, currently being the first Monday in April of each calendar year.

Annual rent increases (or decreases) will comprise, in line with the guidelines, an
adjustment to reflect the change in prices between one year and the nextf, with
inflation plus 1.0% applied across all properties (based on the consumer price index

(CPI) inflation rate for the preceding September).

Where the rent charged for a property is below the target rent for the dwelling, no
additional increase will be applied to move towards rent convergence whilst the

property is occupied by the existing tenant.

Rent will be due on each Monday during the rent year 52 (or 53) weeks, but will be

raised on rent accounts across 48 (or 49) chargeable weeks for collection purposes.

General Needs, Sheltered and Supported Housing

Cambridge City Council does not currently apply the 5% flexibility in formula rents
(10% for sheltered / supported housing), but will review this practice on an annual

basis, with any change proposed only after consultation.

Rents in respect of void properties will be set at target rent levels before the property
is re-let, where the property is assessed as being above average in energy efficiency
terms. This will not apply in the case of mutual exchanges, where there is no formal

void period and therefore rents will remain as they do in respect of existing tfenants.

Rents for properties which have undergone a material change, full refurbishment or
rebuild, (i.e.; sheltered scheme refurbishment, property extension or conversion) will
be set immediately at target social rents, reflecting the increased investment and

condition of the property.

Shared Ownership Housing

Rents for shared ownership properties will be amended in line with the requirements

of the lease.

Page 37



10

For existing shared ownership properties, target rents will be reduced by 20%, in line
with the terms of the shared ownership lease, to reflect the tenant’s liability for repairs

to the property.

Rents will be increased (or decreased) in line with government guidelines for rent
restructuring as far as possible within the terms of the lease, with a maximum increase

of inflation (CPI af the preceding September) plus 1.0%

Rents in respect of void properties will be set at target rent levels before the property

is re-let.

New Build Housing

In respect of new build housing, consideration will be given to rent levels in the
context of the financial viability of the initial investment, with rents considered at up to

80% of market rent levels.

There is a local commitment to deliver a Cambridge Social Rent Programme, with
rent levels no higher than the Local Housing Allowance, currently considered to be

between 60% and 65% of market rent levels in the city.

Where Local Housing Allowance is used as the measure for rents to be set, the level at
the preceding April will be used for all properties completed during each financial
year. Rent levels will be assessed against the latest available market data at that time
as a check how they compare with the 60% target level, bearing in mind that market

rents can vary significantly over time.

This policy allows for new build homes to be delivered with rents of between 60% and
80% of market rent levels, dependent upon scheme mix and scheme viability, thus
allowing for rents to be set at as low as 60% where viable, but at up to 80%, in line with

government guideline, should the investment dictate this.

Rents for Social Tenants with High Incomes

Rent levels for tenants with a taxable household income of at least £60,000 per

annum can be set at market rent levels, within the national guidance.

The income received in a household in one year, ie 2014/15, is used as the driver for
the rent to be set for the household in the coming year, ie; 2016/17. Any significant
change in circumstances is expected to be taken into consideration, and may

prompt a reduction back to target social rent level for the property. When re-let, any

Page 38



11

12

13

property previously charged at market rent levels, due to the income earned by the

household, would revert to target social rent level.

It is not currently proposed to implement the ability to charge market rents for high
income households at a local level, due to the lack of statutory right fo demand the

required financial information and therefore enforce the higher charge.

This will be reviewed at the point at which any legislative changes are infroduced to
facilitate collection of the required financial data.

Garages and Parking Spaces

Rent levels for garages and parking spaces will be reviewed annually as part of the

budget process, set according to demand.

A variable charging structure will apply, which recognises both tenure type and

proposed use of the garage.

VAT will be applied to all private garages, ie; garages or parking spaces let o those
who are either not housing tenants of Cambridge City Council or are tenants where
the garage is not in the immediate proximity of the fenanted dwelling.

Monitoring

The setting of all rents will be monitored and reviewed annually by Housing Scrutiny
Committee, with decisions in respect of rent setting being made by the Executive

Councillor for Housing.

Review of the Rent Setting Policy

The Rent Setting Policy will be reviewed by officers at a minimum of every 3 years,
with any changes being presented to Housing Scrutiny Committee for debate, and

then approval by the Executive Councillor for Housing.

Policy Date January 2015

Review Date January 2018

Page 39



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 40



Agenda Iltem 8

A Cambridge City Council Item

W

To: Executive Councillor for Housing: Councillor Kevin
Price

Report by: Liz Bisset, Director of Customer & Community
Services

Relevant scrutiny Housing 14/1/2015

committee: Scrutiny
Committee

Wards affected: Abbey Arbury Castle Cherry Hinton Coleridge

East Chesterton King's Hedges Market Newnham
Petersfield Queen Edith's Romsey Trumpington
West Chesterton

2015/16 HOUSING REVENUE ACCOUNT BUDGET SETTING REPORT

Key Decision

1. Executive summary

1.1 As part of the 2015/16 budget process, the range of assumptions
upon which the HRA Business Plan and Mid-Year Financial Review
were based, were reviewed in light of the latest information available,
culminating in the preparation of the HRA Budget Setting Report.

1.2 The HRA Budget-Setting Report provides an overview of the review of
the key assumptions. It sets out the key parameters for the detailed
recommendations and final budget proposals, and is the basis for the
finalisation of the 2015/16 budgets.

1.3 The resulting recommendations refer to the strategy outlined in the
HRA Budget Setting Report.

1.4 The HRA Budget Setting Report is presented to this meeting of the
Housing Scrutiny Committee on 14" January 2015, to allow
consideration and scrutiny of proposals for both the review of rents
and service charges and the revenue bids and savings, which form
part of the HRA budget. The Executive Councillor for Housing will
approve the final HRA revenue budget, after consideration of any
budget amendments for the Housing Revenue Account.

Report Page No: 1 Page 41



1.5 The Housing Scrutiny Committee will also consider and scrutinise the

Housing Capital Investment Plan, including capital bids and all
associated funding proposals, prior to the Executive Council for
Housing making final capital recommendations for approval at Council
on 26th February 2015.

2. Recommendations

The Executive Councillor, is recommended, following scrutiny and debate at
Housing Scrutiny Committee, to:

Review of Rents and Charges

a)

Approve that council dwellings rents be increased in line with
government guidelines, ceasing any move towards target rents for
existing tenants, but instead applying an individual increase of 2.2%
across all tenure, made up of inflation (CPI at September 2014 of
1.2%) plus 1%, with effect from 6th April 2015. This equates to an
average rent increase at the time of writing this report of £2.18 per
week on a 52 week basis.

Approve inflationary increases of 2% in garage and parking space
rents for 2015/16, in line with the base rate of inflation for the year
assumed in the HRA Budget Setting Report.

Approve the proposed service charges for Housing Revenue Account
services and facilities, as shown in Appendix B of the HRA Budget
Setting Report.

Approve the proposed leasehold administration charges for 2015/16
as detailed in Appendix B of the HRA Budget Setting Report.

Approve that service charges for gas maintenance, door entry
systems, lifts and electrical and mechanical maintenance are
increased by a maximum of inflation at 1.2% plus 1%, if required, to
continue to recover full estimated costs as detailed in Appendix B of
the HRA Budget Setting Report.

Approve that caretaking, communal cleaning, estate services, grounds
maintenance, window cleaning, temporary housing premises and
utilities, sheltered scheme premises and utilities, digital television
aerial, flat cleaning and catering charges continue to be recovered at
full cost, as detailed in Appendix B of the HRA Budget Setting Report.

Report Page No: 2 Page 42



Revenue — HRA

Revised Budget 2014/15:

g)

Approve with any amendments, the Revised Budget identified in
Section 4 of the HRA Budget Setting Report, which reflects a net
reduction in the use of HRA reserves for 2014/15 of £1,084,630.

Approve the release of a net sum of £823,400, previously held within
HRA repairs and renewals funds back into general HRA reserves,
following a fundamental review of both the inventories and existing
funds held.

Approve release of the ear-marked reserves of £389,960 previously
held for the purpose of meeting additional pension fund contributions
into general HRA reserves, to allow alternative future use.

Budget 2015/16:

j)

k)

Approve with any amendments, the Non-Cash Limit items shown in
Appendix D (1) of the HRA Budget Setting Report.

Approve with any amendments, the Unavoidable Revenue Bids and
Savings, including those associated with organisational
transformation, shown in Appendix D (1) of the HRA Budget Setting
Report.

Approve with any amendments, the Priority Policy Fund (PPF) Bids
shown in Appendix D (1) of the HRA Budget Setting Report.

The Executive Councillor for Housing is asked to recommend to Council
(following scrutiny and debate at Housing Scrutiny Committee):

Treasury Management

m)

Retain the existing approach to treasury management, setting-aside a
proportion of the surpluses generated over the life of the Business
Plan to allow for potential debt redemption, but re-investing up to 75%
of the surplus generated in the acquisition or development of new
affordable housing, as outlined in Section 6 of the HRA Budget Setting
Report.

Report Page No: 3 Page 43



Housing Capital

n)

Approval of capital bids, shown in Appendix D (2) of the HRA Budget
Setting Report, to include ear-marking resource for the implementation
of both a new sub-regional choice based lettings IT system, and the
software required to facilitate customer access to elements of the
housing management information system, subject to each project
demonstrating viability.

Approval of amendment to the Decent Homes Programme investment,
recognising the financial implications of a change in the assumed life
for UPVC window replacements, from 25 years, to the 40 years
required as part of the Decent homes Standard.

Approval of re-allocation of £976,000 of resource in 2015/16 and
2017/18, originally included in previous years for works to communal
areas, into the budget for garage improvement works, to allow the
authority to undertake major works to some of the larger garage
blocks should there be a financially viable business case for
investment. The decision to proceed with works following the
preparation of each business case shall be delegated to the Director
of Customer & Community Services, in consultation with the Executive
Councillor, Chair of Housing Scrutiny Committee (Part 2) and the
Opposition Spokespersons.

Approval of the latest budget and funding mix for each of the schemes
in the 2011-15 new build programme, as detailed in Section 5 and
Appendix F of the HRA Budget Setting Report, recognising the most
up to date information available as each scheme progresses through
the design, planning, build contract and completion process.

Approval of gross funding of £7,008,000 for the development of the
affordable housing project on the Homerton site, in line with the
scheme specific report being presented to Housing Scrutiny
Committee on 14" January 2015, which assumes 75% affordable
rented and 25% shared ownership housing.

Approval to earmark the required level of additional funding for new
build investment between 2015/16 and 2019/20 to ensure that the
anticipated level of future retained right to buy receipts can be
appropriately utilised.

Approval of re-direction of existing resource, previously identified as
Cambridge Standard Investment, to create a new City Homes Estate
Improvement Programme, with a view to increasing the future level of

Report Page No: 4 Page 44



investment in this area, as part of the Fundamental Review of the
HRA and Housing Service, which will take place during 2015.

u)  Approval of the revised Housing Capital Investment Plan as shown in
Appendix | of the HRA Budget Setting Report.

v)  Approve a provisional addition to the Housing Capital Allowance of
£29,151,000 in respect of anticipated qualifying expenditure in
2015/16.

3. Implications

All budget proposals have a number of implications. A decision not to
approve a revenue bid will impact on managers’ ability to deliver the service
or scheme in question and could have staffing, equal opportunities,
environmental and/or community safety implications. A decision not to
approve a capital or external bid will impact on managers’ ability to deliver the
developments desired in the service areas.

(a) Financial Implications

The financial implications associated with decisions are outlined in the HRA
Budget Setting Report 2015/16, appended to this report, for consideration
by both Housing Scrutiny Committee and Council.

(b) Staffing Implications (if not covered in Consultations Section)

Any direct staffing implications are outlined in the HRA Budget Setting
Report 2015/16, appended to this report.

(c) Equality and Poverty Implications

Equality Impact Assessments have been undertaken in respect of each
budget proposal where any impact (positive or negative) is anticipated. All of
the assessments are available to view on the Council’s website, whilst a
consolidated Impact Assessment is presented at Appendix J of the HRA
Budget Setting Report.

(d) Environmental Implications
Where relevant, officers have considered the environmental impact of

budget proposals, with any impact highlighted in the HRA Budget Setting
Report 2015/16, appended to this report.

Report Page No: 5 Page 45



(e) Procurement

Any procurement implications arising directly from revenue or capital bids
will be considered and addressed as part of each individual project.

(f) Consultation and communication

Consultation with tenant and leaseholder representatives is an integral part
of the Housing Scrutiny Committee process. The views of tenants and
leaseholders, in respect of investment priorities, were sought as part of the
2014 STAR tenants and leaseholder survey, and the outcome has informed
this budget process.

(g9 Community Safety

Any community safety implications are outlined in the HRA Budget Setting
Report 2015/16, appended to this report.

4. Background papers

These background papers were used in the preparation of this report:

Housing Revenue Account Budget Setting Report 2014/15
Housing Revenue Account Mid-Year Financial Review 2014/15
Equalities Impact Assessments

5. Appendices

The Housing Revenue Account Budget Setting Report 2015/16 is appended
to this report.

6. Inspection of papers

To inspect the background papers or if you have a query on the report
please contact:

Author’'s Name: Julia Hovells
Author’'s Phone Number: 01223 - 457822
Author’s Email: julia.hovells@cambridge.gov.uk

Report Page No: 6 Page 46



Version 2
HSC Final

Housing Revenue Account
Budget Setting Report

2015/16

L January
il 2015

CAMBRIDGE
CITY COUNCIL

Cambridge City Counci

Page 47




Version Control

Current

Version

for :

Draft

Housing Scrutiny
Committee
14 January 2015

Council Meeting
26 February 2015

FINAL

Anticipated Content

Draft content for consultation

Member Scrutiny

Tenant and Leaseholder Representative Input
Amendments to Executive proposals
Opposition budget amendment proposals

The Executive Councillor for Housing's
recommended final budget proposals

Final version for publication following Council

Page 48



Cambridge City Council
Housing Revenue Account Budget

Setting Repori

2015/16 to 2019/20
Contents
Section No. Topic Page No.
| Infroduction 1
Background 1
Purpose, Scope and Key Dates 2
2 Review of National and Local Policy and Context 5
Review of National Policy Context 5
Review of Local Policy Context 11
External Factors 20
3 Housing Revenue Account Resources 23
Rent 23
Service Charges 28
Other Sources of Income 29
Other External Funding 31
Ear-Marked and Specific Funds 31
4 Housing Revenue Account Budget 36
Post-HRA Business Plan Update Approvals 36
Revised Budget 2013/14 37
Overall Budget Position and Priority Policy Fund (PPF) 38
5 Housing Capital Budget 42

Page 49




Section No. Topic Page No.

Stock Condition and Decent Homes 42
New Build Affordable Housing 43
Asset Disposals and Acquisitions 49
Capital Bids 51
6 HRA Treasury Management 53
Background 53
Current HRA Borrowing 53
Future Borrowing 54
Debt Repayment / Re-Investment 56
Treasury Management Summary 59
7 Summary and Overview 61
Equality Impact Assessment, Uncertainties and Risk 61
HRA Reserves 62
Financial Assumptions and Sensitivity 63
Options and Conclusions 63

Page 50



Appendices

Reference Topic

A
B
C

D (1)

Business Planning Assumptions

Service Charges

HRA Ear-Marked & Specific Funds

HRA Budget — All Revenue Items

HRA Budget — All Revenue Items

Key Risk Analysis

New Build Cash-flow Investment Profile
Sensitivity Analysis

HRA Summary Forecast 2014/15 to 2019/20
Housing Capital Investment Plan —2014/15 to 2019/20
HRA Budget Equalities Impact Assessment

Page 51

Page No.
66
69
72
74
85
86
89
92
93
95
100



Section 1
Intfroduction

Background

Decisions about the level of expenditure in the Housing Revenue Account confinue to
be made in the context of a 30-year business plan, which is fully reviewed in January /
February of each year, with a mid-year review of key assumptions taking place

annually in September / October.

The level of funding available to invest in housing services is dependent upon
anticipated income streams for the Housing Revenue Account, with the most significant
of these being the rental income for the housing stock. The authority has the ability to
sef rents at a local level, although it does need to be recognised that the government

still issues guidance for setting rents, which local authorities are expected to adhere to.

With greater flexibility over longer-term decision making at a local level, the Housing
Revenue Account needs to continually review priorities for investment, delivering an

appropriate balance between:

Investment in the existing housing stock

o Investment in new affordable housing

o Investment in new initiatives and income generating activities

o Spend on landlord service (housing management, responsive and void repairs)
o Spend on discretionary services (i.e. support)

o Support for, and potential repayment of, housing debt

Page 52




To achieve this, it is imperative that the organisation sets budgets for the medium term
in the context of the longer-term impact of the financial viability of the Housing

Revenue Account 30-Year Business Plan and Asset Management Plan

A key feature of the 30-Year Business Plan is the requirement to support, and potentially
repay, a significant level of housing debt whilst also ensuring ongoing delivery of quality
housing services. As at April 2014, the authority was supporting a housing debt of
£214,748,250. The level of debt supported by the Housing Revenue Account is
expected to increase to allow for the delivery of new affordable housing, unftil the
current debt cap of £230,839,000 is reached.

Purpose, Scope and Key Dates

Purpose

Following scrutiny and debate at Housing Scrutiny Committee on 30 September 2014,
the Executive Councillor for Housing approved the revenue aspects of the HRA Mid-
Year Financial Review for 2013/14. At its meeting on 6 November 2014, the Council
considered the capital aspects of the document. The mid-year review of factors
affecting the housing service took into consideration emerging changes in both local
and national policy priorities and the implications of anticipated changes in the current
economic climate. The approved HRA Mid-Year Financial Review set out the agreed
financial strategy for the HRA, and confirmed the framework for the detailed budget

work to develop proposals for the 2015/16 budget.

As part of the preparation of the HRA Budget Setting Report, the range of assumptions
on which the HRA Mid-Year Financial Review was based, were reviewed in light of the
latest information available to determine whether any aspects of the strategy needed
to be revised.

The outcome of the exercise, summarised in this document, provides the basis for the

finalisation of the HRA budget and setting of rents for 2015/16, culminating in

Page 53



recommendations to both Housing Scrutiny Committee on 14t January 2015, and

ultfimately Council on 26 February 2015.

Scope

The HRA Budget Setfting Report provides an overview of the financial position for the
HRA. It covers HRA revenue and housing capital spending, highlighting the inter-
relationships between the two, and the resultant implications. The HRA is the authority’s
landlord account, within which all services to tenants and leaseholders are provided
and funded and it is the account into which the proceeds of the rent and landlord

service charges are credited.

As with the HRA Mid-Year Financial Review, a key aspect of the detailed budget work
has been risk assessment and management. In order to ensure that the HRA's financial
position and risks are appropriately managed over the medium and longer-term, within
the financial projections, the following modelling periods have been adopted for the
HRA:

For the ... Period Purpose / Use

HRA Mid-Year Financial Review & . .
Budget Setting Syears Detailed budget & rent setting
Longer-Term Budget Projections 30 years Demonstrate long-term effects &

ability to support debt

Sensitivity analysis of key factors is undertaken, as part of the budget setting process to
ensure that effective confingency plans are available to the Council and that an

appropriate level of reserves can be maintained in light of changes in assumptions.

The work on the 2014/15 HRA Budget Sefting Report takes as its starting point the

following key medium and long-term parameters:

o A financial model that assumes resource is set-aside to redeem 25% of the housing

debt, with the balance invested in the delivery of new homes.

Page 54



e A financial model assuming use of borrowing headroom, in order to increase the

supply of social housing.
o Rent increases in line with government rent guidelines.

o Housing stock that is maintained at an investment standard by the end of a 10-

year period.

o The delivery, subject to viability of up to 444 new and re-provided homes over a 5
year period, with the potential for delivery of additional homes in years 6 to 30 of

the Business Plan.

o A general savings requirement of 2% in general management expenditure for
2015/16 and beyond, alongside an adjustment in responsive repairs expenditure in

line with anticipated stock changes.

o A contingency to support contfinual service development (known as the priority
policy fund) for 2015/16 to 2019/20 at a level of £150,000, recognising some of the

key challenges facing the authority as a landlord in the medium-term.

o A minimum working balance for reserves of £2m, with a target level of £3m.

Key Dates

The key member decision-making dates were / are as follows:

Date Task

2014
The Executive Councillor for Housing considered HRA Mid-Year
Financial Review, incorporated Housing Scrutiny Committee,
30 September including Tenant and Leaseholder Representative views, and
approved revenue aspects, making recommendations to
Council in respect of the capital plan.
6 November Council approved HRA Mid-Year Financial Review 2014/15
2015

Executive Councillor for Housing considers Housing Scrutiny
Committee views, before approving HRA revenue budgets and

14 January rent levels, and making recommendations to Council in respect
of the capital aspects of the HRA Budget Setting Report
26 February Council approves HRA Budget Setting Report

Page 55



Section 2

Review of National and Local Policy
Context and External Factors

Review of National Policy Context

National Rent Setting Policy for Social and Affordable Rents

Following consultation in 2013, the government issued revised guidance for setting rents
in social housing from April 2015, in May 2014. The Council's approach to rent setting in
light of the new guidance is the subject of a separate report being presented to

Housing Scrutiny Committee on 14 January 2015. The key changes in the guidance are:

A change in the inflationary measure used as part of the annual rent review,
using CPI (Consumer Price Index) plus 1%, for the 10 year period from 2015/16 to
2024/25 instead of the historic inflationary rate of RPI (Retail Price Index) plus 0.5%,

providing certainty and stability for both social landlords and investors.
Cessation of the rent convergence policy for existing tenants from 2015/16.

Assumption that authorities will move the rent levels for all properties directly to
target rent when a property becomes void, thus still achieving rent convergence,

but over a longer time frame.

Assumption that new homes will be let at the higher ‘Affordable Rents’ of up to
80% market rent levels (inclusive of service charge), if the authority has a
Framework Development Agreement in place with the Homes and Communities
Agency, or has entered into a Retention Agreement, with the Department for

Communities and Local Government, for the ability to retain right to buy receipts.

Page 56




o Assumption that the rent for properties where the household income exceeds

£60,000 per annum should be set at full market rent levels.

Local authorities are expected to have regard to guidance issued by Government on

rent policy when setting rents.

Welfare Reforms

The Welfare Reform Act 2012 infroduced a number of changes to Housing and other

Benefits.

At the end of September 2014, approximately 405 HRA tenants were affected by the
reduction in housing benefit as a result of removal of the spare room subsidy, with over
75% of those residents affected paying the additional rent due. It is estimated that

£37.000 of arrears relate to households affected by this change.

In respect of these cases, Discretionary Housing Payment (DHP) continues to be
considered, with time-limited top-up payments being awarded to support the most

vulnerable tenants whilst alternative options are considered.

The Benefit Cap, (a cap of £500 per week for families, and £350 per week for a single
person), infroduced from 15th July 2013, currently impacts 14 City Council tenants,
based upon the cases notified to us by the Department for Work and Pensions (DWP) at

the time of writing this report.

Housing Benefit is to be incorporated intfo Universal Credit, but implementation delays
mean that local authorities will now continue to administer Housing Benefit for longer
than previously anticipated. From the point of infroduction, new claimants for
Jobseekers Allowance (income related), Income Support, Employment & Support
Allowance (income related), Child Tax Credit, Working Tax Credit and Housing Benefit

will claim Universal Credit.

Page 57



The current intention is that residents will be paid directly, and will receive calendar
monthly payments, in arrears, administered centrally by the DWP. In some cases an
alternative payment arrangement might be available for those who genuinely cannot
manage their monthly payment. This could take the form of a more frequent payment,
split payment across the household or a managed payment direct to the landlord.
Universal Credit will always be calculated based on a 52 week year. Pensioners

confinue to be excluded from these arrangements at present.

It was recently announced that starting in February 2015, Universal Credit will be rolled
out across Great Britain for all new single claims previously eligible for Jobseeker's

Allowance (JSA) including those with existing Housing Benefit and Tax Credit claims.

The current intention is that Universal Credit will be fully available during 2016 with the
majority of the remaining Housing Benefit caseload moving to Universal Credit during
2016/17. Local support will be available to help support claimants and will be provided
through local partnerships framework that has recently been rebranded and is now

referred to as “Universal Support — delivered locally”.

The fullimpact of these reforms at a local level still remains unquantifiable at present.

Right to Buy Sales

Following changes in the right to buy legislation from July 2014, which saw the higher
level of discount available index linked (using the Consumer Price Index at April of each
year) going forward, the authority continues to experience increased levels of right to

buy activity.

Future legislative changes are also expected to incorporate a reduction in the eligibility
criteria for right to buy, reducing the period from 5 to 3 years. This change forms part of
the De-Regulation Bill, which at October 2014 was sitting with the House of Lords, prior

to receiving Royal Assent.

Page 58



During 2013/14, 114 right to buy applications were received and recorded, resulting in
60 applications proceeding to completion This compares to 135 applications in the

previous year, with 41 completions.

In the first 6 months of 2014/15, 24 completions took place, which may represent the
slight slowing down in sales anticipated to occur at some point, although 62

applications were received for the same period suggesting that initial interest is still high.

Although impossible to accurately predict future sales, based upon the sustained
higher level of initial inferest in 2014/15 to date and the proposed legislative change
that the qualifying period be reduced to 3 years, which is likely to prompt another peak
in activity, it is considered prudent to retain the assumed level of sales of 60 for 2014/15
in line with sales in 2013/14, reducing to 50 in 2015/16, 40 in 2016/17, 30 in 2017/18, and

to 20 sales per annum from 2018/19.

The table below highlights the activity over the last 5 years, detailing the mix of houses,

flats and bedsits sold through this process.

Right to Buy

Status Year (RTB) Total
House Flat Bedsit
Actual Sales 2009/10 11 2 0 13
2010/11 12 5 0 17
2011/12 7 5 0 12
2012/13 26 15 0 4]
2013/14 31 28 ] 60
Estimated Sales 2014/15 30 30 0 60
2015/16 25 25 0 50
2016/17 20 20 0 40
2017/18 15 15 0 30
2018/19 10 10 0 20
8

Page 59



Right to Buy Receipts

The authority is sfill subject fo an agreement with CLG, effective from 1 April 2013,
allowing the retention of some right to buy receipts, subject to a set of specific

condifions.
The call onright to buy receipts is as follows:

e Receipts from the level of sales assumed in the Self-Financing Settlement are split
between CLG (75%) and the authority (25%) after allowable deductions. The
25% retained can be spent on any area of our housing capital programme, but
currently funds our General Fund Housing expenditure.

e For any further sales over and above those assumed in the settflement, the first
call on the receipts is a sum considered comparable with the debt that the
authority holds in respect of each dwelling. These receipts can be used for debt
repayment, or alternatively could be used for capital purposes, e.g.; investment
in new affordable housing. There is currently nothing legislatively to stop the
authority using these receipts for wider capital purposes, although CLG are clear
that the infentfion in allowing the authority to retain the sums is that the HRA has
debt relational to the dwellings sold, and should either redeem the debt or
create an asset to replace it, thus allowing the debt to continue to be
supported.

e Any residual receipt is known as a one for one (1-4-1) receipt, and in line with
the agreement with CLG must be spent to fund the delivery of new social
housing, with a maximum of 30% of any dwelling being funded via this
mechanism. The balance must be funded from the Council’s own resources or
through borrowing. There is a 3-year time limit on delivery of the new unit, with
the receipt having to be paid to central government, with interest (at 4% above

the base rate) if not spent appropriately.

It should be noted that risks remain in spending the sums retained in respect of the

aftributable debt element of the formula in the early years, as the government

Page 60



calculates the sum due to CLG on a cumulative basis year on year. If right o buy sales
fall in later years, CLG will claw back monies from all right to buy receipts in-year, until
they have arrived at the total sum due to them overall. This could mean that the
authority receives no capital receipt from right to buy sales in any one year, thus putting
at jeopardy the funding assumed to be available for the general fund housing
elements of the Housing Capital Investment Plan in the year in question, such as

Disabled Facilities Grants and Private Sector Housing Grants and Loans.

In respect of 1-4-1- receipfts, it is not possible, under the terms of the agreement with
CLG, to use the receipt to fund the development of a dwelling that is already receiving
any other form of public subsidy, e.g.; Homes and Communities Agency grant or

additional borrowing approvals through the £300 million fund.

The table below identifies the current 1-4-1 receipts held by the HRA:

Quarter date  Retained one- Retained Amount of New  Deadline for
for Receipt for-one 1-4-1 Receipt Build Receipt to be
Receipt Value Value Expenditure spent on
(Per Quarter) (Cumulative) Required Completed
(Cumulative) Dwelling
30/6/2012 0.00 0.00 0.00 N/A
30/9/2012 305,694.44 305,694.44 1,018,981.47 30/9/2015
31/12/2012 1,052,927.43 1,358,621.87 4,528,739.57 31/12/2015
31/3/2013 721,056.95 2,079,678.82 6,932,262.73 31/3/2016
30/6/2013 558,506.21 2,638,185,03 8,793,950.10 30/6/2016
30/9/2013 649,210.49 3,287,395.52 10,957,985.07 30/9/2016
31/12/2013 939.,637.07 4,227,032.59 14,090,108.63 31/12/2016
31/3/2014 1,556,452.02 5,783,484.61 19,278,282.03 31/3/2017
30/6/2014 1,039,280.75 6,822,765.36 22,742,551.20 30/6/2017
30/9/2014 517,057.26 7,339,822.62 24,466,075.40 30/9/2017
Total 7,339,822.62 7,339,822.62 24,466,075.40

Page 61

10



The authority is required to invest a significant sum in the delivery of new social housing
over the next 3 years. Although the total required expenditure to meet the above
commitment has been included in the Housing Capital Investment Plan, specific sites
need to be identified that can be delivered within the fime frames. If this is not possible,
the authority will consider the purchase of existing dwellings on the open market or
alternatively passing the funding on to a registered provider to deliver the housing,
before releasing existing and future 1-4-1 receipts directly to Central Government. A
judgement will be made in this regard at the end of each quarter, and funds will be

paid to Central Government if they are not deemed appropriately re-investable.

The authority has begun a review of the balance of investment in the current HRA
Business Plan between the provision of services, investment in existing housing stock and
in delivering or acquiring new affordable housing, as part of a fundamental review of
housing services. This review seeks to maximise the funding available for new build
housing, thus ensuring that the resources made available through the right to buy

process are retained and re-invested locally as far as possible.

Review of Local Policy Context

Portfolio Plan

The Housing Portfolio Plan will set out the Council’s strategic objectives for housing in
general across the city and will include the role of the city as a social housing landlord.
The Housing Portfolio Plan for 2015/16 will be available on the City Council website in
March 2015.

Housing Vision

The Council aims to deliver housing services in line with the following updated vision

statement and key housing objectives:

1

Page 62



Cambridge City Council’s Housing Vision

‘Fair for all’
We will provide a housing service that is fit for purpose and fair for all; that
provides a range of housing optfions and housing solutions to meet our clients’
needs; that enables independent living and that is developed alongside our

customers’ expectations.

‘A great place to live and work’
With the health and well-being of our residents a priority, we will ensure that a
rented property in Cambridge is good quality, well managed and well regulated,
and that the communities we support and develop are balanced, productive

and sustainable.

‘Caring for our environment’
Our homes will be at the forefront of sustainable living. We will build and maintain
homes to a standard that is mirrored across all rented tenures and by all housing

providers within the City.

Cambridge City Council’s Housing Objectives

‘Fair for all’

Tackling and preventing homelessness
Tackling anti-poverty and social exclusion; ensuring fair services for alll
Expanding and encouraging resident involvement; engaging with harder to
reach groups
Providing a range of housing options and rent products to meet all housing need,
supporting those on low incomes to access housing.
Providing easy access to a fair, well regulated, good quality private rented

sector; improving awareness of landlords’ and tenant rights and responsibilities.

12

Page 63



Recognising the need to demonstrate value for money, fairly charging for
services and seeking out efficiencies.
Recognising and respecting difference, balancing organisational objectives with
our customers’ expectations.
Enabling people to live independently, working with partner agencies, and
increasing customer awareness of services and support available to them.

Responding to the needs of, and protecting, our vulnerable clients.

‘A great place to live and work’

Optimising how the Council manages its homes and estates.
Improving the quality of Council homes and rented homes in the private sector.
Ensuring housing provision in a range of sizes and types of tenure (social and
infermediate housing), affordable to all.

Recognising links between health & housing; working positively with partner
organisations
Maximising the supply of social housing; building ourselves or facilitating others.
Creating mixed, balanced and sustainable new communities, whilst recognising
and tackling inequality in our established communities.

Positively tackling crime and anti-social behaviour.

Working with our customers, incorporating their views in service development,

consulting broadly and responding positively to the outcomes.

‘Caring for our environment’
Tackling utility poverty, improving energy and water efficiency of both Council

homes and those in the private rented sector.
Building energy and water efficient housing to meet housing need and
developing a sustainable building programme.
Developing build standards in consultation with our customers, aligning standards

with expectations in the private rented sector.

13

Page 64



Housing Stock

Cambridge City Council Housing Revenue Account owns and manages the following

properties, broken down by category of housing provided:

Actual Stock Estimated Stock
Housing Category Numbers as at Numbers as at

1/4/2014 1/4/2015
General Housing — Social 6,511 6,350
General Housing - Affordable 0 4]
Housing for Older People - Affordable 19 19
Sheltered Housing 521 507
Supported Housing 24 24
Temporary Housing (Incl. HMO / EA’s) 70 71
Miscellaneous Leased Dwellings 19 18
Shared Ownership Dwellings 84 83
Total Dwellings 7,248 7,113

A breakdown of the housing stock by property type, excluding shared ownership, is

demonstrated in the table below:

Estimated Stock

Actual Stock Numbers
Numbers as at

Stock Category (Property Type) as at 1/4/2014

1/4/2015
Bedsits 111 109
1 Bed Flat / Maisonette 1,587 1,519
2 Bed Flat / Maisonette 1,261 1,256
3 Bed Flat / Maisonette 42 34
1 Bed House / Bungalow 190 161
2 Bed House / Bungalow 1,121 1,110
3 Bed House 2,226 2,227
4 Bed House 96 98
5 Bed House 7 7
6 Bed House 2 2
Sheltered Housing 521 507
Total Dwellings 7.164 7,030

14

Page 65



Leasehold Stock

The Housing Revenue Account continues to maintain the freehold in respect of flats,
sold under the right o buy process on long leases. Services continue to be provided to
these properties in respect of repairs and improvements to communal areas and

services for common facilities.

At 15t April 2014, the Council retained the freehold and managed the leases for 1,109

leasehold flats.

Housing Demand

The mix of new housing delivered by the Housing Revenue Account confinues to be
influenced by numbers on the housing register locally and the Affordable Housing
Supplementary Planning Document (AHSPD), which shows what the dwelling mix should
be for new homes between 2011 and 2031, based on a continuation of frends from
1991 to 2010. It may become necessary to seek a review of the AHSPD in the light of the

impact of welfare reform on housing needs from 2010.

Support Service Contracts

Cambridge City Council entered into a new confract for the delivery of support
services to older people across the city from 30t April 2014. The contract runs for three
years, with an option to extend for up to two further years, but with services delivered
on a city-wide basis, and not just to HRA residents as was the case under the previous
contract. The demand for support services across the city as a whole is still
unquantifiable, but all existing service recipients are undergoing needs assessments
during the first year of the new contract, and support services will then be targeted at
those in the greatest need, with signposting to other agencies available for those with

lower support need:s.

The authority is also contracted to deliver support services in both extra care housing

(as part of the Ditchburn Place care contract) and temporary accommodation across

15

Page 66



the housing stock. The current contracts have been operating under temporary
extensions whilst the County Council decided upon the most appropriate delivery
vehicle for the future. Discussions are underway in respect of a 10 month extension to
the care contract, with a view to working in partnership after this. The future provision of

County Council funded support services in temporary housing is still unclear.

Funding for the provision of alarms, and the telephone response to alarms, in sheltered
and older persons housing is being phased out by the County Council, with the
expectation that its continued provision across our housing stock will form the basis of a
separately identified service charge, which would be payable by all residents
benefiting from the service, and not just the proportion who are self-funders, as is the

case at present.

The table below summarises the current funding received for the provision of support

services:
Contracted
No. of Support . .
Contract Contract Contract Status Income RELS Jf Ongomg
Uit 2015/16 Assumptions
(£)
Block Gross Uncertainty exists
Temporary Housing 60 Confract— 0 around County
Extension Expires Council’s plans after
31/3/2015. March 2015.
Risks exist that
Fixed Price City- 180,000 additional funding for
Wide Contract — (plus £51,700 an initially higher
Expires TUPE funding staffing level will cease,
Older People . . 30/4/2017, with whilst staff  whilst demand for
. City-Wide . . .
Support Services an option to numbers are services across the city
extend for up to ' maintained) will outstrip supply, with
2 further years services only delivered
to those in greatest
need.

. Conftract Supporting People
sheltered Housing 470 addendum to 9,440 funding for alarm
Alarms . ! . .

extend until services will cease with
16

Page 67



31/3/2016. effect from 31/3/2016
Contract Supporting People
Community Alarms 34 oddendum fo 7,830 funqlng fo.r alarm .
extend until services will cease with
31/3/2016. effect from 31/3/2016
Block Gross around he Gount
Contract (Part 45,740 Council’s plans forycore
Ditchburn Place of Care (Accounted . P
36 . at Ditchburn Place post
(Extra Care) Contract) - for outside of
. March 2015, although a
Expires the HRA) S
31/3/2015 contract extension is
' being considered
Total County Council Support Funding 294,710

Tenant and Leaseholder Consultation

STAR Survey 2014 - Satisfaction Levels

The last tenant and leaseholder satisfaction surveys were undertaken in June 2014.

For our general needs tenants, overall satisfaction in services provided by the landlord
has remained consistent since the 2012 survey; 82.5% compared to 83% in 2008 (73% to
72% on a net satisfaction basis). There has been a slight drop between 2012 and 2014 in
levels of satisfaction in three key areas — overall quality of the home, rent providing

value for money and how the Council deals with repairs and maintenance.

For our tenants in sheltered housing, overall satisfaction in services provided by the
landlord remains high at 95% (93% in 2012). There was a slight drop in satisfaction with
quality of the home; 93% in 2014 from 95% in 2012, and that rent provides value for
money; 87% in 2014 from 91% in 2012.

For leaseholders, there has been arise in overall satisfaction for leasehold services
provided by the Council; from 49% in 2012 to 63% in 2014, and in other key areas - the
neighbourhood as a place to live has increased from 59% in 2012 to 73% in 2014 and
service charges providing value for money from 30% to 43%. Satisfaction with the repairs

and maintenance service has however dropped to 42% in 2014 from 50% in 2012.

17

Page 68



STAR Survey - Identification of Tenant Investment Priorities

In both the 2012 and 2014 survey, Housing took the opportunity to ask tenants to rank a
number of areas of potential investment in their order of priority. General needs tenants

ranked the following areas of service as their 1st priority:

2012 % 2014 %
Building new council housing 23% Building new council housing 38%
Repairing your home 22% Repairing your home 23%
Tackling anti-social behaviour 13% Providing sheltered 1%
accommodation for older
people
Providing sheltered 12% Tackling anti-social behaviour 8%
accommodation for older
people
Dealing with enquiries and 11% Advice & support for those 7%
providing support to tenants seeking a home

As the table above shows, there has been a significant rise in those tenants who see
building more council homes as the top priority; repairing the home remains consistently

in second place.

STAR Survey 2014 - Planning ahead

The Housing Regulation Panel (HRP) has been tasked with helping officers develop a
programme of work that will be taken forward over the next year and beyond. Plans
include a comprehensive drill-down into areas of lower satisfaction, using the Tenant
and Leaseholder magazine Open Door to further capture opinion, using best practice
from other Local Authorities to make the changes to services that most matter to our
tenants and leaseholders and undertaking ‘hotspot’ improvements in specific services

across the City where low satisfaction has been captured at ward level.

18

Page 69



We will also continue to:

e Ensure that the post of Resident Involvement Facilitator focuses on developing
residents’ groups on estates to be an independent tenant voice.

e Run a series of features in Open Door, engaging residents with the results and
impacts of the 2014 STAR survey, as well as undertaking some further focussed
opinion polls within each edition.

e Remind Tenants’ about their top 5 priorities for investment and how we're
progressing.

e Hold Community/Environment Days showing how we listen to, and act upon,
tenants’ views, engaging with other community providers within estates so that
tenants have access to wider support

¢ Include features showing how residents are involved in the whole STAR cycle.

Partnership Working and Shared Services

The organisation recognises the benefits, and therefore promotes, partnership working
and shared services wherever possible. Opportunities to work in partnership with other
local authorities, although challenging, can deliver significant efficiencies in both cost

and service delivery termes.

Although the submission of a bid to Central Government for a City Deal did not
produce an immediate outcome from a housing perspective, discussions are underway
with South Cambridgeshire District Council, the County Council, the University and other
potential partners about the possibility of creating a Joint Venture Company / Housing
Development Vehicle to aid the delivery of new homes in the sub-region, both inside
and outside of HRA control. This approach to joint working could help increase the
supply of new housing in response to the investment in transport and infrastructure

which the Greater Cambridge City Deal will bring.

Ongoing investment in the housing stock as part of the 30-Year HRA Business Plan has

necessitated the authority procuring a new partner to deliver some of the planned

19

Page 70



maintenance services, both in terms of capital investment (including decent homes)
and planned / cyclical revenue expenditure. A new contract with TSG will come into
force in 2014/15 for the internal aspects of the programme, with options for delivering

the balance of investment being explored currently.

From a corporate perspective, the authority has decided to progress shared service
opportunities with South Cambridgeshire District Council and Huntingdonshire District
Council for the provision of ICT and Legal Services, both of which will impact the HRA.
Other shared service opportunities are currently being investigated, with the potential

for more joined up working across both HRA and strategic housing services.

External Factors

The Housing Revenue Account confinues to be impacted upon by a number of
external factors, all of which are outside of the direct control of the organisation, with
little or no ability for the organisation to influence them. In making strategic budgetary
decisions, judgements have been made about the likely direction of tfravel for many of

the factors.

Inflation Rates

Inflation rates have fluctuated significantly over the last 10 years, with a marked
reduction in the rates as measured by the Retail Price Index (RPI) and the Consumer
Price Index (CPI) over the last 4 years. This is conversely tfrue in respect of the building
industry, ‘all in tender price inflation’ cost indices, which has seen a marked recovery in

the last few years.

There has been a significant reduction in inflation rates over the last few months; with

rates at September 2014 falling again, to the lowest that they have been for 5 years.

The work undertaken in 2014, culminating in approval of the HRA Mid-Year Financial

Review in October 2014, assumed a reduction from 2.5% to the use of 2% in general

20

Page 71



inflation (CPI) for 2015/16 and beyond. Although inflation rates are currently significantly
lower than this, the position is not anficipated to contfinue at this all-time low, and
recognising that the government’s aim is to maintain CPI at 2% over the longer term, it is
not proposed that any change is made in relation to these assumptions beyond

2015/16 as part of the budget setting process.

The impact of the low rate at September 2014 in particular, when CPI fell to 1.2%, has
however been incorporated into the financial assumptions made as part of this report,
as it guides the level of rent increase applicable from April 2015. The rate of inflation
applied in respect of rent increases as part of the 2015/16 budget setting process will
therefore be 2.2%, which represents CPl at 1.2%, plus 1%, in line with the current
government guidelines. The rate of CPI assumed as part of the HRA Mid-Year Financial

Review was 2%, resulting in significantly lower rental income than originally anficipated.

Interest Rates on Lending

The Council’'s General Fund lends externally, predominantly on a short-term basis, any
cash balances that are held at any point within the financial year. In respect of any
revenue, or unapplied capital balances held by the Housing Revenue Account or
balance held in the Major Repairs Reserve, the General Fund is required to pay the

interest earned across to the Housing Revenue Account.

The level of interest that the authority has been able to earn in recent years remains
extremely low, with an average rate of 0.64% available during 2013/14. Although
anticipated to be slow, some recovery in the rates available is still predicted in the

longer term, with interest rate assumptions detailed in Appendix A.

In the future, if the HRA holds significant cash reserves, set-aside to repay an element of
debt in the future, the authority will need to consider forms of longer-term lending of
these larger sums, in order to secure the higher rates that are predicted to be available.
An alternative to this would be to explore early repayment of the HRA debt, particularly

if the benefit of doing so can be demonstrated to out-perform the interest anticipated

21

Page 72



to be earned on the retenfion of the balance until the loan's maturity date.
Consideration could also be given to the Housing Revenue Account investing in
additional property, where it can be demonstrated that investment could generate a

higher return than investments elsewhere.

Interest Rates on Borrowing

The Housing Revenue Account supports an external debt portfolio of £213,572,000,
consisting of 20 Public Works Loans Board (PWLB) maturity loans, with redemption dates

of between 26 and 45 years, at interest rates ranging between 3.46% and 3.53%.

The borrowing requirement currently identified in the next 5 years of the HRA Business
Plan will be considered internally before external funding is sought. However,
assumptions of the rates chargeable to the HRA continue to be made in line with

lending rates available externally from the PWLB for prudency.

The authority is still eligible for a certainty rate with the Public Works Loans Board, which
is renewed on an annual basis, with the current agreement confirmed until 31st October
2015. This allows the authority access to a 20 basis point reduction against the standard

PWLB rates in respect of any new borrowing.

The rates available for shorter-term borrowing are lower than those available for
borrowing of a longer-term nature, with the standard rate for maturity loans at October
2014, ranging from 2.48% over 5 years, up to 3.90% over 30 or 35 years, reducing
marginally to 3.88% over 50 years. The rates for other types of borrowing, annuity or
equal instalments of principal are generally lower over the short-term, but more similar
in respect of longer-term borrowing. If the certainty rate is still available at the point at

which the HRA is required to borrow, all published rates would be reduced by 0.2%.

Based upon the confinued downward trend in interest rates available, it is proposed to
reduce the cost of borrowing assumption in the HRA financial forecasts from 4.5% to 4%,

as detailed in Appendix A.

22

Page 73



Section 3
Housing Revenue Account Resources

Rent

Rent Arrears and Bad Debt Provision

Rent collection performance locally has been consistently good, with approximately
98% of the value of current tenant arrears brought forward and new rent due, collected

in year.

The year-end position in respect of rent debt is summarised in the table below:

Current Tenant Value of Year End
. . Value of Year End Arrears as a Arrears in Accounfts
Financial Year .
End Arrears in Accounts Percentage of (Former Tenants)
(Current Tenants) Gross Debit Raised
in the Year
31/3/2010 £625,433 2.05% £642,521
31/3/2011 £582,400 1.88% £746,852
31/3/2012 £655,177 1.98% £863,677
31/3/2013 £661,246 1.86% £862,042
31/3/2014 £619,986 1.68% £967,755

Performance in the collection of current tenant debt was improved in 2013/14, despite
the intfroduction of the first stages of welfare reform. Performance in first half of 2014/15
has been maintained, when compared with the profile in previous years. Dedicated

Assistant Housing Officers continue to work proactively with tenants affected by the

23

Page 74




benefit changes, in an attempt to minimise the financial impact on the Housing
Revenue Account and maintain or improve upon the current level of rent arrears by the
end of 2014/15. The position is anticipated to become more challenging with the
introduction of Universal Credit, based on experiences elsewhere, with authorities

seeing a marked increase in the level of rent arrears.

In an attempt to mitigate the impact on rent arrears caused by a variety of financial
pressures experienced by our tenants, the budget proposals presented in this report
incorporate the recommendation that resource is made available for an additional
member of staff. This post will work proactively with tenants before they get into
financial difficulties, using early intervention, financial advice, advocacy, sign-posting
and financial awareness training as means to minimise the numbers of households

getting into financial crisis.

A particular focus has been placed on actively pursuing, or proactively writing off,
former tenant debt in the latter part of 2013/14 and 2014/15 to date. By a point in
October 2014, former tenant debt had been reduced to £888,908, compared with the
£967,755 that was evident at the end of March 2014.

The Housing Revenue Account maintains a provision for bad and doubtful debt, with
the value of the provision reviewed annually, taking info consideratfion both the age
and value of outstanding debt at the time. At 31 March 2014, the provision for bad
debt stood at £1,259,257, representing 79% of the total debt outstanding.

Void Levels

The value of rent not collected as a direct result of void dwellings in 2013/14 was
£330,126, representing a void loss of 0.93%, Void levels remain low in 2014/15 to date,
with void loss for the first half of the year at 0.9%.

24

Page 75



On an ongoing basis, an assumption of 1% voids in general housing is still considered
prudent, recognising the release of a considerable amount of new build affordable

housing in the city, and the intention to refurbish Ditchburn Place in 3 phases.

With the requirement to pay Council Tax now for any dwelling that is empty for more
than one month, it is imperative that the time taken to undertake void works and re-let
each dwelling is minimised. Consideration is being given, sub-regionally, fo amending
the choice based lettings system to allow weekly advertising as opposed to two weekly,

which will assist this.

The requirement to pay Council Tax for vacant dwellings sooner, also impacts those
properties held vacant awaiting re-development until they are physically demolished
and means that Council Tax will be payable on new build schemes one month after

they are deemed complete by the Council Tax Inspector.

Rent Restructuring

The HRA Self-Financing debt settlement assumed that all local authorities complied with
government guidelines for setting rents, and imposed rent increases over a period of
time, until target rents were arrived at. From April 2015, the move towards target rents
will cease for existing fenants, with the ability to move only vacant properties directly to

target rent.

The formula for the calculation of target rents remains unchanged, with 30% of a
property’s rent based upon historic relative property values and 70% based upon
historic relative local earnings, combined with a factor for the number of bedrooms in
the property. The application of rent caps (a prescribed maximum level of rent
chargeable for a property of one bedroom, two bedrooms, etc.) is also retained,

although this affects very few properties owned by Cambridge City Council.

25

Page 76



There is still some discretfion in the government’s current rent restructuring regime in how
rents are set at a local level, with an option to use an element of flexibility in the
calculation of target rents (5% for general stock housing and 10% for sheltered housing),
as long as the average rent does not exceed limit rent. This option has not been

exercised locally to dafe.

Both target and actual rents are expected to be increased annually by inflation as

measured by the Consumer Price Index (CPI) at the preceding September plus 1%.

With target rents for Cambridge City Council still considerably above actual rents, it will
be many years before target rents are achieved in totality, assuming rents are only

increased when property becomes void.

The average target rent at the start of 2014/15 across the housing stock was £103.57,
with the average actual rent charged being £98.49, both recorded on a 52 week basis.
The average actual rent was therefore representative of 95% of the average target

rent.

At the time of writing this report, only 12% of the housing stock had reached target rent
levels, despite the decision to increase energy efficient void properties directly to target
from April 2013.

With the opportunity to close the gap between target and actual rents only available
at the point at which a property becomes vacant, it will be decades before the

housing stock as a whole reaches target rent levels,

Rent Policy

The local rent setting policy is subject to review as part of the January 2015 committee

cycle in a separate report to be presented to Housing Scrutiny Committee.

26

Page 77



The current policy allows for the transition of energy efficient void properties direct to
target rent before re-let. Based upon activity since April 2013, approximately 70% of
void dwellings have been re-let at target rents. The proportion has increased over the
last year as a proactive approach is taken to undertaking works during the void period
which will improve the energy efficiency of the dwelling. It is not proposed to change

this approach at present.

The updated policy also addresses the local approach to charging market rent for
households on high incomes (over £60,000), with the recommendation to defer a
decision on the implementation of this until such time as the legal mechanisms exist to

facilitate collection of the required financial data.

Rent Setting

Rent levels continue to be set in January of each year, with the Executive Councillor for
Housing having authority fo make this decision, following pre-scrutiny by Housing

Scrutiny Committee.

The HRA Business Plan is predicated on the assumption that the authority will confinue
to follow government guidelines for setting rent levels, and has been updated a
number of times since the inception of self-financing in April 2012, to reflect changes in
both national and local rent policy and the rates of inflation assumed for rent setting

PUrposes.

Any decision to increase rents at a lower rate than assumed in the business plan,
requires some form of remedial action to mitigate the financial impact if the authority

still wishes to be in a position to deliver the existing HRA Business Plan.

The rate of inflation assumed for rent setting purposes from April 2015 in the HRA Mid-
Year Financial Review was 3% (CPI at 2% plus 1%). The actual rate of inflation that will
be applicable from April 2015 is 2.2% (CPI at September 2014 of 1.2% plus 1%). This

27

Page 78



change, although resulting in lower than anticipated rent increases for existing tenants,

will result in the need to reduce costs elsewhere in the HRA as a direct consequence.

The cessation of any fransition towards target rents for existing tenants and the base
rate of inflation as measured by CPI at September 2014, will result in a rent increase for
Cambridge City Council general and sheltered tenants of 2.2%, equivalent to an

average, at the time of writing this report, of £2.18 per week on a 52-week basis.

Service Charges

Service charges are levied for services that are not pure landlord functions, and are
provided to some tenants and not others, depending upon the type, nature and
location of the property. Some of these services are eligible for housing benefit,

depending upon the nature of the service.

The majority of services provided to tenants of Cambridge City Council are now
separately identified, with the exception of communal electricity, grounds
maintenance and estate services to non-sheltered flatted accommodation, where
there is currently not considered to be any specific benefit to identifying these charges

separately.
Building cleaning and window cleaning services are subject to a review, which has
been delayed such that the new arrangements are not now expected to be in place

until after April 2015.

Charges are also recovered through rent accounts for optional third party activity such

as the Tenants Contents Insurance Scheme.

The approach to setting service charge levels for 2015/16 is detailed at Appendix B.

28

Page 79



Other Sources of Income

Garages

The Housing Revenue Account currently owns 1,795 residential garages, and manages
a further 23 on behalf of the General Fund. 93 of these garages are currently identified
for demolition as part of the affordable housing development programme schemes

approved to date.

Following a review of garage provision, the HRA has now adopted a variable charging
structure, with charges reviewed annually as part of the budget process. The proposed

garage charging structure for 2015/16 is as follows:

Rent VAT Total Percentage
Charge Increase
Category £ perrent £ perrent .
£ perrent on previous
week week
week year
Tenant of City Homes 9.55 0.00 9.55 2%
(for storing a motorised vehicle)
Other Resident with Garage within 9.55 1.91 11.46 2%
2 mile of address
(for storing a motorised vehicle)
Other Resident (Within Cambridge 11.59 2.32 13.91 2%
City) with Garage over 2 mile of
address
(for storing a motorised vehicle)
Public Body/Charity 15.95 3.19 19.14 2%
(for storing a motorised vehicle)
Non Cambridge City resident or 17.99 3.60 21.59 2%
Business / Commercial / General
Storage Use
Tenant of City Homes 17.99 3.60 21.59 2%
(For general storage)
City Homes Use 17.99 0.00 17.99 2%
29

Page 80



Of the garages available for letting, 25% are currently void, with total void loss to the
end of October 2014 of 25.8%. In addition to the 93 (5%) of garages identified for
demolition as part of the current new build programme, a number of other garage
blocks have been identified for feasibility work as part of the 3 year affordable housing
rolling programme. Targeted work is anticipated to market all garages available for
letting in the near future, using a variety of communication media, to include Open

Door.

Commercial Property

Rental income from commercial property contfinues to fluctuate due to the fiming of
lease renewals for the small portfolio of shops and other business premises that are
ownhed by the HRA.

In 2014/15 the income generated by the commercial property portfolio is anticipated
to be in the region of £408,000, increasing to £420,000 from 2015/16.

Some small businesses are still experiencing difficulties in terms of financial viability for
their operation, and as such the HRA is experiencing bad debt and some difficulty in

letting commercial property as a direct result.

Interest / Investment Income

The Housing Revenue Account receives interest on general or ear-marked revenue
balances, any funds set-aside in the major repairs reserve and the revenue debt

repayment reserve and more recently any unapplied capital balances.

The General Fund invests all cash balances for the whole authority and the HRA s
entitled to claim a share of the actual interest earned at the end of each financial
year, based upon the average HRA cash balance throughout the year at the average

external rate of interest.

30

Page 81



Rates have been at historically low levels for the last 4 years, and recovery is sfill

anticipated to be slow.

Other External Funding

In addition to income direct from service users, the Housing Revenue Account

anticipates receiving external funding in the following forms:

o Homes and Communities Agency (HCA) Grant — The authority was awarded grant
of £2,587,500 to build 146 new and re-developed homes before March 2015. Due
to both delays in the new build programme and recent announcements by the
HCA that schemes must have started on site by a specified date to comply with
the grant requirements, the authority only expects to receive £1,659,630 in grant
funding by the end of 2014/15, towards the development of 88 dwellings. There
remains the opportunity to bid for grant for on some of these new homes that will

complete in 2015/16.

o Supporting Funding — The level of funding via the Supporting People Programme
has reduced significantly over the last 10 years. From May 2014 the authority
contracted directly with the County Council for the provision of support to older
people across the city, but uncertainty still exists for the future of funding for

temporary housing services.

Earmarked & Specific Funds

Earmarked Funds — Revenue Reserves

In addition to General Reserves, the Housing Revenue Account maintains a number of
earmarked or specific funds which are held against major expenditure of a non-
recurring nature or where income is received for a specific purpose. The number, and

purpose, of ear-marked reserves has been considered as part of the 2015/16 budget

31

Page 82



process, with the resulting proposals summarised below. See Appendix C for details of

the current level of funding in the reserves proposed for retention.

Repairs & Renewals

These are maintained to fund major repairs of Council-owned administrative premises
and periodic replacement of assets such as vehicles, plant, equipment and furniture.
Annual confributions are based on estimated replacement costs, spread over the

anticipated life of the assefts.

These funds have been subject to a major zero-based review during 2014/15, with
recommendations including a net reduction in the annual contribution to the funds of
£40,710, and a one-off release of £823,400 of the ear-marked fund held back into
general HRA reserves, both recognising that items have not been replaced as often as
anticipated historically and that replacements values of many items are now lower due

to corporate buying decisions.

Major Repairs Reserve

From April 2012, this statutory ear-marked reserve is being contributed to on an annual
ongoing basis from the Housing Revenue Account, recognising the need to depreciate
the housing stock, or in effect set-aside sufficient resource to maintain the asset base in

a lettable state.

Any resource available in the Major Repairs Reserve can be utilised as a source of
funding in the Housing Capital Investment Plan, with the expectation that the increase
each year by an element representing depreciation for the housing stock, will be
reduced by an element that represents the need to fund the relevant expenditure in

ensuring the housing stock remains decent.

Shared Ownership

A reserve of £300,000 has historically been maintained to enable the HRA, in any one

year, to re-purchase shares of properties where the occupier wishes to move on, thus

32

Page 83



ensuring that the limited stock is made available for those on the shared ownership

register.

In many cases, the funding for shared ownership is re-circulated, with the HRA buying
back and selling on a dwelling in the same financial year. As such, the demand on this
reserve has been negligible in recent years, and it is therefore proposed to remove this
specific reserve and instead to utilise and pay back general HRA reserves if and when

the need arises.

Tenants Survey

The Tenants Survey reserve allows the Housing Revenue Account to spread the costs of
the STAR Tenants and Leaseholder Survey evenly across financial years, despite the
survey only being undertaken formally every two years. This does not detract from the
possibility that an element of annual activity may take place to gauge changes in

opinion by small survey sampling, i.e. focus groups.

HRA Aerial Monies

Mobile telephone aerials have been installed on the roofs of a number of the flat blocks
within the HRA. The authority leases the roof space to the telecoms provider for an
annual lease premium / rental fee. This income is appropriated info an ear-marked
reserve, to allow offset of an element of expenditure specific to the area in which the
mast is installed. Consideration is being given to wider use of the balance that has

accumulated in the fund to date.

Pension Reserve

This reserve was created to address anticipated increases in employer confributions
following the triennial review of the Pension Fund and outcomes of the fundamental
structural review of public service pension provision by the Public Services Pensions

Commission, chaired by Lord Hutton.

33

Page 84



The impact of the triennial valuation has now been fully included in budgets, therefore
the remaining balance (£389,960) is no longer needed and will be released to general

HRA reserves, in line with the approach being taken in the General Fund.

HRA Set-Aside for Potential Debt Repayment or Future Re-Investment

The implementation of self-financing saw the HRA take on an opening debt of
£213,572,000. The 30-year Business Plan, approved in February 2012, adopted a treasury
management strategy that resulted in a portfolio of 20 maturity loans with varying
maturity dates. The financial model allows for the set-aside of surplus revenue resource
over the life of the plan to ensure that a proportion of the loans can be redeemed at

the maturity date,, should the authority choose to redeem debt.

To ensure that this is possible, resource is being appropriated, if available, at the end of
each financial year into this ear-marked reserve in preparation for debt redemption at
the appropriate time, should the authority choose to redeem as opposed o re-finance.
Alternatively this reserve may be used to fund investment in expansion of the housing

portfolio, with a conscious decision to re-finance debt at loan maturity.

This approach of using an ear-marked reserve, as opposed to making a formal
voluntary revenue provision (VRP), allows the HRA to retain full flexibility over the use of

the set aside balance in the future.

Earmarked Funds — Capital Receipts
Right to Buy Attributable Debt Ear-Marked Capital Receipt

The HRA is eligible to retain an element from all right to buy receipts over and above
those assumed in the initial self-financing settlement, in recognition of the debt which
the authority was required to take on as at 28t March 2012. The sums retained will be
identified in a separate ear-marked capital balance, allowing them to be utilised to

repay debt should the authority so choose, or reinvest as deemed appropriate.

34

Page 85



Right to Buy Retained one-for-one Ear-Marked Capital Receipt

Within the terms of the Right to Buy Receipt Retention Agreement, the authority may
retain receipts from additional right to buy sales for a period of up to 3 years, for the
express purpose of re-investment in new affordable housing. If not utilised within the
time frame, the Council must pay the funds, with interest at 4% above the bank base
rate, to central government. To ensure that these resources are separately identified for
re-investment, and if necessary, repayment purposes, an ear-marked balance will be

identified to hold the balance aft any one fime.

35

Page 86



Section 4
Housing Revenue Account Budget

Post-HRA Business Plan Update
Approvals

There were no revenue decisions impacting the Housing Revenue Account taken
between the publication of the HRA Mid-Year Financial Review (approved as part of
the September / October committee cycle) and publication of this document. Such
decisions, including any made under urgency arrangements, together with financial

implications would be noted here.

There are capital implications to take into account in reviewing the final budget
proposals in relation to scheme specific amendments given by urgent decision or by
entering into unconditional contract, for HRA new build and re-development schemes,
and any new schemes which are presented in the January committee cycle. The

schemes where the financial implications will need to be included are:

o Wadloes Road
o Hawkins Road (Garage Site)
. Fulbourn Road (Garage Site)

. Ekin Road (Garage Site)
o Aylesborough Close

. Water Lane

. Campkin Road

° Homerton

36

Page 87




It should be noted that there are various stages to setting the budgets for new build
schemes. Initially a budget is approved based on an indicative scheme. This approval
in effect, confirms that a scheme is viable and gives permission for the scheme to be
developed to submit a planning application. As the design of a scheme is being
developed, should the final design and planning considerations result in a change to
the cost or funding proposals, the budget will be formally revised in the Mid-Year
Financial Review or annual Budget Setting Report whichever is applicable. If there is a
significant adverse change in the cost then Executive Councillor re-approval will be

required in line with the Council’s financial regulations.

Revised Budget 2014/15

The Housing Revenue Account (HRA) revenue budgets for the current year (2014/15)
were reviewed as part of the HRA Mid-Year Financial Review in September 2014. It is
not proposed to undertake a further review of the current year as part of the budget

setting process, but instead to report the position at outturn.

The only exceptions to this are the proposals to recognise in year, due to the size or
nature of the changes, a decision not to deliver the Prior To Re-Paint (PTR) planned
repairs programme in 2014/15 and changes in inferest payments due to the setfing
aside of monies for potential debt repayment as part of the Mid-Year financial Review.
Due to a change in planned maintenance contfractor, and the inability to award a
single contract for external works as part of the procurement process, the authority is
reviewing its approach to the delivery of this planned revenue programme. Whilst this
review takes place, the current year's programme has been put on hold, but is
anticipated to begin again from 2015/16. This results in a proposal to reduce the
planned repairs budget by £1,100,000 in 2014/15. This is partially offset by a net increase
in interest antficipated to be paid in 2014/15 of £15,370, as detailed in Appendix D (1).

37

Page 88



2014/15 Revised Budget

Net HRA Use of /
(Contribution to) Reserves

Savings

Unavoidable Revenue
Bids

Non-Cash Limit
Adjustments

Revised Net HRA Use of /
(Contribution to) Reserves

Variation on previously
reported projection

Original HRA Mid-
Budget Year Review
January September
2014 2014
£ £
(70,490) 5,895,820

HRA BSR
Proposed
Changes

£

(1,100,000)
0

15,370

HRA BSR
January
2015
£

4,811,190

(1,084,630)

The above figures include carry forward approvals from 2013/14 in the second and third

columns, with the net saving identified in the current year, as part of the January 2015

committee cycle, incorporated in the right-hand column. The net reduction in

expenditure for 2014/15 will result in a lower call on the use of Housing Revenue

Account reserves than anficipated.

Overall Budget Position and Priority
Policy Fund (PPF) - 2015/16 onwards

Overall Budget Position

The overall revenue budget position for the Housing Revenue Account is summarised in

the table below, with detail on an item by item basis for the period to 2018/19 provided

in Appendix D (1):

Page 89

38



Proposal Type

Reduction required to
meet Cash Limit

Transformation Savings
Transformation Costs
Savings

Unavoidable Revenue Bids

Net Savings Position above
/ (below) Savings
Requirement

PPF Funding

PPF Bids

Net PPF Position - Above /
(Below) Available Funding

Net Position above /
(below) Overall Cash Limit
for the HRA

Non-Cash Limit
Adjustments

Net Position for the HRA
above / (below) overall
assumptions

2015/16
£

113,000

(66,000)
38,000
(392,210)
173,400

(133,810)

(150,000)

138,060

(11,940)

(145,750)

1,115,850

970,100

Non-Cash Limit Budgets

2016/17
£

113,000

(166,000
95,000
(288,170)
107,740

(138,430)

(150,000)

128,950

(21,050)

(159,480)

10,330

(149,150)

2017/18
£

113,000

(232,000)
95,000
(288,170)
107,740

(204,430)

(150,000)

107,540

(42,460)

(246,890)

190,330

(56,560)

2018/19
£

113,000

(269,000)
33,000
(288,170)
107,740

(303,430)

(150,000)

107,540

(42,460)

(345,890)

370,330

24,440

2019/20
£

113,000

(269,000)
24,000
(288,170)
107,740

(312,430)

(150,000)

107,540

(42,460)

(354,890)

550,330

195,440

Non-Cash Limit items are those that do not relate directly to the cost of service

provision, including for example dwelling rent income, direct revenue funding of capital

expenditure (DRF) and investment income.

These items are treated outside of the

2015/16 cash limit, with the implications built into the financial forecasts for the HRA as

part of the budget process, informing future budget strategy, savings targets and

Page 90

39



investment priorities. Full details of these for the period to 2018/19 are given in Appendix
D (1).

Performance against Savings Target

As in previous years, a savings target for the HRA as a whole has been adopted, rather

than allocating individual savings requirements to specific service areas or cost centres.

As shown in the table above, savings have been identified, which are partially offset by
the HRA reacting to unavoidable revenue pressures, but with the net position being an
over-achievement against the savings target for 2015/16 of £133,810, increasing to
£138,430 for 2016/17, £204,430 for 2017/18, £303,430 for 2018/19 and £312,430 from
2019/20 onwards.

The result of transformation activity corporately will have a financial impact on the HRA
in many cases, but the detail is not always available at the outset of each project. It is
difficult to fully predict the impact in monetary terms of savings to the HRA from in-
direct service reviews, as the detail surrounding revised recharging mechanisms is not
usually completed until the after the transformation activity is complete and resulting

changes have been made.

For prudency, any anticipated savings to the HRA are only included once the activity is
confirmed corporately as being far enough progressed that some certainty can be

given to the incidence of impact between the General Fund and the HRA.

Significant savings have been incorporated into the HRA in this budget process, as part
of the fundamental change in support service delivery models anticipated over the

coming years.

40

Page 91



Priority Policy Fund (PPF)

The Housing Revenue Account PPF makes money available for new and expanding
service areas, recognising the priorities identified through the Annual Statement and

the STAR Tenants and Leaseholder Survey.

The HRA Mid-Year Financial Review of September 2014 assumed a confinued level of
funding for HRA PPF Bids of £150,000 per annum for the period from 2015/16 to 2019/20.

The current list of PPF Bids is shown in Appendix D (1). In reviewing PPF Bids for approval,
consideration is given to the relative value of PPF Bids compared to the additional

Savings that their inclusion would require.

As shown in the table above, the demand for PPF funding in 2015/16 and beyond is
lower than the funding available for this period, and as a result the HRA can support all
PPF bids, subject to being satisfied that the investment will provide tangible benefits to

fenants.

Any shortfall in PPF funding against the bids proposed, can be addressed by:

Reducing the level of direct revenue funding of capital

Reducing any ability to set-aside resource to repay housing debt

ldentifying additional areas of saving to allow increased targeted investment

Reducing the level of PPF funding available in future years

Any surplus in PPF funding in any year can be utilised to either:

e Increase the level of direct revenue funding of capital
¢ Increase the ability to set-aside resource to repay housing debt
e Offset any under-achievement in net savings, or a negative impact of non-cash

limit items, to mitigate an increased savings requirement in future years

41

Page 92



Section 5
Housing Capital Budget

Stock Condition and Decent Homes

Stock condition data is continually updated in respect of the housing stock, improving

the information held to inform future decision making.

Work has happened to identify much of the investment need in the communal areas of
both sheltered and flatted accommodation, with findings being collated to form part
of the review of the Housing Capital Investment Plan during 2015/16. Until this point, the
uplift of £75.00 per property per annum, as recommended by Savills, has been retained
in the Housing Capital Investment Plan for future years, although funds identified and
not spent in earlier years are being recommended for re-direction into other areas of

investment.

The housing service reported achievement of decency in the housing stock as at 31
March 2014 at 97.9%, with 151 properties that were considered to be non-decent (in
addition to refusals). A further 510 properties were anticipated to become non-decent
during 2014/15.

To meet the national standard and be decent, a home must meet the current statutory
minimum standard for housing, must be in a reasonable state of repair, must have
reasonably modern facilities and services must provide a reasonable degree of thermal

comfort.

42

Page 93




As part of the original HRA 30-Year Business Plan and Asset Management Plan,
approved in February 2012, the authority reduced the assumed lives of a number of
decent homes elements, moving from a basic decent homes standard to a full
investment standard. This decision is reviewed as part of the financial planning
processes, responding to the need to set a budget with a balance of investment
between existing dwellings, housing services and the supply of additional affordable

housing.

From April 2015 it is recommended to increase the assumed life of the replacement of
PVCU windows to 40 years, as recommended in the decent homes standard, which is
not expected to have a detrimental impact on the authority’s ability to maintain
decency. Any impact of this change in the volume or cost of responsive repairs in

respect of windows will be carefully monitored from April 2015.

All elements of the programme will be reviewed in the coming year as part of a

fundamental review of the Housing Capital Investment Plan.

The Asset Management Plan, originally approved in February 2012, and subject to a
review during 2015, addresses the approach being taken to meet the investment need
in Housing Revenue Account assets over a 30-year period. An update of the medium-
term investment position, for the period from 2014/15 to 2019/20 is included af

Appendix |.

New Build Affordable Housing

New Build & Re-Development —2011-15 Programme

Work continues to deliver the 2011-15 New Build Programme (146 programme), where
at the time of writing this report the first 20 dwellings had been completed at Jane’s

Court. The programme was originally constructed on the basis of delivering 146 new

43

Page 94



and re-developed homes in the city, utilising £2,587,500 of Homes and Communities

Agency grant.

Delays in the delivery process and recent announcements by the HCA of the need to
be on site earlier than anticipated for each scheme to be eligible to receive the grant
awarded, will mean the authority will not receive the full grant sum. To mitigate the
impact of both this, and some increased costs in respect of some of the later sites as
they have gone through the development process, an urgent decision approved the
use of retained right to buy receipts as an alternative funding source. The use of right to
buy receipts is sufficient to be able to mitigate the impact of any loss of grant or
increase in development costs in relation to the schemes at Wadloes Road, Ekin Road,
Hawkins Road, Fulbourn Road, Aylesborough Close, Campkin Road and Water Lane.
The current financial impact, both in terms of total revised scheme costs and funding

mix is shown in the following table.

44

Page 95



HRA BSR

Funding Stream

cres Retained
Scheme Aifjord?lble Land A CIe Right to Net HRA
ousing . Other
Subsidy Buy Resources
Cost for Grants .
Receipts
Approval

Jane's Court | 2,733,070  (1,500,000)  (354,460) 0 (878,610
Latimer Close | 2,445,600  (875,860) = (212,680) 0 (1,357,060)
Barnwell
coo 2,111,190 = (1,043,550) = (212,680) 0 (854,960)
ggggpk'” 4275620 | (1,557,520)  (230,400) 0 (2,487,700)
Colville Road = 3,091,620 = (1,598,030)  (336,740) 0 (1,156,850)
Stanesfield 1,107,430 (536,890) | (170,890) 0 (399,650)
Road
Afkins Close | 1,224,180 (635,750) | (141,780) 0 (446,650)
Wadloes 1,001,730 (231,550} 0 (300,520) = (469,660)
Road
Hawkins 1,493,890 0 0 (448,170) | (1,045,720)
Road
Fulbourn 1,399,470 0 0 (419,840)  (979,630)
Road
Ekin Road 1,132,760 0 0 (339,830) (792,930
Water Lane 2,206,550 (561,590) 0 0 (1,644,960)
Avlesborough 4 340880 (1,562,880) 0 0 (2,798,000
Close
Total 3Year ;4 £a3 990 ' (10,103,620) (1,659.630) (1,508,360) (15,312,380)
Programme

As the point at which each scheme received specific committee approval, the
indicative cost of the scheme was incorporated into the Housing Capital Investment
Plan. As each scheme design progresses and planning approval is achieved, revised
and more accurate scheme costs are available. It is not until the build contract for
each scheme becomes unconditional, that the final scheme budget can be
confirmed. As part of the HRA Budget Setting Report, the latest scheme appraisal costs
have been incorporated into the financial models, and therefore the Housing Capital

Investment Plan.

45

Page 96



The table below shows the status of each scheme in this programme:

Scheme

Jane's Court

Latimer Close

Barnwell
Road
Campkin
Road

Colville Road
Stanesfield

Road

Atkins Close

Wadloes
Road
Hawkins
Road
Fulbourn
Road

Ekin Road

Water Lane

Aylesborough

Close
Total

Status

Complete

Unconditional

Unconditional

Unconditional
Unconditional
Unconditional
Unconditional

Unconditional

Not in
Confract
Not in
Conftract
Noft in
Conftract
Noft in
Confract

Unconditional

HRA MFR
Approved
Social
Housing
Units

14

20
158

HRA MFR
Net
Funding
Approved
(Capital
Cost net
of Grant
and Land
Transfer)

878,610
1,357,060

854,960

2,363,640
1,156,850
399.650
446,650
568,760

1,193,990
1,127,200
828,520
1,644,960

2,659,070
15,479,920

HRA BSR
Revised
Social
Housing
Units for
Approval

12
12

20
19

14

20
158

HRA BFR

Net HRA

Funding
for

Percentage Approval

Social
Housing on
Site

59%
60%

59%

63%
58%
50%
67%
67%

100%
100%
100%
58%

57%
63%

(Capital
Cost net
of Grant,
Land
Transfer
and RTB
Receipts)

878,610
1,357,060

854,960

2,487,700
1,156,850
399.650
446,650
469,660

1,045,720
979.630
792,930

1,644,960

2,798,000
15,312,380

The Housing Capital Investment Plan, an updated version of which is attached at

Appendix |, incorporates the funding for new build schemes as identified in the tables

Page 97

46



above. It recognises the need for gross spend on the affordable housing scheme, land
values, grant and right to buy receipts to be shown separately, but arriving at the net
cash cost to the Council as per the table above. For these purposes the use of retained
right to buy receipt is treated as an external funding source, recognising that failure to
ufilise it as required statutorily, would result in the need to pay the receipt over to

Central Government

As an addition to the 2011-15 New Build Programme, the assumption remains that the
authority purchases a further 13 dwellings on the development sites at Colville Road,
Wadloes Road and Atkins Close, which were previously ear-marked for markeft sale. The
authority has already exchanged contracts in respect of 9 of the dwellings and will
deliver the remaining 4 dwellings via a direct build contract. This decision allows the use

of further retained right to buy receipt.

A single additional dwelling will also be completed during 2014/15 at Anstey Way,
where Hill have provided an affordable home for the price of the HRA land upon which
they have erected a single market property for sale, as a pilot project for the Clay Farm

development.

New Build — Clay Farm

Work is progressing with Hill, for the development of the Clay Farm site, which will deliver
104 new affordable dwellings which the City Council will own and manage. Following
consideration at Community Services Committee in January 2014 and subsequent
approval by Council in February 2014, the scheme will deliver a tenure mix comprising

78 affordable rented dwellings and 26 shared ownership dwellings.

The scheme was considered by the Planning Committee in November 2014, where
planning permission was granted. Work is anficipated to start on site in April 2015, with
the first homes available for occupation by April 2016 and the site reaching completion
in full by June 2017.

47

Page 98



The funding mix for the scheme includes the use of retained right to buy receipts to
fund 30% of the social rented housing on the site, which maximises the use of these
receipts against this scheme. It is assumed that the balance of the costs will be met
from existing HRA resource and borrowing, ensuring that the scheme incorporated into

the Housing Capital Investment Plan is financially viable.

New Build — Homerton

Approval in principle was given by Housing Scrutiny committee in September 2014 for
the authority to deliver and manage the anficipated 39 units of affordable housing on
the Homerton Development site. As with Clay Farm, the site as a whole is being built out
by Hill. A planning application has been submitted for the scheme by Hill, with formal
planning consideration anticipated by February 2015. If approval is given, it is
anticipated that work could start on site in May 2015, with completion by May 2017.
Scheme specific approvalis being sought for this site as part of the January 2015
committee cycle, and the financial implications of the proposals have been

incorporated into the financial forecasts for the HRA and into this budget setting report.

New Build — Other

The Housing Capital Investment Plan also ear-marks significant resources for the period
from 2015/16 for investment in other new build housing schemes. The authority is
currently investigating a number of potential development opportunities, and is
undertaking discussions with a number of external partners in this regard. The sites
include the HRA owned sites that form part of the 3 year rolling programme, general
fund owned sites, such as that at Mill Road and proposed / potential developments on
land owned by other public bodies. Each of these potential investment opportunities
and others as they arise, are investigated, with scheme specific proposals presented to

Housing Scrutiny Committee once the initial feasibility work has been concluded.

Expenditure and funding sources, on a cashflow basis, for all new build schemes are

detailed at Appendix F.

48

Page 99



Asset Disposals & Acquisitions

Consideration confinues to be given to the strategic acquisition or disposal of assets,
following approval of the HRA Acquisition and Disposal Policy in June 2013. The capital
receipt generated by a strategic disposal can be retained in full by the authority,
subject to offsetting it against the authority housing capital allowance and utilising it to
invest in affordable housing. Receipts from individual asset disposals continue to be
recognised in the HRA's reserves only at the point of receipt and after all relevant costs

have been provided for.

The following HRA assets have recently been, or are being, considered for market

acquisition or disposail:

Potential
Acquisition /
Disposal / Change Comment Status
of Use

Dwelling requires significant investment. In negotiation
Approval to dispose of leasehold dwelling

18A Magrath and freehold jointly with the neighbour to

Avenue achieve the benefit of a share in the
higher marriage value for the asset as a
whole.
Dwelling is a 3-bedroomed detached Under

house in a non-estate location. Options Investigation
for this property are currently being
considered as the dwelling is vacant.

Engineers House

Dwelling is a 2 bedroom flat, which was Under
Ex. Councill previously sold under the right o buy, with | Investigation
Property the owner occupier offering the Council

the opportunity to buy back if desired.

Dwelling is a 2 bedroom bungalow, which = Under

was previously sold under the right to buy, | Investigation
with the owner occupier offering the

Council the opportunity to buy back if

desired.

Ex. Councill
Property

All ex-Council dwellings that are subject to the right of first refusal legislation contfinue to

be considered for re-purchase against the criteria agreed when the legislation was

49

Page 100



infroduced, including whether a property meets an identified need for specific

accommodation or could form part of a site assembly for a future re-development.

Officer decisions about the future of existing shared ownership assets are now made in
line with the delegations agreed at Community Services Scrutiny Committee in January

2014, with options to:

e Buy back and sell a share to another applicant
e Buy back to use as general rented stock
e Buy back and sell the whole property on the open market

e Advise the seller to sell their share sold on the open market

The agreement with Communities and Local Government (CLG) to retain additional
right to buy receipts for re-investment in the provision of new affordable housing allows
the strategic acquisition of existing dwellings in the city, as an alternative to building
new dwellings. Although this is a less attractive proposition than the creation of a new
dwelling for the city, it is none the less a viable option to increase the supply of social
housing in the city, where new build is not possible within a quarterly deadline for the

use of retained receipts.

It is likely that a mix of new build and acquisition of existing dwellings will be required in
2015/16, with any acquisitions being funded from the capital sums ear-marked for new
build funded partly by unallocated right to buy receipts. A separate future report will be
presented to Housing Scrutiny Committee, considering the process for delegation and
approval for the strategic acquisition of properties, recognising the need to act quickly

in the market place.

50

Page 101



Capital Bids

Detailed in Appendix D are the capital bids for the period from 2015/16 to 2019/20, with
the impact of these incorporated intfo the Housing Capital Investment Plan presented

at Appendix |. The bids include:

o One-off capital funding of £22,500 in 201516, for the purchase and implementation
of the self-service (customer facing) module of the Orchard Housing Management
Information System, should the benefits be clearly demonstrable once the business

case for purchase is complete.

o One-off contribution of £30,000 in 2015/16, to the Sub-Regional Choice Based
Leftings partnership for a contribution towards the purchase and implementation
of a replacement Choice Based Lettings IT system, should replacement be

deemed the appropriate route following a forthcoming review of the system.

Also incorporated info the Housing Capital Investment Plan at Appendix | is the

financial and presentational impact of the following changes:

o Amending the asset life for PVCU windows in line with the proposal on page 41 of
this document, from the previous 25, to a 40 year life cycle. This change delivers a
saving in capital investment in the existing housing stock of approximately £10
million over the next 10 years, after which time the programme of replacement

would begin again.

. Re-allocation of backlog resource of £976,000, originally ear-marked for works to
communal areas, which had previously been re-phased into 2015/16 and 2016/17
where works were not delivered in the earlier years of self-financing whilst surveys
were undertaken. It is proposed to instead ear-mark this funding in 2015/16 and
2016/17 for potential investment in some of the larger garage sites, where either

major remedial works are required or it is considered that demand would be

51

Page 102



higher with significant investment in the blocks. A business case will be prepared
before any resource is committed to a specific scheme, which will be considered
by Housing Management Team and pre-approved by the Director of Customer &
Community Services before the Executive Councillor for Housing is asked to

approve that a project can proceed.

Amendments to the approved level of investment for the schemes in the 2011-15

new build programme, as detailed earlier in this section of the report.

Amendments to the approved funding mix for the schemes in the 2011-15 new
build programme, in response to both changes in HCA grant expectations and in

costs, as detailed earlier in this section of the report.

Inclusion of funding for the Homerton development as outlined earlier in this
section of the report, and in line with the scheme specific report being presented

as part of the January 2015 committee cycle.

Amendments to the level of resource ear-marked for investment in the acquisition
or creation of new social housing, based upon the latest projections of investment
required to be in a position to confinue to retain and appropriately utilise right to

buy receipfs.

Re-direction of existing resource previously identified as Cambridge Standard
Investment, to create a new City Homes Estate Improvement Programme, with a
view to increasing the future level of investment in this area, as part of the
Fundamental Review of the HRA and Housing Service which will take place during
2015.

52

Page 103



Section 6
HRA Treasury Management

Background

It is a statutory requirement for a Housing Revenue Account Council to set a balanced
budget, recognising the revenue implications that arise from capital financing
decisions. When approving any capital expenditure in the Housing Revenue Account,
consideration is given not only to the ability to fund the direct capital expenditure, but
also to the revenue implications of both the financing decision and the ongoing cost of

managing and maintaining the asset.

The Housing Capital Investment Plan provides an indication of the borrowing need of
the HRA in any one year, ensuring that this can be incorporated in the Council’'s overall

borrowing assumptions and Treasury Management Strategy.

Current HRA Borrowing

The Council has a two-pool approach to managing Council debt, ensuring that any
borrowing taken out for HRA purposes impacts the HRA directly, and does not

adversely impact the General Fund.

As at 1 April 2014, the Housing Revenue Account was supporting two forms of

borrowing, internal and external.

53

Page 104




External Borrowing

Based on the final self-financing determination, the HRA supports borrowing of
£213,572,000 from the Public Works Loans Board (PWLB), in a portfolio of 20 maturity
loans of equal value, at preferential rates ranging between 3.46% and 3.53%
depending upon the term of the loan. The loans have varying maturity dates, with the
first £10,678,600 due to be repaid on 28t March 2038, and the last on 28t March 2057.

Internal Borrowing

In addition tfo the external loans attributable to the HRA, there remain two sums of

internal borrowing from the General Fund, which the HRA is required to support:

o £893,250 internal borrowing derived from historic borrowing approvals prior to 2003
o £283,000 internal borrowing to deliver the first 7 units of new build affordable
housing between 2010/11 and 2011/12

The Housing Revenue Account is required to pay the General Fund the annual interest
associated with the above internal borrowing as part of the Item 8 Debit to the HRA.
The interest rate payable by the HRA can be determined by the authority, but must be

deemed reasonable and stand up to external scrutiny from auditors.

Future Borrowing

The Housing Revenue Account is sfill subject to an overall debt cap, notified to the
authority as part of the HRA Self-Financing Settlement, at a level of £230,83%9,000. With
existing HRA debt of £214,748,250, the authority currently retains borrowing headroom
of £16,090,750, a large proportion of which is committed as part of the Housing Capital
Investment Plan, contributing to the finance available for the delivery of the future new
build programme, including Clay Farm and the housing required using the earliest one-

for-one right to buy receipfs.

54

Page 105



The latest financial projections, incorporated into this Budget Setting Report, indicate
that the HRA will be required to borrow during 2016/17 and 2017/18.

As part of the lead-in to borrowing, consideration will be given to the source of
borrowing, and both the type and length of loan that will be taken out, in the context

of the financial environment at the time.

Borrowing Source

The result of work undertaken previously indicates that the following borrowing sources

are the most likely routes to be pursued:

o Internal Borrowing — Subject to available resource in the General Fund, and the
ability for the General Fund to commit to lending for the length of time required by
the HRA and at competitive interest rates. May be more appropriate to meet
shorter-term borrowing requirements. Has the advantage of retaining any interest
paid within the Council overall, and provides benefits to the General Fund, if the
negotiated interest rate payable exceeds the sum that would otherwise be
earned on cash balances.

. Inter-Authority Borrowing - Subject to engagement by other public bodies with
available resource, and the ability for the organisation to commit to lending for the
length of time required by the HRA and at competitive interest rates

o PWLB Borrowing — Guaranteed availability of resource, with a range of borrowing
types and loan lengths. Potential to benefit from the current Certainty Rate, which

provides a 20 basis point reduction in the standard rate until October 2015

Borrowing Type

Borrowing can be taken out on either fixed or variable interest rates, with the latter
clearly carrying significantly more risk in respect of long-term borrowing. The types of

borrowing available through the PWLB include:

55

Page 106



o Maturity Loans — Interest only paid throughout the life of the loan, with the capital
sum due at the end of the borrowing term. Minimises payment required during the
life of the loan, but requires set-aside to allow for repayment of the principal sum,
or a clear acceptance that the loan will be re-financed accepting the resulting
risks in prevailing interest rates at the time. Retains the greatest flexibility.

° Equal Instalments of Principal (EIP) Loans — Payments include equal instalments of
principal and reducing interest sums as throughout the life, with interest reducing in
line with principal repaid. Results in higher payments during the earlier years of
borrowing

o Annuity Loans — Both principal and interest repaid throughout the life of the loan,
with periodic sums payable remaining static. As the loan balance reduces, the

value of the principal being paid increases and the interest reduces

Length of Borrowing

When determining the length that borrowing should be taken out over, consideration
needs to be given to the interest rates available at the time, in comparison with
predicted future rates and borrowing requirements. These considerations need to be
coupled with the specific purpose of the borrowing, with the break-even and pay-back
periods for the investment forming a key part of the borrowing decision. Far lower
interest rates are available for short-term borrowing than long-term, but the authority
needs not only to be able to support the borrowing during the life of the loan, but also

be in a position to redeem the loan when it matures or support its refinancing.

At the point at which the HRA is required to take out additional borrowing,
consideration will be given to the most mutually advantageous borrowing route for the
authority as a whole. PWLB rates are revised and re-issued on a twice-daily basis, and
hence it will be necessary to review any borrowing decision in light of the length of loan

required and the prevailing rates at the date the funds are required.

Debt Repayment / Re-Investment

56

Page 107



Set-Aside for Repayment of HRA Debt

The debt repayment strategy approved as part of the 2014/15 HRA Budget Setting
Report revised the initial decision to set-aside resource to repay all of the housing debt,
and instead approved that the HRA set-aside sufficient resource to redeem 25% of the

HRA debft from the point at which the loan portfolio begins to mature, in 2037/38.

The table below shows the current PWLB loan portfolio:

Loan Ref Principal In;zl;zsi GICL LTS Maturity Date Term
1 10,678,600 3.46% 369,479.56 28/03/2038 26
2 10,678,600 3.47% 370,547 .42 28/03/2039 27
3 10,678,600 3.48% 371,615.28 28/03/2040 28
4 10,678,600 3.49% 372,683.14 28/03/2041 29
5 10,678,600 3.50% 373,751.00 28/03/2042 30
6 10,678,600 3.51% 374,818.86 28/03/2043 31
7 10,678,600 3.52% 375,886.72 28/03/2044 32
8 10,678,600 3.52% 375,886.72 28/03/2045 33
9 10,678,600 3.52% 375,886.72 28/03/2046 34
10 10,678,600 3.52% 375,886.72 28/03/2047 35
11 10,678,600 3.53% 376,954.58 28/03/2048 36
12 10,678,600 3.53% 376,954.58 28/03/2049 37
13 10,678,600 3.53% 376,954.58 28/03/2050 38
14 10,678,600 3.53% 376,954.58 28/03/2051 39
15 10,678,600 3.52% 375,886.72 28/03/2052 40
16 10,678,600 3.52% 375,886.72 28/03/2053 4]
17 10,678,600 3.51% 374,818.86 28/03/2054 42
18 10,678,600 3.51% 374,818.86 28/03/2055 43
19 10,678,600 3.51% 374,818.86 28/03/2056 44

20 10,678,600 3.50% 373,751.00 28/03/2057 45
TOTAL 213,572,000 TOTAL  7,494,241.48

57

Page 108



The current debt repayment strategy allows the investment of significant resource that
would otherwise be set-aside for the future repayment of housing debt, to instead be
re-invested in meeting housing priorities, with the delivery of new affordable housing

being one of the key areas of spending.

The strategy makes the assumption that HRA surpluses will be invested in income
generating assets, to ensure that the business plan is able to support re-financing of the

remaining 75% of the existing housing debt when loans reach maturity.

In measuring the ability to utilise HRA revenue surpluses for re-investment in the future
housing business, the following assumptions have been made as part of the 2015/16

budget setting process:

e Land is available at nil cost , ie; provided by developers as part of their affordable
housing conftribution

e New build to code level 4 or above at a cost of £153,750 per property

e Acquisition Cost - £300,000 per unit, where applicable

e No HCA Grant

e Retained right to buy receipts as a funding source on an ongoing basis

e 100% affordable rented units, with rental income no greater than the LHA rates

e Voids and bad debts as per existing HRA stock

¢ Management, maintenance and major repairs broadly in line with existing stock

assumptions

Based upon the above assumptions, it is estimated that there is capacity to deliver
around 1,470 new affordable homes during the life of the HRA Business Plan, in addition

to those that already have scheme specific approval in the early years of the plan.
To retain flexibility in the debt repayment strategy, any surplus generated since April

2012, and any further resource identified for future debt repayment, will not be formally

58

Page 109



set-aside, but will instead be held in an ear-marked reserve to allow for either

repayment of debft or future re-investment.

Premature Repayment of PWLB Debt

The potential to redeem loans held with the PWLB at an earlier stage than agreed at
the outset, still remains. A discount rate is used at the point of redemption to calculate
whether the authority should pay a premium, or alternatively receive a discount, for

repaying the principal sum early.

If the discount rate applicable at the point of redemption is lower than the original loan

rate, a premium is payable and if it is higher, a discount is receivable by the authority.

In light of the current debt repayment strategy and the low rates that were secured on
28" March 2012 to fund the self-financing settlement, it is likely that early surpluses
generated will used to re-invest in increasing the supply of income generating assets,

and therefore early redemption of debt is unlikely at this stage.

Treasury Management Summary

In summary, in respect of the HRA's approach to treasury management and additional

borrowing against the headroom, it is recommended that:

e Resource is still set-aside over the life of the existing loan portfolio to redeem 25% of

the original PWLB debt, should the authority so choose.

e All other HRA in-year surpluses continue to be re-directed into investment to
increase the supply of affordable housing, subject to the availability of sites and the

financial viability of schemes proposed
¢ Fixed rate loans are considered as opposed to the variable alternative

e Consideration is given, particularly for short-term scenarios, to borrowing from the
General Fund or other public sector organisations, alongside the PWLB, with the

financial impact of each opftion identified

59

Page 110



e If borrowing from the PWLB, the previous approach of taking out maturity loans to
provide flexibility and reduce risk is continued

e The term of the loan should be considered based upon the break-even and
payback of the scheme and the impact on the HRA's cashflow, with the aim that

schemes should payback within a target of 30 years, with 35 years as the maximum

60

Page 111



Section 7
Summary and Overview

Equality Impact Assessment,
Uncertainties and Risk

Equality Impact Assessment

Under current legislation, local authorities have legal duties to pay ‘due regard’ to the
need fo eliminate discrimination and promote equality with regard to race, disability,
gender, including gender reassignment, age, sexual orientation, pregnancy /

maternity, and religion or belief as well as to promote good race relations.

The law requires that this duty be demonstrated in the decision making process.
Assessing the potential equality impact of proposed changes to policies, procedures

and practices is one of the key ways in which public authorities can show ‘due regard’.

As a key element of considering the changes proposed in this Budget Setting Report,
Equality Impact Assessments have been undertaken in respect of all of the 2015/16 HRA
Budget proposals, where any impact is anticipated. The assessments identify the
impact that financial proposals could have on equality groups, together with mitigation
arrangements. They also include an action plan identifying how disadvantage or
negative impact can be addressed, together with timescales and details of lead

officers. All of the Equalities Impact assessments are available on the Council’s website.

Page 112 61




A composite Equalities Impact Assessment for the HRA budget as a whole, is presented

at Appendix J.

Risk Assessment

To ensure that the authority is able to sustain a financially viable Housing Revenue
Account, it is imperative that consideration is given to the level of internal and external

risks that the housing service is subject to.

Update of the key risks and associated mitigating actions is presented at Appendix E.

HRA Reserves

Housing Revenue Account General Reserves

General reserves are held partly to help manage risks inherent in financial forecasting
and budget-setting.  These risks include changes in legislative and statutory
requirements, inflation and interest rates, unanticipated service needs, rent and other
income shortfalls and emergencies, such as uninsured damage to the housing stock. In
addition, reserves may be used to support the Housing Capital Investment Plan and, in
the short-term, to support revenue spending, for example to spread the impact of
savings requirements over more than one financial year or to invest up front in a project

that is anticipated to pay back over a period of time or deliver future savings.
The HRA Budget Setting Report incorporates the requirements of the Local Government
Act 2003, where the Chief Financial Officer is required to report on the adequacy of

reserves and provisions and the robustness of budget estimates.

For the Housing Revenue Account the intended target level of reserves remains at £3m,

with a minimum level of reserves of £2m.

Page 113 62



It is not proposed to make any changes to either the target or minimum levels for
reserves, as it is considered prudent to retain the current levels in order to safeguard the
Council against the higher levels of risk and uncertainty in the current operating

environment.

Financial Assumptions and Sensitivity

The current financial assumptions, reviewed and used as part of this BSR are detailed in
Appendix A. The assumptions are derived from information available at the time of
preparing this report, utilising both historic tfrend data and the expert advice and
opinion of specialists in the field of housing finance, treasury management and asset

management, where required.

In making financial assumptions, it is recognised that there will always be a number of
alternative values that could have been used. To mitigate the risks associated with this,
modelling of key sensitivities is undertaken to provide context to the financial impact

that a change in an assumption will make.

Appendix G provides details of the key sensitivities modelled in the preparation of the
HRA Budget Setting Report 2015/16.

Options and Conclusions

Overview

The budget for 2015/16 has been considered in the wider context of the locally
identified housing priorities, which seek to achieve a balance of investment in housing

assets and services between:

¢ Investment in the existing housing stock

¢ Investmentin new affordable housing

Page 114 63



e Investment in new initiatives and income generating activities
e Spend on landlord services (i.e. housing management, responsive and void repairs)
e Spend on discretionary services (i.e. support)

e Support for, and potential repayment of a proportion, of housing debt

Summary and Conclusions

The work undertaken as part of the 2015/16 budget process to date has resulted in the

development of proposals for the base budget of the Housing Revenue Account.

During January 2015 Housing Scrutiny Committee will consider the budget proposals,
prior to the Executive Councillor for Housing making decisions and further
recommendation for the final HRA Budget for 2014/15 to 2019/20 to Council for

consideration and approval.
The HRA Budget Setting Report recommends, in summary:

Approval of rent and service charges

Approval of the revised budget proposals

Approval of the unavoidable revenue bid proposals

Approval of the general savings proposals

Approval of the business fransformation savings

Approval of the non-cash limit items

Approval of the PPF bids

Approval of the capital bids, revised scheme costs and funding mix

Approval of capital resource re-allocation

The meeting of Council on 26" February 2015 will consider the final proposed Housing

Capital Budget as identified in this report for approval.
The review of key factors undertaken and presented in this report shaped the

approach for finalising the budget for 2015/16. As part of the 2015/16 budget process,

significant savings have been identified, particularly in the revenue aspects of the

Page 115 64



repairs service and resulting savings from a review of repairs and renewals fund
confribution rates. Savings were partially offset by pressure from unavoidable revenue
bids, which were identified across a number of areas of the housing service, but
particularly in increased costs for central and support service recharges from the
General Fund, as the HRA's call on these resources increases in line with increased

housing activity.

A reduction of £1,084,630 in revenue costs for 2014/15 has been identified as part of this
report, which will be returned to reserves, and ufilised to increase direct revenue
financing of capital expenditure in 2015/16, thus deferring the need to borrow for a
further year, until 2016/17.

The overall position for the HRA for 2015/16 (including PPF's and non-cash limit
adjustments) is under-achieved in 2015/16 by £970,100, but over-achieved by £149,150
in 2016/17 and £56,560 in 2017/18. Of the underachievement in 2015/16 £779,970 is an
intentional use of additional revenue resource to finance capital expenditure to

negate the need to borrow to meet capital investment commitments.

In 2018/19 the impact of assumed additional pension fund conftributions results in an
overall under-achievement of £24,440, rising to £195,440 from 2019/20. Response to the
financial impact of this non-cash limit adjustment in the later years will form part of the
2016/17 budget strategy

As part of the budget process consideration is given to whether the perceived benefits
of strategic investment in new areas, outweigh any anficipated negative impact of the

savings proposed as part of the HRA budget process.
The HRA's approach to long-term financial planning incorporates the assumption that

surplus resource will be used to re-invest in income generating assets whilst maintaining

prudent financial assumptions in ongoing investment need in the current housing stock.

Page 116 65



Business Planning Assumptions

Key Area

General
Inflation (CPI)

Capital
Inflation

Debt
Repayment

Capital
Investment

Pay Inflation

Employee
Turnover

Rent Increase
Inflation

Rent
Convergence

External
Lending
Interest Rate

Assumption

2%

5% for 5 years,
then 3%
ongoing

Set-aside 25%
to Repay Debt

Partial
Investment
Standard (in 10
Years)
1.9% Pay
Progression
plus:
2014/15-1.0%
2015/16 - 1.0%
2016/17 -1.5%
2017/18 - 2.0%
2.5% ongoing

3%

2.2% for
2015/16 3% for
9 years, then
2.5%

Energy
Efficient Voids
Only

0.64%, 1.04%
for 5 years,
then 1%
ongoing

Comment

General inflation on expenditure included
at 2% (Based upon CPI to June 2014), from
2015/16.

Real increase above CPI of 3% for 5 years,
then reverting to 1% above CPI from
2020/21.

Assumes surplus is re-invested in income
generating assets, with 25% of resource
set-aside to repay debt as loans reach
mafturity dates.

Base model assumes partial investment
standard in the housing stock, compared
with a basic decent homes standard. This
will be reviewed again during 2015/16.

Assume allowance for increments at 1.9%.
Pay inflation for 2014/15 and 2015/16 at 1%
and a stepped increase thereafter,
reflecting economic recovery. Separate
allowance made for current LGA proposals
of 2.2% from January 2015 to cover both
2014/15 and 2015/16 in one.

Employee budgets assume a turnover
saving of 3.0% of gross pay budget for
office-based staff.

Rent increases in line with government
guidelines of CPI at the preceding
September plus 1% from 2015/16 to
2024/25, then CPI plus 0.5%. CPl in
September 2014 was 1.2%. CPl ongoing
as above.

Ability to move to target rent achieved
only through movement of energy
efficient void properties directly to target
rent.

Interest rates based on latest market
projections, an average of 0.64% for
2014/15, 1.04% from 2015/16 for 5 years,
and then 1% from 2020/21.

Page 117

Appendix A

Status

Retained

Retained

Retained

Retained

Amended

Retained

Amended

Retained

Amended

66



Key Area

Internal
Lending
Interest Rate

External
Borrowing
Interest Rate

Internal
Borrowing
Interest Rate

HRA Minimum
Balances

HRA Target
Balances

Right to Buy
Sales

Right to Buy
Receipfts

Void Rates

Bad Delbts

Rent
Collection
Transactional
Costs

Assumption

0.64%, 1.04%,
for 5 years,
then 1%
ongoing

4%

4%

£2,000,000

£3,000,000

60, 50, 40, 30,
then 20 sales
ongoing

Settlement
right to buy
and assumed
one-for-one
receipts
included

1%

0.56% for
2014/15 and
2015/16, then

1.12%

Increase in
transactional
costs of
£100,000 per
annum from
2016/17

Comment

Assume the same rate as anticipated can
be earned on cash balances held, so as
not to detriment the General Fund over
the longer term.

Assumes additional PWLB borrowing at a
rate of 4%. Current rates for 25 to 50 years
are between 3.87% and 3.9%. Reduce
prudently to 4%.

Assume the same rate as external
borrowing to ensure flexibility in choice of
borrowing route.

Maintain HRA minimum balance at
£2,000,000, recognising risks in a Self-
Financing environment.

Maintain HRA target balance at
£3,000,000.

Scheme reinvigoration has prompted
sustained increased activity. Assume 60
for 2014/15, reducing by 10 sales per
annum, until 20 are assumed on an
ongoing basis.

Debt settlement receipts included,
assuming the receipts utilised partly for
general fund housing purposes.
Anticipated one-for one receipts
included, but prudently only those
received to date are committed to
specific new build schemes. Debt
repayment proportion has currently been
set-aside.

Assumes 1% per annum from 2015/16
onwards.

Bad debt provision in the HRA increased
by 100% to reflect the requirement to
collect 100% of rent directly, with the
implementation of Universal Credit now
assumed from 2016

An increase of £100,000 per annum was
included anticipating an increase in
transactional collection costs associated
with the requirement to collect 100% of
rent directly from tenants, as opposed to
receiving approximately 50% via housing

Page 118

Status

Amended

Amended

Amended

Retained

Retained

Retained

Retained

Retained

Retained

Amended

67



Key Area

Debt
Management
Expenses

Savings Target

Responsive
Repairs
Expenditure

Policy Space

Transformation

Assumption

£21,180 per
annum

2%

Adjusted pro
rata to stock
changes

£150,000

On case by
case basis

Comment

benefit. Universal Credit delayed now
until 2016, with cost collection assumption
again deferred by one year.

Internal treasury management is
recharged within existing SLA’s. This allows
a provision for specialist financial advice
in this field, still included from 2015/16 in
case the need arises.

Target included assuming efficiencies will
be driven out to allow strategic re-
investment. Target is a percentage of net
general management and repairs
administration expenditure.

An assumption is made that direct
responsive repair expenditure is adjusted
annually in line with any change in stock
numbers.

Policy space retained in base model at
the level of £150,000 for 5 years
recognising desire to expand services
and respond to external pressures. To be
reviewed again as part of 2015/16 HRA
MFR.

Transformation programme outcomes
assumed to deliver to the HRA as
indicated in each business case.

Page 119

Status

Retained

Retained

Retained

Retained

Retained

68



Service Charges Appendix B

Charge Description Charges 2014/15 Charge Basis cz:gfsr?le:
General Stock and Housing for Older People

Caretaking Charge £0.80t0 £6.48 Per Week Over 48 Weeks A
Communal Cleaning £1.11t0 £4.70 Per Week Over 48 Weeks A
Estate Services Champion £0.79 Per Week Over 48 Weeks A
Window Cleaning £0.01 10 £1.53 Per Week Over 48 Weeks A
Door Entry £0.13to £1.61 Per Week Over 48 Weeks B
Passenger Lifts £0.46 t0 £2.45 Per Week Over 48 Weeks B
SGecrt\s/ilc\:/i\rc]tgign’renonce / £2.10 Per Week Over 48 Weeks A/B
Digital TV Aerial Charge £0.44 Per Week Over 48 Weeks A
Grounds Maintenance £2.52 Per Week Over 48 Weeks A
Parking Space £7.28 Per Week Over 48 Weeks £7.43
Community Alarm Charge £4.41 Per Week Over 48 Weeks C
General Sheltered Schemes

Premises Charge £1.02to £21.54 Per Week Over 48 Weeks A
Sg;?g‘;”o' Heating / £2.5710£8.78 Per Week Over 48 Weeks A
Individual Heating / Lighting  £5.82 10 £12.66 Per Week Over 48 Weeks A
Water £2.26 t0 £3.51 Per Week Over 48 Weeks A
Grounds Maintenance £0.88 t0 £2.29 Per Week Over 48 Weeks A
Sectrical | Mechanicd £27110£4.95 Per Week Over 48 Weeks B
Sheltered Support Charge £9.00t0 £10.46 Per Week Over 48 Weeks C
Ditchburn Place

Premises Charge £2.88 10 £46.80 Per Week Over 48 Weeks A
gaggzoning / Laundry £25.44 Per Week Over 48 Weeks A
S;’g;{:;”o' Heating / £0.6510 £5.98 Per Week Over 48 Weeks A

Page 120 69



Individual Heating / Lighting

Water
Catering

Grounds Maintenance

Electrical / Mechanical
Maintenance

Sheltered Support Charge

Extra Care Support Charge

Launderette — Wash / Dry

Temporary Accommodation

Premises Charge

Water

Electrical / Mechanical
Maintenance

Independent Living Services

Private Lifelines - In City

Private Lifelines - Out City

Keysafe / Keyholding
Charge

Warden Agencies

Monitoring Charge

£7.17 1o £11.56

£4.39 to £5.49
£94.90
£1.74

£2.55

£10.46
£26.47
£6.50

£45.76 to £53.77
Individual Heating / Lighting  £15.98 to £27.16

£7.02

£3.66 to £7.41

£4.65
£7.53

£1.88

£4.04
£0.32

Leasehold Charges for Services

Solicitors’ pre-sale enquiries

Copy of lease

Re-mortgage Enquiry/Copy

of Insurance schedule
Noftice of
Assignment/Notice of
Charge

Deed of Variations

Retrospective consent for
improvements

£75.00
From £20.00

£25.00

£75.00

£150.00
£25.00

Per Week Over 48 Weeks
Per Week Over 48 Weeks
Per Week Over 48 Weeks
Per Week Over 48 Weeks

Per Week Over 48 Weeks

Per Week Over 48 Weeks
Per Week Over 48 Weeks
Per Load As Requested

Per Week Over 48 Weeks
Per Week Over 48 Weeks
Per Week Over 48 Weeks

Per Week Over 48 Weeks

Per Week Over 52 Weeks
Per Week Over 52 Weeks

Per Quarter

Per Week Over 52 Weeks
Per Week Over 52 Weeks

As Requested
As Requested

As Requested

As Requested

As Requested

As Requested

Page 121

® > > > >

> O 0O

> > >

£4.65
£7.53

£1.88

£4.04
£0.32

£75.00
From £20.00

£25.00

£75.00

£150.00
£25.00

70



Registering sub-let details £50.00 As Requested £50.00

Initial Administration
Fee/Survey for Application £150.00 As Requested £150.00
to purchase Loft Space

Key

These charges are currently (or will be - in the case of any new charges), based
on recovering the actual cost of service provision and the proposal is to
confinue to recover the full estimated cost of providing these services in
2015/16.

These charges were separated out from pooled rent in 2004/05, and therefore
can be increased to recover full cost up to a maximum of inflation at 2.2% (CPI

at September 2014 plus 1%) for future years.

Charges levied for support activities will be reviewed in line with services being
provided following expansion of the support service for older people, where

the County Council now commission services across the city as a whole.

Charges for the optional household contents insurance scheme will continue to

be determined by the insurer but notified to tenants by the Council.

Page 122 7



HRA Earmarked & Specific Funds

(£7000)

Repairs & Renewals *

General Management
Special Services

Repairs and Maintenance
Totals

Major Repairs Reserve

MRR

Shared Ownership

Shared Ownership

Tenants Survey

Tenants Survey

Aerial - Roof Space Rental

Aerial Income

Pension Reserve **

Pension Reserve

Opening Contributions Expenditure to
Balance Oct
(1,265.2) (131.7) 6.2
(1,073.6) (141.1) 45.0
(53.3) (56.9) 0.0
(2,392.1) (329.7) 51.2
Opening Contributions Expenditure to
Balance Oct
(4,920.0) 0.0 0.0
Opening Contributions Expenditure to
Balance Oct
(300.0) 0.0 0.0
Opening Contributions Expenditure to
Balance Oct
(41.5) (6.2) 17.7
Opening Contributions Expenditure to
Balance Oct
(107.0) (17.8) 0.0
Opening Contributions Expenditure to
Balance Oct
(390.0) 0.0 0.0

Page 123

Appendix C

Current
Balance

(1,390.7)
(1,169.7)

(110.2)
(2,670.6)

Current
Balance
(4,920.0)

Current
Balance

(300.0)

Current
Balance

(30.0)

Current
Balance

(124.8)

Current
Balance

(390.0)

72



Opening Contributions / Expenditure to Current
Balance Adjustments Oct Balance

Debt Set-Aside (1,090.4) 0.0 0.0 (1,090.4)

Debt Set-Aside (Revenue)

* The balance in respect of the HRA Repairs and Renewals Funds will be reduced in
year, following approval of the HRA Budget Setting Report, by a total of £823,400,
following a fundamental review of both the fund required to date, and conftributions
required on an annual ongoing basis. The review resulted in the proposal to reduce the
balance of the General Management funds by £549,010 and the Special Services funds
by £356,450, whilst including additional resource of £82,060 in the Repairs and
Maintenance fund, recognising the location of both office based staff and equipment
across the service. The net funds released, totalling £823,400 will be transferred into
general HRA reserves for re-investment elsewhere.

** The balance in the HRA Pension Reserve is no longer needed following the outcome
of the latest triennial review. The net funds released, totalling £389,960 will be transferred
info general HRA reserves for re-investment elsewhere and the fund will be terminated.

Page 124 73



Appendix [D (1)]

2015/16 Budget - HRA All Revenue ltems

Reference Item Description 2014/15 2015/16 2016/17 2017/18 2018/19 Climate
Budget Budget Budget Budget Budget Effect
£ £ £ £ £ Contact Rating

Reduction required to Cash Limit

Housing Revenue Account

RCL3504 HRA Savings Target 0 113,000 113,000 113,000 113,000 Julia Hovells  n/a
(excludes any reduction in
response repair budgets,
as a net increase in HRA
stock is anticipated in
2015/16)

In addition to a savings assumption at 2% of general management and repairs adminstfration expenditure in
the HRA, an adjustment is also made in response repairs for any anficipated change in stock levels. For
2015/16 a net increase in housing stock is anticipated, so instead of an increase in the savings target as has
applied in previous years, additional funding has been included in the base budget for response repairs to
meet this anticipated additional cost.

Total Reduction required to Cash Limit in
Housing Revenue Account 0 113,000 113,000 113,000 113,000

Total Reduction required to Cash Limit 0 113,000 113,000 113,000 113,000

Page 125



Appendix [D (1)]

2015/16 Budget - HRA All Revenue ltems

Reference Item Description 2014/15 2015/16 2016/17 2017/18 2018/19 Climate
Budget Budget Budget Budget Budget Effect
£ £ £ £ £ Contact Rating
Programme

Housing Revenue Account

PROG3661 Reduction in support and 0 (34,000) (122,000) (175,000 (200,000) Paul Nil
central costs through a Boucher
Council wide Support
Services Review

As the Council moves to other ways of delivering services and our own support service demands reduce,
there is a need to balance the books by reducing our support and cenfral costs relating to property, people,
technology and other supplies and services. We are undertaking a phased approach to this project as we
are at the early stages of developing and implementing alternative service delivery models and the future is
uncertain. [Linked to PROG3662 & PROG3686]

Phase 1 of this project will focus on removing costs from ICT and fransactional finance activity; Phase 2 will
focus on removing costs from business support activity and other support functions and Phase 3 will review all
remaining areas particularly those required to initially support the Transformation Programme.

PROG3662 Costs of delivering change 0 38,000 95,000 95,000 33,000 Caroline Nil
in respect of support and Ryba
central services

There will be costs associated with the transformation proposed as part of the review of support and central
services, with the need to meet any exit costs associated with the implementation of new service delivery
models. [Linked to PROG3661]

PROG3709 ICT Shared Service 0 (25,000) (37,000) (50,000) (62,000) Ray Ward Nil

The shared ICT service with South Cambridgeshire District Council and Huntingdonshire District Council will
produce savings by reviewing management arrangements; delivering a package of IT standardisation and
reducing external expendifure. This proposal represents the HRA element of the fotal saving. [Linked fo
PROG3687 - General Fund element of saving.]

PROG3710 Legal Shared Service 0 (7,000) (7,000) (7,000) (7,000) Ray Ward Nil

The shared Legal service with South Cambridgeshire District Council and Huntingdonshire District Council will
produce savings through a number of measures including reviewing the current legal personnel structure,
ensuring that we assign activity more efficiently; reviewing our use of external legal advice in light of the
expertise and capacity that exists across the shared service and reviewing the current legal support
administrative arrangements, bringing together the systems and processes of all three councils into one
consistent approach . This proposal represents the HRA element of the fotal saving. [Linked to PROG3688 -
General Fund element of saving.]

Total Programme in Housing Revenue

Account 0 (28,000) (71,000)  (137,000) (236,000)

Total Programme 0 (28,000) (71,000) (137,000) (236,000)

Page 126



Appendix [D (1)]

2015/16 Budget - HRA All Revenue ltems

Reference Item Description 2014/15 2015/16 2016/17 2017/18 2018/19 Climate
Budget Budget Budget Budget Budget Effect
£ £ £ £ £ Contact Rating
Savings

Housing Revenue Account

$3507 Saving from cash limiting 0 (10,140 (10,140 (10,140) (10,140) Julia Hovells Nil
supplies and services
budgets

A decision to cash limit the budgets for all supplies and services, except those where specific or confractual
arrangements are in place, results in the delivery of a saving across the HRA as a whole.

$3508 Reduction in budget for 0 (19,440) (19,440) (19,440) (19,440) Robert Nil
operational cost across Hollingsworth
City Homes.

Based upon prior year spending, it is proposed to reduce City Homes operational budgets, to include
removal of photocopying budgets and reductions in recruitment costs, printing, postage, telephones and
books and publication budgets.

$3509 Reduction in budgets for 0 (82,500) (82,500 (82,500) (82,500) John Nil
servicing and Horwood
maintenance contracts
across the housing stock

The result of a zero-based budget exercise culminates in proposals to reduce budgets for door enfry
maintenance (£13,000), gas maintenance (£34,500), lift maintenance (£15,500), fire extinguisher maintenance
(£3,000), adaptation maintenance (£1,500), asbestos management and lamp column maintenance
(£15,000), in line with contract sums and prior year spending profiles.

$3514 Reduction in budget for 0 (4.360) (4,360) (4.360) (4,360) Frances Nil
operational cost across Swann
the Independent Living
Service

Based upon prior year spending, it is proposed to reduce Independent Living Service operational budgets, to
include reductions in printing, photocopying, postage, felephone, building maintenance, equipment
purchase and equipment maintenance budgets.

S$3516 Cessation of contract for 0 (3.570) (3.570) (3.570) (3,570) Julia Hovells Nil
administration of HRA
mortgages

The last of the housing mortgages, historically given to allow residents to purchase their property under the
Right to Buy legislation has now been redeemed, negafing the need for a confinued contract with an
external supplier to administer the mortgage portfolio.

$3517 Reduction in annual 0 (40,710) (40,710) (40,710) (40,710) Julia Hovells Nil
contribution fo HRA
Repairs and Renewals
Funds

Page 127



Appendix [D (1)]

2015/16 Budget - HRA All Revenue ltems

Reference Item Description 2014/15 2015/16 2016/17 2017/18 2018/19 Climate
Budget Budget Budget Budget Budget Effect
£ £ £ £ £ Contact Rating
Savings

A comprehensive review of the repairs and renewals funds held across the HRA as part of the fundamental
review of the service, has resulted in the ability fo significantly reduce the annual contribution to the fund. This
is possible as asset lives have been reviewed based upon past experience of replacement and replacement
prices have been reduced in line with corporate buying guides for furniture.

$3518 HRA salary savings 0 (7.970) (7.970) (7.970) (7,970) Julia Hovells Nil

Salary savings derived from recruitment to vacant posts at lower points than vacated, partially offset by an
increase in the proportion of the Head of Strategic Housing charged to the HRA, recognising the impact of
the HRA new build programme.

$3522 Reduction in Void Repair 0 (75.000) (75,000) (75,000 (75,000) Julia Hovells Nil
budget

Changes in the way in which the Repairs Service is delivered, following the Repairs and Maintenance
Improvement Plan, is anticipated to deliver a reduction in the cost of void repairs.

$3642 Removal of contingency 0 (32,040) (32,040) (32,040) (32,040) Frances Nil
for Enhanced Housing Swann
Management Services

Funding was ear-marked in a previous budget process to allow the retention of an enhanced housing
management service across sheltered housing if the City Council were lose the support contracts
commissioned by the County Council. This contract has now been re-awarded for a period of up to 5 years,
and the contingency is therefore not required.

$3644 Reduction in sheltered 0 (12,440) (12,440) (12.440) (12,440) Frances +L
scheme utilities Swann

A review of the budgets for gas, electricity and water based upon prior year expenditure, results in a net
reduction in budget requirement across the sheltered housing stock.

$3660 Removal of budget held in 0 (104,040) 0 0 0 Julia Hovells Nil
2015/16 for direct
collection of 100% of rent
income

Additonal funding was incorporated into the HRA recognising the need to collect 100% of rent directly after
the implementation of Universal Credit. With implementation delayed until 2016, this funding is not expected
to be required in 2015/16.

$3731 Reduction in budget for (1,100,000) 0 0 0 0 Will Barfield Nil
the planned revenue
prior-to re-paint (PTR)
programme in 2014/15

Due to a change in planned maintenance contractor, the 2014/15 PTR programme will not be delivered in
year as originally budgeted. P ag e 128



Appendix [D (1)]

2015/16 Budget - HRA All Revenue ltems

Reference Item Description 2014/15 2015/16 2016/17 2017/18 2018/19 Climate
Budget Budget Budget Budget Budget Effect
£ £ £ £ £ Contact Rating
Savings
Total Savings in Housing Revenue Account  (1,100,000) (392,210) (288,170)  (288,170) (288,170)
Total Savings (1,100,000)  (392,210) (288,170) (288,170) (288,170)

Page 129



Appendix [D (1)]

2015/16 Budget - HRA All Revenue ltems

Reference Item Description 2014/15 2015/16 2016/17 2017/18 2018/19 Climate
Budget Budget Budget Budget Budget Effect
£ £ £ £ £ Contact Rating

Unavoidable Revenue Pressure

Housing Revenue Account

URP3506 Inability to recharge full 0 65,660 0 0 0 Julia Hovells Nil
costs of building cleaning
services

A review of the cost of building cleaning services across the communal areas of the housing stock resulted in
an increase in costs to the HRA from 2014/15 onwards. A decision was taken in the 2014/15 budget process
not to pass the higher costs on to residents as the service was undergoing a review, with the anticipated
outcome being a significant reduction in costs following a tender process which was expected to conclude
before April 2015. This project has been delayed, which results in the need to either extend meeting the
additional cost from HRA resources, or to pass on higher costs to residents temporarily.

URP3512 Increased revenue staffing 0 33,860 33,860 33,860 33,860 Will Barfield Nil
cost for the work
undertaken by the Energy
Officer to conduct EPC's

The requirement fo produce Energy Performance Certificates for all dwellings at change of tenure has
resulted in an increased revenue staffing cost, with the inspections predominantly being carried out by the
Energy Officer. The Energy Officer was previously funded predominantly by capital grant income from the
energy companies, which is no longer received.

URP3546 Adjustment to staff 0 64,860 64,860 64,860 64,860 Julia Hovells Nil
recharges between the
General Fund and the HRA

Recharges for the Director of Customer & Community Services, Executive Team and Business Team have
been reviewed in light of the changes in responsibility for service areas, with Estates and Facilities now
managed in this department, whilst Customer Services have transferred to the Director of Business
Transformation.

URP3643 Reduction in income to the 0 9,020 9,020 9.020 9,020 Julia Hovells Nil
HRA

The level of service charge income for 2015/16 is anticipated to be marginally lower than previously
predicted (£20,220), although this is expected to be partially offset by an over-achievement in garage
income if lettings stay at the same level asin 2014/15 (6,780) and commercial property rental income (£4,420)
if all rent reviews conclude as expected.

Total Unavoidable Revenue Pressure in

Housing Revenue Account 0 173,400 107,740 107,740 107,740

Total Unavoidable Revenue Pressure 0 173,400 107,740 107,740 107,740

Page 130



Appendix [D (1)]

2015/16 Budget - HRA All Revenue ltems

Reference Item Description 2014/15 2015/16 2016/17 2017/18 2018/19 Climate
Budget Budget Budget Budget Budget Effect
£ £ £ £ £ Contact Rating

PPF Funding

Housing Revenue Account

FPPF3505 HRA Priority Policy Funding 0 (150,000) (150,000)  (150,000) (150,000) Julia Hovells  n/a
TAogtht; Funding in Housing Revenue 0  (150,000) (150,000) (150,000) (150,000)
Total PPF Funding 0 (150,000)  (150,000)  (150,000)  (150,000)

Page 131



Appendix [D (1)]

2015/16 Budget - HRA All Revenue ltems

Reference Item Description 2014/15 2015/16 2016/17 2017/18 2018/19 Climate
Budget Budget Budget Budget Budget Effect
£ £ £ £ £ Contact Rating

PPF Bids

Housing Revenue Account

PPF3511 Increased staffing 0 9.110 0 0 0 Alan Carter Nil
capacity in Housing
Development

An increased ability to investment in new build housing in the HRA necessitates an increase in staffing input.
This proposal is to recruit tfo a shared post with South Cambridgeshire District Council. The HRA is expecting to
contribute revenue resource for a proportion of this post directly, recognising the desire for the new post
holder to explore and potentially set up a Joint Venture Company to aid and speed up the delivery of new
Affordable Housing.

PPF3513 Increased staffing 0 35,740 35,740 35,740 35,740 Robert Nil
capacity to meet the Hollingsworth
Housing Plus Agenda

As part of the Housing Plus Agenda, it is proposed fo recruit an additional member of staff fo work with
tenants to provide financial advice, support and advocacy to prevent households getting into financial crisis.

PPF3515 Increased staffing 0 21,410 21,410 0 0 Andrew Nil
capacity within the Latchem
Leasehold Services Team

As part of the agreed review of the leasehold service, a restructure of the team is proposed from 2015/16,
which would see the establishment increased by approximately 0.6 full time equivalent staffing, to assist with
the increased workload for the team. This cost will be recovered through service charges to leaseholders, but
with a delay before it will appear as part of the actuals exercise undertaken annually.

PPF3520 Support and maintenance 0 3,400 3,400 3,400 3,400 Julia Hovells Nil
for a Self-Service Portal for
the Housing Service

This bid would allow the authority to purchase ongoing support and maintenance for self-service access to
housing tenants of the Council to the housing management information system, which would allow residents
fo check the status of their rent accounts, make payments and request and monitor progress about repairs.
This PPF bid is linked to a capital bid for the purchase and implementation of the software.

PPF3521 Increase in the budget for 0 40,000 40,000 40,000 40,000 Andrew Nil
the Under-Occupation Latchem
Scheme

Due to a good level of take up, it is proposed to increase the level of funding for the Under-Occupation
Scheme by £40,000 per annum on an ongoing basis.

PPF3523 Employment of an 0 28,400 28,400 28,400 28,400 Julia Hovells Nil
additional Repairs Work
Planner

Page 132



Appendix [D (1)]

2015/16 Budget - HRA All Revenue ltems

Reference Item Description 2014/15 2015/16 2016/17 2017/18 2018/19 Climate
Budget Budget Budget Budget Budget Effect
£ £ £ £ £ Contact Rating
PPF Bids

Employment of a second work planner in the repairs and voids service is required as a result of reductions in
the use of external confractors, and an increase in the use of the infernal feam, allowing more effective

management of the service.

Total PPF Bids in Housing Revenue
Account 0 138,060 128,950 107,540 107,540
Total PPF Bids 0 138,060 128,950 107,540 107,540

Page 133



Appendix [D (1)]

2015/16 Budget - HRA All Revenue ltems

Reference Item Description 2014/15 2015/16 2016/17 2017/18 2018/19 Climate
Budget Budget Budget Budget Budget Effect
£ £ £ £ £ Contact Rating

Non-Cash Limit lfems

Housing Revenue Account

NCL3555 Provision for currently 0 18,000 18,000 18,000 18,000 Julia Hovells Nil
proposed pay award for
2014/15 and 2015/16

Based upon the latest pay negofiations, a pay award of 2.2% is proposed, to be effective from January 2015
and fo cover both pay reviews due in April 2014 and April 2015.

NCL3556 Reduction in rent income 0 285,800 285,800 285,800 285,800 Julia Hovells Nil

The level of rent increase applicable from April 2015 will be driven by the Consumer Price Index (CPl) at
September 2014, which the government seek to keep at 2%. In August 2014 inflation fell to 1.5% and again in
September 2014 to a level of 1.2%, the lowest in 5 years. The unprecedented drop in inflation will result in a
lower level of rent income in 2015/16 and beyond than anticipated (£290,000) as part of the HRA Mid-Year
Financial Review. This is offset marginlly by a reduction of £4,200 in the associated bad debt provision.

NCL3650 Reduction in capitalisation 0 90,500 90,500 90,500 90,500 Julia Hovells Nil
of Estates and Facilities
Asset Management staff

The proportion of time charged to revenue and capital for the Estates and Facilities Asset Management
Team has been reviewed, resulting in an increase in the time charged to revenue, directly offset by a
reduction in the time charged against the capital programme, which will be reflected by a change in the
level of Direct Revenue Financing of capital expenditure (DRF).

NCL3651 Reduction in estimated 0 (113,030) (113,030)  (113,030) (113,030) Julia Hovells Nil
depreciation charge to
the HRA

Based upon the latest estimates, the recharge fo the HRA in respect of depreciation from 2015/16 is
anticipated fo be lower than previously assumed. This is due to the timing of delivery of the new build housing
and the latest assumptions in property values and asset lives.

NCL3652 Changes in the level of 0 779.970 (90,500) (90,500) (90,500) Julia Hovells Nil
Direct Revenue Financing
of capital expenditure
available

The proposed reduction in investment in the revenue planned repairs (PTR) programme in 2014/15 results in
additional revenue resource that can be utilised to fund capital expenditure in 2015/16, negafing the
anticipated need to borrow in the coming year. From 2016/17 onwards, the ongoing impact of reducing the
Iefvel of Estates & Facilities Asset Management Team recharged to capital will result in a reduction in the level
of DRF required.

NCL3653 Removal of inflation 0 (80,370) (80,370) (80,370) (80,370) Julia Hovells Nil
allowances in the HRA
where they are not

required Page 134



Appendix [D (1)]

2015/16 Budget - HRA All Revenue ltems

Reference Item Description 2014/15 2015/16 2016/17 2017/18 2018/19 Climate
Budget Budget Budget Budget Budget Effect
£ £ £ £ £ Contact Rating

Non-Cash Limit lfems

The inflation applied to specific account codes in the HRA was lower than anficipated in totality for 2015/16
and specific revenue provisions made for responding to the delivery of new build housing have not been
required as anticipated. Separate bids have been included for staffing resource where required.

NCL3654 Changes in the level of 0 (100,070) (100,070)  (100,070) (100,070) Julia Hovells Nil
interest paid and received
by the HRA

The net level of interest payable by the HRA in 2015/16 will be lower than anticipated, as the availability of
revenue resources to fund capital expenditure negate the need to borrow for another year.

NCL3656 Under-achievement in rent 0 235,050 0 0 0 Julia Hovells Nil
income

Delays in the delivery of some of the HRA new build programme will result in a lower level of rent income in
2015/16 than anticipated.

NCL3712 Pension Fund Contributions 0 0 0 180,000 360,000 Julia Hovells Nil

Increased confribution anticpated to the pension fund at the next triennial review. [Linked to NCL3674
General Fund element]

NCL3732 Changes in interest 15,370 0 0 0 0 Julia Hovells Nil
payments

The ability to set-aside revenue resource for future debf repayment, reduction in the revenue prior-to-re-paint
programme and re-profiing of spend in the capital programme result in a net change in the inerest
payments and receipts anficipated in 2014/15.

Total Non-Cash Limit Items in Housing

Revenue Account 15370 1,115,850 10,330 190,330 370,330
Total Non-Cash Limit ltems 15,370 1,115,850 10,330 190,330 370,330
Report Total (1,084,630) 970,100  (149,150)  (56,560) 24,440

Page 135



Appendix [D (2)]

2015/16 Budget - HRA All Capital ltems

Reference Item Description 2014/15 2015/16 2016/17 2017/18 2018/19 Climate
Budget Budget Budget Budget Budget Effect
£ £ £ £ £ Contact Rating

Capital Bids

Housing Revenue Account

C3519 Purchase and 0 22,500 0 0 0 Julia Hovells Nil
implementation of a
Self-Service Portal for the
Housing Service

This bid would allow the authority to investigate, and if proven beneficial, provide self-service access to
housing tenants of the Council to the housing management information system, allowing residents fo check
the status of their rent accounts, make payments and request and monitor progress about repairs.

C3537 Procurement and 0 30,000 0 0 0 David_ Nil
implementation of a Greening
replacement IT system for
Choice Based Lettings

The confract for the provision of the sub-regional Homelink choice based lettings IT system is due for
re-procurement during 2015/16, with the City Council being required to meet its share of the cosfs alongside
other partner authorities. The City Counci's confribution will be met from the Housing Capital Investment Plan,
recognising that the expenditure is housing related.

Total Capital Bids in Housing Revenue

Account 0 52,500 0 0 0
Total Capital Bids 0 52,500 0 0 0
Report Total 0 52,500 0 0 0

Page 136



Key Risk Analysis

Appendix E

Risk Area & Issue arising Controls / Mitigation Action

Effects of Legislation / Regulation
Implications of new o
legislation / regulation or
changes to existing are not
identified

Funding is not identified to
meet the costs associated
with changes in statutory
requirements

HRA Debt Settlement could °
be re-opened by
Government

Changes in national rent o
policy impact the ability to
support the housing debt or
deliver against planned o
investment programmes

Housing Porifolio & Spending Plans
The Council approves plans
which are not sustainable

into the future, leading to
increasing problems in

balancing budgets

Effective, regular processes are in place for the
HRA to ensure that implications are identified
and raised

Additional / specific funding enhancements for
new services can be identified through the
budget process, to allow effective
implementation

The Council has processes in place to manage
the demands of local and national housing
agendas, ensuring early engagement in any
consultation and collective representation
through national housing bodies

Impact of any proposed changes to national
rent policy is incorporated into financial
planning as early as possible.

Consideration could be given to deviating from
national rent policy at a local level

Council has adopted medium (5 year) and
long-term modelling (up to 30 years) for HRA, to
ensure decisions are made in the knowledge of
long-term deliverability issues / implications

The Business Plan includes long-term trend
analysis on key cost drivers such as growth levels
and demographics, and their implications
Target levels of reserves are set for the HRA to
enable uneven pressures to be effectively dealt
with, and to provide cover against unforeseen
events / pressures

Page 137 86



Risk Area & Issue arising Controls / Mitigation Action

Financial planning lacks appropriate levels of prudency

Business Planning
assumptions are wildly
inaccurate .
Financial policies, in general,

are not sufficiently robust

Funding to support the
approved Capital &
Revenue Projects Plan is not
available

Council has adopted key prudency principles,
reflected in:

Use of external expert opinion and detailed
trend data to inform assumptions

Ongoing revenue funding for capital is reviewed
for affordability as part of the 30-year modelling
process

Adoption of strict medium / long-term planning
Policy on applying general capital receipts for
strategic disposals only at point of receipt

Use of resources is not effectively managed

There is ineffective use of the °
resources available to the
HRA °

Failure to deliver Major .
Housing / Development
Projects, i.e. return on
capital, project on time etc.

Council employs robust business planning
processes for the HRA

Council has adopted a standard project
management framework

A business cases is required for all strategic
acquisitions, disposals and one-off areas of
significant investment

Housing Service is required to conftribute to
Portfolio Planning process, linked directly to
resources

Performance and contractor management
procedures are robust and contracts are
enforceable

Organisational development and workforce
planning activity is ongoing and reflects the
needs of the HRA

The Council’'s accounts are audited on an
annual basis, with assurance given that the
authority is delivering economy, efficiency and
effectiveness in its use of resources

Page 138 87



Risk Area & Issue arising Controls / Mitigation Action

External income / funding streams

Undue reliance may be
placed on external income
streams, leading to approval
of unsustainable expenditure

Rent and service charge
arrears increase and bad
debt rises, as a direct result of
the Welfare Benefit Reforms

Rent income is under-
achieved due to a major
incident in the housing stock

Changes to the right to buy
rules and pooling regulations
result in a continued high
level of sales, with the
associated commitment to
deliver replacement units or
pay over receipts with
interest

Volatility and competition in
the property market impacts
the ability to fund capital
pressures from the sale of
assefts

Modelling over the medium and long-term is
conducted for key income sources, including
sensitivity analysis of potential changes
Council seeks to influence national settlements
and legislative changes through response to
formal consultation and the provision of
information to negotiation bodies such as LGA
and CIH

Increased resources identified for income
management. Performance closely monitored
to allow further positive action if required.

Asset Management Plan in place to identify and
address key issues in the housing stock to
minimise likelihood of widespread incidents

Sensitivities modelled so potential impacts are
understood

Retained resources are monitored to ensure
delivery of required units or return of resource at
earliest opportunity

Policy on applying general capital receipts for
strategic disposals only at point of receipt

Page 139 88



000°616°9
00069/
00005 L9
0

o O o o

O O O O O oo oo o o

03
}abpng

0zZ/610C

68

ainypuadx3 juswdojaAaaq
-9Y /pling M3N [bjo]
sasN|dINS VIH — PlINg MON

sidiooay gLy + — pPling MaN
UOHBWOH

wln4 AD|1D

salIS Juswdo|eaag

-9y UO BUISNOH |aMIDW
(o41S 96pI0D) PPOY U3

(ous
abnIn9) pLoY uINog|Nd

(ous
abnIDD) POOY SUNMDH

(o41S ©60IDD) 801D SUM}Y
POY SSO|POM

POOY PlaIsaUDIS

950|D YBNoIogssjAy

aup7 JBIoM

(L @spyd) proy aliAl0D

(L @spyd) ppoy updwod
PPOY |[eMulog

9s0|D JawlioT

JNoD s, aupr

awayss juswdojaaaq
-9y / pling MSN

0007666 0ze'/L8T°LL 1 008'8C8'6L 0L9'CTLE'OL 08L'SBO'9L 0£0'8T8'V

000'7¥8°¢ 0 0 0 0 0

0000519 000'186°0L  000't¥T'8 000°LESY 0 0

0 0 000705 000705 0 0

0 0Ce'90€"9 0081808 089'¥9¢ 0€8'199"L 0

0 0 0 0 000'768°C 0

0 0 0 0 092'cel’l 0

0 0 0 0 0LV 66€"L 0

0 0 0 0 068°cé¥’L 0

0 0 0 0 081989 092'c

0 0 0 0 04989/ 016"l

0 0 0 0 088'68¥ 04908

0 0 0 0597101 0sL'eée’l 00T’ 06¥

0 0 0 01049 0€8'9498 oLL'L91L

0 0 0 0 o9 181°L 0S6°L1lE

0 0 0 0ce’LLE 06v'8lC’L 0/2'8C1’L

0 0 0 0 0/4¥7'0€9 oLl LEY

0 0 0 0 026889 028086

0 0 0 0 0 0£0°€€T’ |

(en|pA pupi |PUOKON / Apisqng ssol) s, J9dojaAaq Jo joN) ainjipuadx]y yspd juswdojaaag-ay / pling MaN
0.3 0.3 0.3 0.3 0.3 0.3

}obpng }obpng jobpng }obpng }obpng s|pn}OYy
61/810C 8L/L10C L1/910C 9L/510C SL/v10T ID3\ Jold

4 Xipuaddy

MOJJYsDD JUSWISDAU| pling MON

Page 140



O O O o o

o O

O O O o o o o

06

O O O O O
o O O O O
o O O O o
O O O o o
O O O O O

0 0 0 0 (or0'250°1)

0 0 0 0 0
0 0 0 0 0

0 0 0 0 0

0 0 0 0 (082'L¥71)
0
(orv'sel)

o O
o O
o O
o O

0
0

(ov2'9¢¢)
(0oy'0¢)
(ove'901)
(ore'901)
0

O O O O O o o
O O O O O o O
O O O O O O O
O O O O o o o

(L ©soyd) proy 8jIIAj0D

(L &spyd) proy updwod
pPROoY ||]eMmulog

950|D JowlinT

1NOD s,aupr

Buipung Ang o} jybiy pauipiay

O O O O O

(085°209) Buipung juswdojaaaqg
-9Y / Pling MaN |PjO]
0 (o41S ©B0I0D) PPOY UM

0 (oHS
abnIn9) proY uINOg|N4

0 (ous
abnIND) POOY SUNMDH

0 (8115 8BLIDD) 850D SUMIY
0 POOY SSO|IPOM
(ovv'se) (JupiD s8lilWOD Daly

3001 “|2Ul) PPOY plelseuUD|S
250|D ybBNoIogssjAyY

BuD7 J8IOM

(L ©soyd) POy 8jIIAj0D
(L @spyd) proy updwod
ore'901) POOY [[oMUIDg
ore901) 250|D) JowiloT
09%'¥5¢) 1IN0D s, 9UD[

o O O O

—_— ) —

Buipung aaiLWIO)D Daly pub jubis juswdojaAaqg-ay / pling MaN

03 03 03 03 03 03
}obpng }obpng }obpng }obpng }obpng }obpng
0zZ/6102 61/8102 8L/L102 L1/9102 9L/5102 SL/v10T

03
s|pN}OY
Ipa loud

awayos juswdojaaaq
-9Y / pling MaN

Page 141



000°009°C

000'vL¥'T

(0o00’'sv8°l)

(000°5¥8'1)

o o o o o

O o O o o o

03
}abpng
0z/610C

000°L¥S'T

000209°'S

(000'sv8°l1)

(000'5¥8'1)

o o o o o

o o O O o o

0.3
}obpng
61/8102

L6

000°SLEY

oLv'zeT’s

(016°6£9'Y)

(00g'v62'€)

0

(019'68¢°1)

0
0

o o O O o o

0.3
1o6png
8L/L10T

000°9¥¥’9

0c6'vve's

(0£8°£€0°9)

(006'2L¥'2)

(088°6/2)

(060'682°1)

0
0

o o O o o o

0.3
1obpng
LL/910T

0

ové'cLL'S

(0c.'861°C)

(00g"65€ 1)

(088'6/4)
(065°65)

0
0

O o o o o o

03
}abpng
9L/5102

0

06£20€C1L

(ose'szL'T)

0

0
(062'8¥€)

(00Z'898)
(0c8'6¢c¢)
(ovg'61¥)

(0£1'8¥¥)

0
(0zs'00¢)

0.3
}9bpng
SL/v10T

0

0S¥’'szT’y

o O o o o o

o o O O o o

03
s|pNyOy
Ipa) Jold

Buimoliog
VYH wolj jdw 3o5up|pg
$92IN0SdY
VYH wolj jdw asup|pg

Buipuny

Ang o} b1y pauip}ay |pjoL
sidieoay

dld UM — pling MON
UOLIBWOH

w4 ADID

salIS Juswdojaaag

-9y UO BUISNOH (oI0W
(941S ©BPI0D) POOY U3
(aks

abnInD) PLOY UINOg|IN4
(aHs

ob0I0D) POOY SUNMDH
(o41S ©6DIDD) 850|D SUB}Y
POOY SOO|IPOM

(1unID 88}4,D PalY

3001 ‘|oUl) PPOY PlalsSauUDIS
950|D Ybnoiogss|Ay

ouUDT JOIOM

awayos juswdojaraq
-9Y / pling MaN

Page 142



4

"S|qIBAIBP AJIN} JOU 210J2I3Y} 'SJSOD [OUOIID0SUDI) Ul 950210Ul 84} O} UOCIIPP Ul 8S081dUl UD jNg

1o sup|d [Ua.IND PUL 0Z/6102
AQ payoaiqg sI dd jgep ay]

"upid 8y} o 8y IDBA ¢ By}
JOAO ©2JN0Sal |OUOIIPPL UOI|IW 973

"9|qQuIBAIBP AJN} JOU 8I0J8I18 Y}
210D sup|d [UBIIND PUDL 0Z/6107
AQ payonaiqg st dod 1gap ayl

"B|qQIBAIBP AJN} JOU 8I0J8I8 Y}
210 sup|d UauND PUDL 0Z/6107
AQ payonaiqg sl dod jgap ayl

"2|qQpIBAIIBP A|IN} JOU 810J8I8Y}
21D sup|d JUBIND PUD 0Z/610Z
AQ payopnaliqg sl dod |gap ay|
"9|qJBAIIBP AlIN} JOU 810J8I8Y}
21D sup|d JUBND PUD 0Z/610Z

"/1/9102 WOl wnuupb Jad % [OUOHIPPO
up JO Jg8pP PPg Ul 8spaIduUl Bulobuo up

Ul “oWNssy ‘SiUpuUa| Wolj A|Joalip palo9||0D
Buleq [UaJ JO %00 | Ul SINSa 11palD) [0SISAIUN

'Q1// 102 WO} %E 10 a1p1 Bulobuo awnssy
"9|gpIA 8A0Id Abw suoldo Bulpus| wial-buo)
10 ‘paypdIDIIUD UDY} 8I0W JOA0DSI ADW $B10Y
‘JUDAONQ Sl ebpuquind

ul Algsnpul Buiping 8y} so £ [/9 10 Wo4
SI0BA 7 BulUIDWSI IO} %G SI palinbal aspaIdul
AIDUOIIDIUI (DB JDY} SWNSSY “UOIIDUI
BuIp|iNg 10} POMOI|ID SI %E JO BSDBIDUI 08I Y
‘ainjipusadxs o} paioduwod

BuloBbuo uolp|juUl 8SOQ SjUSI Ul UoILONpPal
%G 0 DWNSSY “ainlipuadxs Yiim paipodwod
SJUBI IO} PBSN |dD SY4 Ul UOIIDUDA D O} PO
PINOD S840 UOID|JUl Alyjuow Ul SuolipNioN|4
"uoid sy} o 8|

8y} 1o} AjJuo ainjipuadxs IO} uolip|ul |pIBUSHD
Ul ©S08IDUI % | "SISO [DUISIXS Ul 8SDaIDUI

upD O} P3| PINOD AUIOUODS By} Ul AlIILDIOA

"18SIN0 By} WOJ) Soll Jsalalul

AQ payonaiq s dod [gop Sy Ul %z 1O 9502I0Ul YIM ‘SUDO| 8101 PaXI) SUINSSY

jopdwj [pIdUDULY

o xijpuaddy

P3lI9POW AjAlIsUSS AS)

$]SOD UOI}D8]|0D

[OUOI}DOSUD.Y suIojoy
2I0J|SM PUD
‘AUAIJOD DLIOJSIY  UOND3J0D

UO pasnq sisoD  [uay BuisnoH

wia-buol
% | O} BuispaiIoul
$O2UD|DQ 2WoDU|
UO JSalaju|  JUBWIISOAU
SIDBA
G 10} |dD @A0QPL UOLB|UI

9¢ 10 UOIIDJJU| 8spalou| [0y

JUSWISSAU|  JUSWIISOAU|
JojdnD JojdnD
L1/910C

WO} %z 10

IdD Usyl ‘91/5102
10} %" | 10 |dD UOHBU| SjUSYy

ainjipuadxs 1o)
%T 10 |dD Puisn UoHB|JU|
UOIIDJJU [DIBUSD) [JEETS)
%y BuimoLog

1D UDO| AlUNJOW [DUOIIPPD 10}
9]0J PaXl} dIMd Se10y Jsaisaju]
uoydwinssy

oidoj
upjd ssauisng

SISA|puy AJIAljISUSS AD)

Page 143



051'98¥'C
040N TAN]

(09¥'£89°S1)
(069'961)

(oL8°06¥'S1)
0£9'06Z'SE
088'8/9°¢
008'vC
0SL1'0L0¥71L
0S/'/61'8
0SC'769'C
or8'¥89'v

(ost’'L82'8P)

(0zy'9zy)
(08r°€)
(026'20.'C)
(0£8°981°L)
(062" 19%'¥¥)

03
0z/610T

051°'G8¥'C
0015208

(000'ZL¥'SL)
(ooz'v8l)

(008°'22Z'S1)
0ZL'8E9’LE

089956
092°'¢€C
0c9'982°¢cl
ovL'lZ8'L
00€£L19°C
0co'cee’y

(0z6'598'9%)

(090'81¥)
(oL¥'¢)
(081'¥59°2)
(065°€91°L)
(089'929cy)

03
61/810C

H Xipuaddy

€6

0 0 0 0L2'L 18
059'988°/L 0l2'0L9L 06C'L¥S'L VAWAZ Wi

20UD|0Q VyH UO JusWSAOW 8y} Ul INg JUNODDY ainjipuadxy pupn auwodU| VYH 8yl Ul Jou swaj|

apIsy oS BuisNoH
1S8J9}U] UDOT

(oz8's8c’'sl) (ov9'0sz'sL) (09°291'sL) (0osz'zLy'SL) Ipba\ ayj o) poyaq / (sniding) wyH

(06¥'2L1) (0z2'012) (016'822) (0zy'vSL) S|qAISD8Y JSalalu|
1UNODDY | AlUOYINY S|OYM Ul papNn|dul alnjipuadxa pun auwodul bulipniado Jo aIoyS ViH
(092'8c6'vL) (018°LLE'SL)

(0og8c’80z’'s1) (0zs'6€S°SL) S9DIAISS WYYH JO §SOD JON

0SS'V96'6T OLY'06S'LT  OL8'6YT'9C 0LV'8LS'VT ainjipuadxy |pjoj
096'LSY'S  0SS'9rE'E 068'8€0°C  0S9'ST6'T ainjipuadx3y Jeyio
05/'2C 006°1T 08l°le 0 ainjipuadxy jusweboubw jged
092'8/V'TL  069'S/8°0l 026'60G°0L  01S'8¥€0l "say sioday Jolow of 4/} — uonpioaidag
0/¥'Tey'L  061°/01°L 0c0'¥289 0¥ 16'S SOUDUSIUIDW ¢ siloday
0/8'CVS'T  00V'SLY'T OLEYIY'T  0L6'102'C [0108dS - JusweBPUDW g uoisiaedng
0ZT'9¥0'y  089'€9/'€ 08y’ l¥y'S  0T6'/81'E [DI2USD) - JusWSBDUDW g uoisiaedng
alnjipuadxy

(oLe6'zzL'sy) (occocL'sy) (o0zs'88L'Ly) (08Z'968°4€) awodu| [pjo]
(0£0°LEY) (oov'cvy) (060'5S¥) (01 1'99¥) QwodU| JByl0
(ore'e) (0gz'¢) (ol1z'e) (ogL’col) ainjipuadxy SPIOMO} UOINAUIUOD
(0L¥'9092)  (095°655°C) (086°/¥¥'2) (0L2'€0T'2) sebIoyD o2IAISS
(ogzorl’l) (oL¥'gLL'L) (08¥'960°L)  (000'¥90°1) (4oylQ) swoou| [pjUSy
(oLe'166'0r) (089'500°¢c) (018'S8L£E) (022 650°9€) (sBullem) swodu| [ojusy
SWODU|

03 03 03 03
uonduosa
8L/L10T L1/910T 91/510C SL/v10T Hap=sad

61/810C ©} S1/¥10Z Aiowwing YyH

Page 144



(052°050°¢)

0
(0vZ'266'2)

(oL5'8S)

09/'S10'S
0

(ovz'z66'C)

0
(068'766°C)

059°C

00¥'¥06'y
0

vé

(068'166°C)

0
(086'266'2)

(oL6°'1)

ole’L6y'L
0

(086'C66°C)

0
(oc1'z6C¥)

051°662°L

01965 L1
(0€0'002°2)

(ocL'zéT'V)

0
(016'282'S)

082'066

Ovy'89601
(08z'15€2)

(016'282'S)

(09c'c1z' )
(0t£'088'8)

06L°LL8'Y

097'8EE Y |
(ogr'cly'e)

}/2 @dupj|pg |p}o1

SAISSDY PONIDW-I0T WOJ] J8)SuUDI|
}/d 92UD|Dg

103 oy yoyaq / (sniding)

[oHdDD JO Buidupul{ 8nuaAay 1oallq
Juswisnlpy uolpbioaidag

Page 145



0cy
L0€

00l
€s¢
0S¥

Ly
001
9/9C
vGé
1C9

S9L

0¢
G61
0SS

000.%
0z/6102

L19
L0€

00l
ese
8/

oy
001l
206’1
90¢€
009

S94

0¢
Gél
0SS

0003
61/810T

| Xipuaddy

g6

8G9
00¢€

001l
L9¢C
GOl

88
001
£S€°1
%
99y

S9L

0¢
G61
0SS

000.F
8L/L10T

v/C
44

001l
G9¢
1444

€9
001
9ce’|
611
¢6e

S9L

0c
G6l
0SS

000.F
L1/910C

0l¢
AL,

00l
09¢
eLe

801
001
9011
4
869

S6L

o€
0¢

Gél
0SS

000,
9L/s10T

40
1991
Gv6

001
68
4%
¢0S
¢le
001l
vLLL
¢L9
8lé

S9L

0¢
Gél
0SS

0003
sL/vioc

sAauWIYyD

BUBA0D JOOY

2IN{ONULS JOOY

BuljuInd |oulaix3
UOHOINSUI [|OM

SOUSIUL [IOM

BINLONULS |IOM

SMOPUIM NDAd

$100( |PUIBIX]
Aouaio1y}3 ABiau3 / uolp|Nsu
slajlog / BullbaH [pus)d
swoolyiog

SUSYON

SOWOH juadaq

puads |ppdpD ViH

puadg |pydp) BuisnoH pung |pPIBUSS |B}O]
WSsAS || Pull}a1 pasog 9210yD

SIUDDDA WIa| Buo]

SUDOT PUD SJUDIS BUISNOH 101085 S1DALd
SIUDIO SBIIOBS Pa|qsId

BIIUSD) JUBWISSOSSY

puads |pjidp) BuisnoH puny |pIBUSS

uoyduosaq

upjd jusawysaAuj |pjidpd BuisnoH

Page 146



051
00¢€
S
Lc

8.8
001
001

¥90°6
4%°]

86/
0Lz
Al
L¥E
0

L
0S
001
4]
40
8¢
474

000.%
0z/610C

0S1
00¢€
YS
4

8.8
001
001l

€LE9
444

0oLs
0
Al
4%
0

0
0S
001
4]
201
8l
9G¢€

000.3

61/810T

26

051
00¢€
4]
Lc

8.8
001
001

€T6'L
¢Le

LL9

€99°C

Al

N4

0

0

0S

001l

€g

40

9¢

0cl
000.¥

8L/L10T

44!

051
00¢€
oS
¥4

8.8
00C
88/

€20’
961

€69

610°¢

Al

43

0

0

0s

001l

€S

40]

6

VAR
000.¥

L1/910C

08¢
00¢€
vs
¥4

8/8
00¢
88/

8GL°L
69

089

£60°C

Al

43

0

S

0s

0S1

1514

¢0l

601

181
000.3

9L/s10T

v/C
8E6
965
¥4

86
00¢
00€

[ATN"

Ky
0
44
194
0

€
0s
L1
LOC
201
LT
L6

000.¥

sL/vioc

BuUIlDAD8Y - PUD] VYH UO BuIidnuNs pIoH
SHIOM ALBJ0S

PUD YL|DBH - pUDT VYH U Buidonuns pIoH
SHIOM AlSJDS B4 / UOIJUBASIH Bl

Hildn spauy [puNWWoD

BWBYDS SAILUSDU| SJUDUS|

suolpidopy pajqpsidg

[DAOWBY SOISOQSY

sjuswaAoIdw| 8bInD

3204S V¥H uo puads 1ayjo

SSWIOH jua23( |p}o]
UOILDDO|Y PIINg MBN SOWOH luada
SPPBYISAQ J0LODIUOD

92UDUSBUID PBUUD|d SOWOH luaoa(
Bopong SOWOoH juada(

$994 |DUOISSD]0Id |PUIBIX]
SOWIOH JUu298(J - $894 192110 pasplidpnD
dwpq buipiisusad / dung Buisly

SHIOM [OUIBIXT JBYLO

SHOM A0S PUD Y}oSH JoUiO
AdusBuluoD SYSHH

SHIOM JOIDW / SPIOA Jolow

SYOPHY d1oyding

$10109]9Q 30oWs

BUlIM / 100U}033

uoyduosaq

Page 147



00cC

00¢

6169
69.

051’9

(@)

8959°C

9¢C
00¢
el

48
0

000.%
0z/610C

00c

00¢

v66°6
14483

051’9

(@)

8959°C

9¢C
00¢
€l

48!
0
000.3

61/810T

L6

00

00¢

L8T°LL
0

186°01
0
?0€°9
0

(@)

859°C

9¢C
00¢
el

48
0
000.¥

8L/L10T

00¢

00¢

62861

eve's
05’
¢80°'8

o

€89°¢

LEE
00¢
el

48
0
000.¥

L1/910C

00¢C

00¢

G66°ElL

LESY
v0G'¢C
G9¢

289t
elo’e

0£9°E

0ee
00¢
el

148
0
000.3

9L/s10T

90¢€

90¢€

¥89°LT
0

0
0
¢Sq’L
v68°C

ey
6€9°L 1
LL9

1474 4

4512
Gle
4

44
Gee
000.¥

sL/vioc

sawwbiboid

juswaAoiduwi| ajpjs3 SSWOH Al |pjoL
auwpibold

JuswaAoIdul] 810153 SOWOH ALID
awwbiboid juswaroidw| 9ypjs3 SSWOH AHD

Pling M3N V¥H Ibjol
sosN|AINS VY H JO JUBWIISOAU| - PlINg MON
uswjsanul jdiooay

41y PauIoiay P8IoI0|PuUN - PliINg MON
UOJLISWIOH - PIINg MaN

wio4 AoID - pling MON

SOlIS VYH UO BUISNOH 1oIoW

(eN[OA pUDT - puSds [OUOION)
2WWINIBOId BUISNOH S|gPPIOLY JIDBA €
SWWIBOId BUISNOH S|gPPIONY IDBA €

HNOD UDWOY
juswdo|aAaq-ay / p|ing MaN VY¥H

20}s YYH uo puads 12y}0 |pjo]
SPLBYISAQ JOIODIJUOD 9DUDUSIUIDW
pauUD|d X204S VYH Uo puads JsylO
Buioua4

SWIBISAS AU J0OQ PUD SHIT
puadg

3201S VYH 1Yl - 5994 19210 pasiopdo)d
SBULISAOD) JOO|H SDaJY [PUNWUIOD

uoyduosaq

Page 148



08S'¥C
vo'y

9€6'61

LZL'61

0ce
0¢
0
00¢€

000.%
0z/610C

989°¢€T
9Ty'e

09z'0c

G661

0ce
0¢
0
00¢€

000.3
61/810T

86

088°'LE
L1LT

€9L'6T

86£°8C

0ce
0¢
0
00¢

000.¥
8L/L10T

GTL'SE
G62'C

0€8°ce

§90°CE

0ce
0€
0
00¢€

000.¥
L1/910C

96°6C
G/T'|

1£9°8C

948°LT

€59¢
o€
0
00¢€

(4

006°L
006l

000.3
9L/s10T

LST'6€
LES

0zL'8E

956°LE

6vT’L
81
€99
00¢€
Ll

9/

4

006°L
006’1

000.¥
sL/vioc

puads |ppdpD BuisnoH pajpjju| [pjo]
SIDB A @IniN4 1o} Juswisnipy

UOILONPaY MD0IS PUD SDUDMO|Y UOID|U|
S92lid

ID3a ) aspbg b puads |ppdn) Buisnoy [pjo]

puads [pjidpD VYH Ipjol

puads |ppdpD VYH JSUiO [pjol
Aliadold [pIoJBswWwo)

Aong Ang [Osn}ay fsild 4O {UBLY
aspyoinday diysioumQ palioys
SO2I}O PBIY Ul SWBJSAS BuljooD Iy
JIOMIBN 10108S Dl|Ignd abpugquind

asogpiQ gy / BUIOM SIIGOW
/ 10100DJIU0D uad(Q / apnibdn pioy210

puads |pjidpD V¥H 1940
juswysaau] [pydn) BuisnoH paiayays |pjol

9200|d WNQqyoiid
juswisaau] [pydpD BuisnoH palaydys

uoyduosaq

Page 149



(zoL'1)

(coL'1)

(6£5°v2)
(009°2)
(1£2)
(S78'L)
(0og)

(910°G)
(0L0v1)
0

0

(£€S)

000.%
0z/610C

(coL'1)

(0)

(coL'1)

(0)

(989'c2)
(£¥5°C)
(L£2)
(S¥8'L)
(0og)

(¥06'7)
(£82°¢1)
0

0

(zes)

000.3
61/810T

66

"awwinlbold ayl ojul palpIodiodul AN} usag SADY $&2Ld |D0IIUOD 82U UBUIDW Pauub|d
MBU By} JO Jopdwll 8yl 92UO0 UOIDIUI 91 /S 107 10} AIddD [Iim SWIDS 84 "UMOUX Sl UolISOd UINNO pUS-IDd8A 8y} 82U0
SjUBWS|S SBWIOY JUSD8P ISUIDBD P800 84 [IM G| /171 0Z 10} puads seuwoy Jusdap 8y} JO Jusws|d AIouUolLD|jul Y]

(co1'1)

(soL’1)

(8£8°LE)
(S£%)
(1£2)
(0897
(050°2)

(L6v'2)
(8/¥'cl)
0

0

(£25)

000.¥
8L/L10T

(soL’1)

(L)

(FoL'1)

(1)

(9z1's¢)
(97%°9)
(1£2)
(8c0°G)
(669°1)

(0851 1)
(0£5°¢)
0

0

(zes)

000.¥
L1/910C

(voL'1)

8/SY

(z89's)

8/SV

(89¢'s2)
0

(L£2)
(661°C)
(0og)

(896°01)
(zev'/)
(z89°¢)

0

(916)

000.3
9L/s10T

(z89°'s)

L9v°C

((4K:))

L9¥'C

(962'9¢)
0

(L£2)
(522'2)
(£6€"1)

(8ecv1)
(889°21)
(¢z6'7)

0

(S6¥)

000.¥
sL/vioc

}/2 saoup|pg [pHdpD

I02 A Ul seoup|og (0} uolNguUIuoD) / Jo asn

}/q s9dupjpg [pPdDD

$921N0say JO lIoiyaq / (sniding) 1oN

$92In0saY |pHdpD BuisnoH |PjoL
puimoliog [pluspnid

HURIO SOIHIIDBS PaIgSIA

sidiooay Ang o} JyBIY paulbiey

(Buipung ¥y / diysisumo

PaIDYS / SIUDID) $82IN0SsaY |PHADD IBYLO
|oHdDD JO Buidupul{ 8NUBASY D8l

DAISSDY SlInday Jolbw

(sewayos

pliNg MaN) sidioday pupT [DUOION
(sBuliema

pup pun7) sidieday [pHdpD JBYLO
sjdiooay Ang o} {ybdiy

$92In0saYy [PHADD Buisnoy

uoyduosaq

Page 150



Appendix J

Cambridge City Council Equality Impact Assessment &

1. Title of strategy, policy, plan, project, contract or major change to your service:

Budget 2015/16 (HRA) EqlA

2. What is the objective or purpose of your strategy, policy, plan, project, contract or
major change to your service?

The HRA Budget Setting Report enables the City Council to set a balanced budget for
2015/16 that reflects the Council's vision statements and takes into account councillor's
priorities in its proposals for achieving the savings required. This EQIA assesses the equality
impacts of the Housing Revenue Account (HRA) element of the City Council's budget; a
separate EQIA has been completed for the General Fund (GF) element of the Council's
budget.

An Equality Impact Assessment (EqlA) has been completed for budget proposals that will
result in significant service changes. This EqIA sets out the material information from these
EqlAs. This approach is intended to ensure that elected Members have access to all the
relevant information on the equality impact of budget proposals at the point when they are
being asked to make a decision. This will enable Members to discharge their Duty under the
Equality Act 2010 to consider the equality impacts of decisions.

EqlAs have been completed for the following budget proposals :

e PPF3521 HRA - Increase in the budget for the Under-Occupation Scheme

e PPF3513 HRA - Increased staffing capacity to meet the Housing Plus Agenda

e PPF3520 HRA/ C3519 - Support and maintenance for a Self-Service Portal for the
Housing Service /Purchase and implementation of a Self-Service Portal for the
Housing Service -

e PROG3709 - ICT Shared Service

e PROG3710 - Legal Shared Service

e PROG3661 - Reduction in support and central costs through a Council wide Support
Services Review

e URP3506 - Inability to recharge full costs of building cleaning services

Page 151 Page 1




3. Who will be affected by this strategy, policy, plan, project, contract or major
change to your service? (Please tick those that apply)

X Residents
X Visitors
X Staff

A specific client group or groups (please state):

This is a composite EqlA for all 2015 -2016 HRA budget bids and it covers all Council
housing revenue account services.

4. What type of strategy, policy, plan, project, contract or major change to your
service is this? (Please tick)

X New
X Revised
X Existing

5. Responsible directorate and service

Directorate: This report involves cross organisation responsibility and is managed by a team
from different departments in the Council — Corporate Strategy and Finance have
coordinated the document, with input from City Homes, Strategic Housing and Estates and
Facilities in particular.

6. Are other departments or partners involved in delivering this strategy, policy, plan,
project, contract or major change to your service?

0 No

X Yes (please give details):

This is an assessment of the Council's HRA budget and therefore covers all HRA services. In
particular the EqglA considers the equalities impacts of proposals submitted by City Homes,
Strategic Housing, Estates and Facilities, ICT and Legal. The budget also affects some of
our partnership working, notably with South Cambridegshire District Council and
Huntingdonshire District Council, and has the ability to impact the County Council in respect
of the delivery of support activity and housing plus services.

Page 152 Page 2




7. Potential impact

Please list and explain how this strategy, policy, plan, project, contract or major change to
your service could positively or negatively affect individuals from the following equalities
groups.

¢ Informal consultation is being carried out with staff where appropriate.

¢ Formal consultation with staff will follow if the Council supports the staffing changes
proposed in some areas of the HRA budget. This consultation will take place on a number
of specific elements of proposed changes over the next six to nine months.

¢ No individual public consultation is proposed with service users (tenants and
leaseholders) because no significant change in service delivery is anticipated.
Consultation with tenant and leaseholder representatives is however undertaken through
the formal committee process and through specific tenant led representative groups, such
as the Housing Regulation Panel.

e This EQIA is a working document. There are two parts of the process. The first stage will
be to formally consult staff and unions on the creation of the single shared service and
the second stage will be to work through detailed implementation issues which will also
be subject to consultation with staff and unions. Throughout these stages the EQIA will be
updated.

(a) Age (any group of people of a particular age, including younger and older people — in
particular, please consider any safeguarding issues for children and vulnerable adults)

PPF3513 - As part of the Housing Plus Agenda, it is proposed to recruit an additional
member of staff to work with tenants to provide financial advice, support and advocacy to
prevent households getting into financial crisis. This has a potential positive impact.

PPF3521 - Due to a good level of take up, it is proposed to increase the level of funding for
the Under-Occupation Scheme by £40,000 per annum on an ongoing basis. This fund
supports people to leave larger properties to find more suitable sized homes. This has a
positive impact on low income groups who may not be able to afford to maintain large
properties. The fund supports a positive transition and a move to a more manageable
situation for older people.

C3519 - This bid would allow the authority to investigate, and if proven beneficial, provide
self-service access to housing tenants of the Council to the housing management information
system, allowing residents to check the status of their rent accounts, make payments and
request and monitor progress about repairs. Some older people may find accessing digital
services more difficult so there may be a negative impact but this is an additional service to
the more traditional ways of contacting the housing teams so the impact is mitigated.

PROG3661 — In the first phase of this project, 35 -44 year olds are potentially more affected
than other age groups by the proposals as they make up around 41% of the total group (this
means 11 people) However, as the project will be consulting on these proposals around mid-
December, the full impact is unknown at this time. The EqlA will be updated as the project
progresses.

No disproportionate has been identified for the other bid proposals contained in the 2014/15
HRA Budget Setting Report.

Page 153 Page 3




(b) Disability (including people with a physical impairment, sensory impairment, learning
disability, mental health problem or other condition which has an impact on their daily life)

C3519 - This bid would allow the authority to investigate, and if proven beneficial, provide
self-service access to housing tenants of the Council to the housing management information
system, allowing residents to check the status of their rent accounts, make payments and
request and monitor progress about repairs. Some people with disabilities may find
accessing digital services more difficult to access so there may be a minor negative impact
but this is an additional service to the more traditional ways of contacting the housing teams
so the impact is mitigated and could be a positive benefit as those who find it difficult to travel
could access their services online.

No disproportionate has been identified for the other bid proposals contained in the 2014/15
HRA Budget Setting Report.

(c) Gender

PPF3521 - Due to a good level of take up, it is proposed to increase the level of funding for
the Under-Occupation Scheme by £40,000 per annum on an ongoing basis. Due to a good
level of take up, it is proposed to increase the level of funding for the Under-Occupation
Scheme by £40,000 per annum on an ongoing basis. This fund supports people to leave
larger properties to find more suitable sized homes. This has a potential positive impact on
women who may not be able to afford to move to large properties.

PROG3661 — In the first phase of this project, men are potentially more affected by the
proposal as they make up around 63% of the group affected (17 people) However, the
project has not yet defined the actual impacts as the consultation on these proposals is not
due until mid-December. The EqlA will be updated as the project progresses.

No disproportionate has been identified for the other bid proposals contained in the 2014/15
HRA Budget Setting Report.

(d) Pregnancy and maternity

PPF3521 - Due to a good level of take up, it is proposed to increase the level of funding for
the Under-Occupation Scheme by £40,000 per annum on an ongoing basis. Due to a good
level of take up, it is proposed to increase the level of funding for the Under-Occupation
Scheme by £40,000 per annum on an ongoing basis. This fund supports people to leave
larger properties to find more suitable sized homes. This has a potential positive impact on
women and their families who may need a larger property at the time of their pregnancy.

NCL3555 - Based upon the latest pay negotiations, a pay award of 2.2% is proposed, to be
effective from January 2015 and to cover both pay reviews due in April 2014 and April 2015.
This might mean a marginal benefit to staff taking maternity leave, as the maternity pay would
be based upon the pay offer.

No disproportionate has been identified for the other bid proposals contained in the 2014/15
HRA Budget Setting Report.

Page 154 Page 4




(e) Transgender (including gender re-assignment)

No disproportionate has been identified for the other bid proposals contained in the 2014/15
HRA Budget Setting Report.

(f) Marriage and Civil Partnership

No disproportionate has been identified for the other bid proposals contained in the 2014/15
HRA Budget Setting Report.

(9) Race or Ethnicity

No disproportionate has been identified for the other bid proposals contained in the 2014/15
HRA Budget Setting Report.

(h) Religion or Belief

No disproportionate has been identified for the other bid proposals contained in the 2014/15
HRA Budget Setting Report.

(i) Sexual Orientation

No disproportionate has been identified for the other bid proposals contained in the 2014/15
HRA Budget Setting Report.

Page 155 Page 5




(j) Other factors that may lead to inequality — in particular — please consider the impact
of any changes on low income groups or those experiencing the impacts of poverty
(please state):

NCL3555 - Based upon the latest pay negotiations, a pay award of 2.2% is proposed, to be
effective from January 2015 and to cover both pay reviews due in April 2014 and April 2015.
This might mean a marginal benefit to those on low incomes as lower paid jobs would see a
very small increase.

PPF3521 - Due to a good level of take up, it is proposed to increase the level of funding for
the Under-Occupation Scheme by £40,000 per annum on an ongoing basis. Due to a good
level of take up, it is proposed to increase the level of funding for the Under-Occupation
Scheme by £40,000 per annum on an ongoing basis. This fund supports people to leave
larger properties to find more suitable sized homes. This has a potential positive impact on
people on lower incomes either manage a positive transition to a smaller property or move to
a larger one depending on need.

URP3506 - A review of the cost of building cleaning services across the communal areas of
the housing stock resulted in an increase in costs to the HRA from 2014/15 onwards. A
decision was taken in the 2014/15 budget process not to pass the higher costs on to
residents as the service was undergoing a review, with the anticipated outcome being a
significant reduction in costs following a tender process which was expected to conclude
before April 2015. This project has been delayed, which results in the need to either extend
meeting the additional cost from HRA resources, or to pass on higher costs to residents
temporarily. The Council is currently tendering this service and depending on the new
contractor — costs may go up or down for tenants. The Council has mitigated this by covering
the increased costs for the last 2 years. This may have an impact on those on low incomes
but until the results and subsequent contract details are known, it won’t be clear if costs will
go up or down or remain the same.

Page 156 Page 6




8. If you have any additional comments please add them here

The overall number of HRA budget items included in the HRA Budget Setting Report was 38
— some of these are linked together.

EqlAs were completed for 7 bids.
Many of the bids had no disproportionate impact for the following reasons:

e No or little impact on people — e.g. capital bids

¢ |t was too early to assess the impacts or they had been previously assessed last year
and had been to Committee and then were delayed in being implemented — the EqlAs
for these bids have been looked at as part of this process.

e The scale of change was small or process related e.g. small increase in hours for an
existing post or internal recharging.

The greatest impacts were on age, pregnancy, maternity, disability and socio economic
factors. Positive impacts generally outweighed the negative and were already being
mitigated.

All of the EqglAs are available for viewing and can be found here: HRA EqglAs

9. Conclusions and Next Steps

¢ If you have not identified any negative impacts, please sign off this form.

¢ |If you have identified potential negative actions, you must complete the action plan at the
end of this document to set out how you propose to mitigate the impact. If you do not feel
that the potential negative impact can be mitigated, you must complete question 8 to
explain why that is the case.

o |If there is insufficient evidence to say whether or not there is likely to be a negative
impact, please complete the action plan setting out what additional information you need
to gather to complete the assessment.

10.Sign off

Name and job title of assessment lead officer: Julia Hovells

Names and job titles of other assessment team members and people consulted:
Suzanne Goff — Corporate Strategy

Date of completion: December 2014

Date of next review of the assessment: December 2015

Page 157 Page 7




Action Plan

Equality Impact Assessment title:

Date of completion:

Budget 2015/16 (HRA) EqlA

December 2014

Equality Group

Age

Details of possible disadvantage
or negative impact

Reduction in support and central costs through a Council
wide Support Services Review has the potential to impact
negatively on some age groups.

Action to be taken to address the
disadvantage or negative impact

Impact assessment to be reviewed following the
consultation process, to quantify and consider any
disproportionate impact.

Officer responsible for
progressing the action

Paul Boucher

Date action to be completed by

January 2015 for Project 1, March 2015 for Project 2, and
summer 2015 for Project 3.

Equality Group

Disability

Details of possible disadvantage
or negative impact

Action to be taken to address the
disadvantage or negative impact

Officer responsible for
progressing the action

Date action to be completed by

Equality Group

Gender

Details of possible disadvantage
or negative impact

Reduction in support and central costs through a Council
wide Support Services Review has the potential to impact
negatively on the male gender group.

Action to be taken to address the
disadvantage or negative impact

Impact assessment to be reviewed following the
consultation process, once proposals are finalised, to
quantify and consider any disproportionate impact.

Officer responsible for
progressing the action

Paul Boucher

Date action to be completed by

January 2015

Page 158

Page 8




Equality Group

Pregnancy and Maternity

Details of possible disadvantage

L None
or negative impact
Action to be taken to address the
; o N/A
disadvantage or negative impact
Officer responsible for
. . N/A
progressing the action
Date action to be completed by | N/A
Equality Group Transgender
Details of possible disadvantage N
L one
or negative impact
Action to be taken to address the
; S N/A
disadvantage or negative impact
Officer responsible for
. , N/A
progressing the action
Date action to be completed by | N/A

Equality Group

Marriage and Civil Partnership

Details of possible disadvantage

L None
or negative impact
Action to be taken to address the

. S N/A

disadvantage or negative impact
Officer responsible for

. , N/A
progressing the action
Date action to be completed by | N/A

Equality Group

Race or Ethnicity

Details of possible disadvantage

L None
or negative impact
Action to be taken to address the

. S N/A

disadvantage or negative impact
Officer responsible for

. , N/A
progressing the action
Date action to be completed by N/A

Page 159

Page 9




Equality Group

Religion or Belief

Details of possible disadvantage

. None
or negative impact
Action to be taken to address the

) S N/A

disadvantage or negative impact
Officer responsible for

. , N/A
progressing the action
Date action to be completed by N/A

Equality Group

Sexual Orientation

Details of possible disadvantage

L None
or negative impact
Action to be taken to address the

. oo N/A

disadvantage or negative impact
Officer responsible for

. , N/A
progressing the action
Date action to be completed by N/A

Other factors that may lead to inequality — in particular — please consider the impact of
any changes on low income groups or those experiencing the impacts of poverty

(please state):

Details of possible disadvantage
or negative impact

Inability to recharge full costs of building cleaning
services has the potential to impact negatively for those
on low incomes at the point at which the agreed
protection form full cost stops. This is wholly dependent
upon the outcome of a current competitive tender
process, where costs may be reduced so as to fully
mitigate any potential impact.

Action to be taken to address the
disadvantage or negative impact

Potential impact to be reviewed once future prices are
available.

Officer responsible for
progressing the action

Julia Hovells

Date action to be completed by

March 2016

Page 160

Page 10




Agenda Iltem 9

A Cambridge City Council Item
s =
To: Executive Councillor for Housing:
Councillor Kevin Price
Report by: Director of Customer and Community Services, Director

of Environment and Head of Finance
Relevant scrutiny
committee:

Wards affected: All Wards

Housing Scrutiny Committee 14 January 2015

Customer and Community Services — Housing General Fund Portfolio
Revenue and Capital Budget Proposals for 2014/15 to 2018/19
Key Decision
1. Executive summary
Revenue and Capital Budgets
1.1 The following report details the budget proposals relating to this portfolio that are

included in the Budget-Setting Report (BSR) 2015/16 which will be considered at
the following meetings:

Date Committee Comments

19 January Strategy & Consider proposals / recommendations

2015 Resources from all Scrutiny Committees in relation to
their portfolios

22 January The Executive Budget amendment may be presented

2015

13 February Strategy & Consider any further amendments including

2015 Resources opposition proposals

26 February Council Approves General Fund Budget and sets

2015 Council Tax

1.2  The report also includes consideration of any recommendations concerning the
review of charges and project appraisals for schemes in the capital plan for this
portfolio.

2. Recommendations
The Executive Councillor is recommended to:

Review of Charges:

a) Approve the proposed charges for this portfolio’s services and facilities as shown
in Appendix A to this report.

Report Page No: 1 Page 161



Revenue:
Consider the revenue budget proposals as shown in Appendix B.
Capital:

Consider the capital budget proposals as shown in Appendix C.
Delete some schemes from the Capital Plan as shown in Appendix C.

Approve, where relevant, project appraisals as shown in Appendix D.
Adjust capital funding for items 2 (c) to 2 (e) as appropriate.

3. Background

3.1

3.2

3.3

3.4

3.5

At its meeting on 6 November 2014, Council gave initial consideration to the
budget prospects for the General Fund for 2015/16 and future years in the Mid-
Year Financial Review (MFR) 2014.

The overall Budget Strategy Report (BSR) to Strategy & Resources Scrutiny
Committee on 19 January 2015 will include a review of all the factors relating to
the overall financial strategy that were included in the MFR.

The report to The Executive on 22 January 2015 may include details of the
Government’s Final Settlement for 2015/16. The announcement is likely to be
made shortly after the conclusion of the consultation period, which ends in
January 2015.

Further work may be required on detailed budgets so delegation to the Head of
Finance will be sought from Council for authority to finalise changes relating for
example to the reallocation of departmental administration, support service and
central costs, in accordance with the CIPFA Service Reporting Code of Practice
for Local Authorities (SeRCOP).

Budget 2015/16 - Overall Revenue Budget Position

The budget proposals for this portfolio, as summarised in table 1, will be
considered by the Executive at its meeting on 22 January 2015.

Report Page No: 2 Page 162



3.6

3.7

3.8

3.9

Report Page No: 3

Table 1: Overall Revenue Proposals (see Appendix B)

2014/15 2015/16 2016/17
Savings and Bids Budget Budget Forecast
£ £ £
Savings:
Increased Income - (96,900) (96,900)
Programme Office - - -
Savings - (92,880) (92,880)
Total - (189,780) (189,780)
Bids:
Unavoidable Revenue Pressures - 76,900 76,900
Reduced Income - - -
Total - 76,900 76,900
Net (savings)/bids - (112,880) (112,880)
External Bids 75,980 226,640 -
Priority Policy Fund (PPF) Bids - 72,800 88,800

Capital

The 2014 Mid-Year Financial Review proposed a review of the capital plan to
address its size and complexity. A number of concerns were identified, including:

e Capacity to deliver projects to time, cost and quality;
e Dependency on revenue funding; and
e Inclusion of items, such as unallocated funds, projects at an early stage of

development, and items more properly treated as small enhancements or

maintenance spend.

Phase 1 of the review examined the current plan in order to release internal
funding (e.g. DRF, R&R capital receipts, etc), by identifying projects that are not
yet ready for delivery, are no longer required, or are not true capital projects. This

will make the plan more deliverable.

The funding identified will be released into General Fund reserves where it will be

available for use on current priorities.

The review has also piloted a method of prioritising capital spending. Table 2
summarises, and Appendix C sets out in detail, any schemes for this portfolio that
are recommended for closure, deletion or require further development, and the

funding released as a result.

Page 163




3.10 The Council now maintains two lists of projects which may become capital

3.11

proposals in due course. The hold list contains projects that have been approved
in principle but are awaiting funding. A new list, the projects under development
list, has been set up following Phase 1 of the capital plan review. It lists projects
which are subject to feasibility studies and outline project planning, including
timescales, milestones and indicative costings. When ready, these projects will
be proposed for funding and approval in line with revised capital processes and
procedures.

Table 2: Overall Capital Proposals (see Appendix C)

2014/15 2015/16 2016/17 2017/18 2018/19
£ £ £ £ £
Capital Deletions | (475,000)
Capital Bids 230,000 0
Net Capital
Bids (475,000) | 230,000 0

Public Consultation

The 2014 Budget Consultation was undertaken by MEL Research Ltd on behalf of
Cambridge City Council in September 2014 and published in November 2014.
The main method of collecting information was through an interactive online
programme "YouChoose".

3.12 Details of the results of the survey will be published on the Council’s website.

4. Implications

(@)

(d)

Report Page No: 4

All budget proposals have a number of implications. A decision not to approve a
revenue bid will impact on managers’ ability to deliver the service or scheme in
question and could have staffing, equal opportunities, environmental and/or
community safety implications. A decision not to approve a capital or external bid
will impact on managers’ ability to deliver the developments desired in the service
areas.

Financial Implications

Financial implications of budget proposals are summarised in the Budget-Setting
Report 2015/16.

Staffing Implications

See text above.

Equality and Poverty Implications

A consolidated Equalities Impact Assessment for the Council’s Budget Setting
Report will be submitted to the Executive at its meeting on 22 January 2015.
Individual Equality Impact Assessments have been conducted to support this, and

will be available on the Council’s website.

Procurement

Page 164




Any procurement implications will be outlined in the Budget Setting Report

2015/16.

(e)  Environmental Implications

Where relevant, officers have considered the environmental impact of budget

proposals which are annotated as follows:

e +H/+M/+L: to indicate that the proposal has a high, medium or low positive

impact.

¢ Nil: to indicate that the proposal has no climate change impact.
e -H/-M/-L: to indicate that the proposal has a high, medium or low negative

impact.

(f) Consultation and Communication

As outlined in 3 above, budget proposals are based on the requirements of
statutory and discretionary service provision. Public consultations are undertaken
throughout the year and can be seen at:

https://www.cambridge.gov.uk/current-consultations

() Community Safety

Any community safety implications will be outlined in the Budget Setting Report

2015/16.

5. Background papers

These background papers were used in the preparation of this report:

e Budget Setting Report 2015/16

e Mid-Year Financial Review (MFR) 2014

e Budget Papers 2015/16

¢ Individual Equalities Impact Assessments

6. Appendices

The following items, where applicable, are included for discussion:

Appendix  Proposal Type Included |
A Scale of Fees & Charges v
B Revenue Budget Proposals for this portfolio v
C Capital Budget Proposals for this portfolio v
D Project Appraisal v

7. Inspection of papers
To inspect the background papers or if you have a query on the report please contact:

Authors’ Name:

Julia Hovells

Authors’ Phone Number: 01223 - 457822

Authors’ Email:

Report Page No: 5

julia.hovells@cambridge.gov.uk

Page 165



V/IN Auadoud ay} Joj a1y M3N abieyd wnwixew 000‘s3F (syuabe Bums| o} sawayds
2oueMo||y BuisnoH |es07] passaippe paroidde ayj Jo auo 0y Buibuojaq jou) aoueldwod uou 1o} Ajjeusad
%8°S¢ 063 0lL€e3 "SWBYOS UOKEJIPSIOY PIOIpUET 8} JO SIsquusW 0} S|lemausy - 8ousd1T OINH
%.'6S G673 0LE3 awayos
uol}e}IPaIodY plojpue 8y} Jo slaquiaw Joy suoljedlddy mapN - seouaoi] OINH
%8G 0673 oLe3 s|emauay 9ouadlT ONH
(%0°) G6G3 0293 suoneolddy maN - $89U8917 OINH
Sw00J a1o0w 10 Q] YIm s,0NH
%S9 0¢e3 0LE3 "aWaYDS UOIIB}IPaIddY PIOjpuET 8y} JO SIaquIBW O} S|eMaudy - aduadl] OINH
%€ 0¥ GEV3 0Le3 awLyosg
UoI}B}IPaIodY plojpue 8y} Jo siaquiaw Joy suonedlddy maN - seoua9i] ONH
%L'8€ 0Er3 oLes s|emauay - 8ouadl] OINH
(%2°€L) GEG3 0293 suoneolddy map - S8ousdI ONH
swooy g Buipnjoul pue 03 dn yum s,0NH
V/IN V/N 0€3 suoneue/ saouadl] ONH
VIN V/N 0Le3 ‘(8WdYOS UoNePaIddY pIojpuET
JNo JO slaquisw ale oym splojpue| Buipnjoul) sjiemausy 9ouaoi] ONH
VIN V/N 0LE3 "aWBY0S UOIBPaI0dY pIojpueT Jno Jo siagquia
aJe OUMm SpJojpue| 0} JUNOJSIP %0G B Yim suoneolddy maN - saoua9i] ONH
V/N VIN 0293 suoneolddy maN - S8ouad17 ONH
1$99U391

asealou| % 91/510Z sabieyn SL/71L0Z sebieyn uonduosaq pue adA] abieysn

VvV Xipuaddy

sabiey Jo Malnay

Page 166



Appendix [B1]

2015/16 Budget - Housing General Fund

Reference Item Description 2014/15 2015/16 2016/17 2017/18 2018/19 Climate
Budget Budget Budget Budget Budget Effect
£ £ £ £ £ Contact Rating

Increased Income

Housing

113531 Increased fee income 0 (76,900) (76,900) (76,900) (76,900) Alan Carter Nil
generated by the Housing
Development Team

An increased level of investment in development of HRA new build housing, will require greater staffing input,
which forms the basis of a bid for additional capacity. The additional cost will be fully offset by the ability to
capitalise the costs, as project management fees for the build works, generating a revenue income stream.
[Linked to URP3530].

113532 Increased fee income 0 (20,000) (20,000) (20,000) (20,000) Alan Carter Nil
generated by the Housing
Development Team

An increased level of investment in the development of new build housing in the Housing Revenue Account,
will enable a greater proportion of the existing staff team in the Housing Development Service fo be
capitalised (generating a revenue income) as project management fees for the build works.

Total Increased Income in Housing 0 (96,900) (96,900) (96,900) (96,900)

Total Increased Income 0 (96,900) (96,900) (96,900) (96,900)

Page 167



Appendix [B1]

2015/16 Budget - Housing General Fund

Reference Item Description 2014/15 2015/16 2016/17 2017/18 2018/19 Climate
Budget Budget Budget Budget Budget Effect
£ £ £ £ £ Contact Rating
Savings
Housing
$3534 Saving in Home 0 (2,200) (2,200) (2.200) (2.200) Helen Reed Nil
Improvement Grants IT
Systems

The move to working as part of a shared Home Improvement Agency with South Cambridgeshire and
Huntingdonshire District Councils means that licences for the IT system previously deployed by Cambridge
City Council are no longer required.

$3535 Reduction in 0 (56,800) (56,800) (56,800) (56,800) David Nil
Homelessness Costs Greening

A reduction in homelessness costs is possible due predominantly to lower bed and breakfast expenditure
resulting from the introduction of more emergency accommodation, provided by both Cambridge City
directly and by working in partnership with other local authorities.

$3536 Reduction in expenditure 0 (2,820) (2,820) (2,820) (2,820) David Nil
for homelessness Greening
prevention

It is proposed to remove the budget for homeless inserts info the Flack magazine, where the practice for this
to happen has already ceased.

S$3538 Saving in contributions to 0 (4,110) (4,110) (4,110) (4,110) Helen Reed Nil
the Sub-Regional Housing
Service

The confributions to both the Sub-Regional Housing Co-Ordinator post and the Strategic Housing Market
Assessment are lower than previously anticipated, with a decision sub-regionally to reduce the annual
ongoing contribution tfo the latter, which will deliver savings of £2,090 in both in Strategic Housing and
Planning budgets for the city.

$3541 Housing General Fund 0 (5,400) (5,400) (5.400) (5,400) Julia Hovells Nil
salary savings

Salary savings derived from recruitment to vacant posts at lower points than vacated

$3545 Reduction in charge to the 0 (21,550 (21,550 (21,550) (21,550) Julia Hovells Nil
General Fund for the Head
of Strategic Housing

A review of the responsibilities of the Head of Strategic Housing has resulted in the need fo increase the
proportion of the post funded by the HRA, recognising the large increase in HRA new build activity.

Total Savings in Housing 0 (92,880) (92,880) (92,880) (92,880)

——Page-1638

Total Savings 0 (92,880) (92,880) (92,880) (92,880)




Appendix [B1]

2015/16 Budget - Housing General Fund

Reference Item Description 2014/15 2015/16 2016/17 2017/18 2018/19 Climate
Budget Budget Budget Budget Budget Effect
£ £ £ £ £ Contact Rating
Savings
Report Total 0 (189,780)  (189,780)  (189,780) (189,780)

Page 169



Appendix [B2]

2015/16 Budget - Housing General Fund

Reference Item Description 2014/15 2015/16 2016/17 2017/18 2018/19 Climate
Budget Budget Budget Budget Budget Effect
£ £ £ £ £ Contact Rating

Unavoidable Revenue Pressure

Housing

URP3530 Increased staffing 0 76,900 76,900 76,900 76,900 Alan Carter Nil
capacity in the Housing
Development Team

The increase in investment in new build housing in the HRA necessitates an increase in staffing input, both in
the form of development team staff and consultancy, to ensure smooth project management and delivery
of new build schemes. This bid includes funding for an additional Trainee Development Officer (£28,400),
consultancy support (£30,000) and a contribution towards a shared post with South Cambridgeshire District
Council (£18,200), and will be fully offset by a compensating savings proposal, which recognises that this
expenditure will be met from the fees charged to new build schemes. [Linked to 113531]

Total Unavoidable Revenue Pressure in

Housing 0 76,900 76,900 76,900 76,900
Total Unavoidable Revenue Pressure 0 76,900 76,900 76,900 76,900
Report Total 0 76,900 76,900 76,900 76,900

Page 170



Appendix [B3]

2015/16 Budget - Housing General Fund

Reference Item Description 2014/15 2015/16 2016/17 2017/18 2018/19 Climate
Budget Budget Budget Budget Budget Effect
£ £ £ £ £ Contact Rating

External Bids

Housing

X3729 Refuge provision - 0 100,000 0 0 0 David_ Nil
Enhanced services using Greening
DCLG grant funding

The Department for Communities and Local Government have announced a £10 million fund to assist local
authorifies in strengthening refuge services, with the aim of keeping victims of domestic abuse safe. If
successful in securing a bid for £100,000, Cambridge City Council would work with Cambridge Women's Aid in
partnership with two other refuges to employ a dedicated Community Psychiatric Nurse fo work with those
with mental health issues. The funding would also be used to improve the existing refuge provision, allowing
essential repairs to be undertaken and facilitating the transfer of residents between refuges where they can
be best supported.

X3730 Supported Lodgings 75,980 126,640 0 0 0 David Nil
Scheme and Chronically Greening
Excluded Adults Service -
DCLG grant funded
initiative

The authority, on behalf of a number of partner authorities, has been successful in securing DCLG grant
funding for the Single Homelessness Service, fotalling £202,620 across 2014/15 and 2015/16. It is anticipated
that some of the resource will be used through the supported lodgings scheme, which matches community
volunteers to individuals, providing 'room only' accommodation or supported lodgings. The balance of
funding will be used to extend the existing Chronically Excluded Adults Service into Peterborough, working
with those in hard to reach groups who are homeless or at risk of becoming homeless.

Total External Bids in Housing 75,980 226,640 0 0 0
Total External Bids 75,980 226,640 0 0 0
Report Total 75,980 226,640 0 0 0

Page 171



Appendix [B4]

2015/16 Budget - Housing General Fund

Reference Item Description 2014/15 2015/16 2016/17 2017/18 2018/19 Climate
Budget Budget Budget Budget Budget Effect
£ £ £ £ £ Contact Rating
PPF Bids
Housing
PPF3533 Funding to contribute to a 0 8,800 8,800 8,800 8,800 Helen Reed Nil
county-wide Handyperson
Service

It is proposed tfo replace the existing Safer Homes Scheme, which has been funded temporarily, with a
county-wide Handyperson Service, providing small repairs and minor works actfivity in the homes of older and
vulnerable people. The scheme will also contribute to objectives of the Health and Wellbeing Strategy.

PPF3562 Cambridge Landlord 0 40,000 40,000 40,000 40,000 Yvonne Nil
Accreditation Safety O'Donnell
Scheme

The private rented sector is of increasing importance to City residents and has grown significantly over the last
decade. This bid will allow us to infroduce a co-ordinated scheme including enhanced accreditation and
fraining which will support good landlords. It will also allow for greater and targeted enforcement against
poorly managed rented properties and HMQO's and investigations into the feasibility of discretionary licensing
powers such as Additional Licensing. Given current demands the service is unable to deliver this within existing
resources.

PPF3564 Empty Homes Officer Post 0 24,000 40,000 40,000 40,000 Yvonne +L
O'Donnell

Creation of permanent post to bring long term vacant dwellings back into occupation. This will increase the
level of affordable housing, reduce environmental impact and increase new homes bonus receipts. Currently
there is funding for a temporary post until August 2015 although the post is currently vacant. During his tenure
of 11 months the previous empty property officer was able to bring back into use 25 long term properties, 15
of which were eligible for new homes bonus which equates to £106,000 over 6 years. This new post will bring
an average of 20 properties per year back into use. Last year approximately £200k was placed info reserves
following a Compulsory Purchase order on an empty home. [Linked fo C3563]

Total PPF Bids in Housing ] 72,800 88,800 88,800 88,800
Total PPF Bids 0 72,800 88,800 88,800 88,800
Report Total 0 72,800 88,800 88,800 88,800

Page 172



Appendix [C]

2015/16 Budget - Housing General Fund

Reference Item Description 2014/15 2015/16 2016/17 2017/18 2018/19 Climate
Budget Budget Budget Budget Budget Effect
£ £ £ £ £ Contact Rating

Capital Bids

Housing

C3563 Empty Homes Loan Fund 0 200,000 0 0 0 Yvonne +L
[Reserves or CPO Balance] O'Donnell

Provision of a ring fenced fund to provide an interest free loan to empty homes owners to undertake works to
bring them back into occupation. During the repayment period (normally 5 years) occupation of the
dwelling is capped to affordable rents and limited fo use by social housing providers (including through
Townhall lettings). Repayments of the loan are to be recycled back info the scheme, providing long term
provision of financial assistance to bring long term vacant homes back into occupation. It is anticipated at
full capacity that the scheme will have a minimum of 6-8 properties being supported through the scheme
with effective partnerships being built info the private rented sector. [Linked to PPF3564]

C3620 Buchan St Shopping Area 0 30,000 0 0 0 Andy Preston NIl
Improvements [County]

Funding has been secured from Cambridgeshire County Council (£30k) to deliver improvements to
pedestrian and cycle links around the neighbourhood centfre at Buchan St. This provides 100% of the funding
for the project, including the resources required to implement it, so no further City Council funding is required.

C3701 Compulsory Purchase (400,000) 0 0 0 0 Yvonne Nil
Orders (CPOs) [Delete O'Donnell
from Plan] [Usable Capital
Receipts]

C3702 HMOs - Management (50,000) 0 0 0 0 Yvonne Nil
Orders [Delete from Plan] O'Donnell

[Internal Borrowing]

C3722 Energy efficiency (25,000 0 0 0 0 Jo Dicks Nil
improvements to private
sector housing [Close in

Plan]
Total Capital Bids in Housing (475,000) 230,000 0 0 0
Total Capital Bids (475,000) 230,000 0 0 0
Report Total (475,000) 230,000 0 0 0

———Page 173



A Cambridge City Council
e

Project Appraisal and Scrutiny Committee Recommendation

Project Name: Empty Property Loan Scheme
To: Executive Councillor for Housing
Report by: Jas Lally - Head of Refuse and Environment

HOUSING SCRUTINY
Scrutiny committee: COMMITTEE 14™ JANUARY
2015

Wards affected: All

Recommendation/s
Financial recommendations —

e The Executive Councillor is asked to recommend this
scheme (which is not included in the Council’'s Capital &
Revenue Project Plan) for approval by Council, subject to
resources being available to fund the capital and revenue
costs.

e The total cost of the project is £200,000, funded from
capital reserves (Ref C3563)

e The ongoing revenue costs of the project are £24,000 for
2015-16 and £40,000 ongoing, which are subject to a
PPF bid for an empty homes officer. (Ref PPF 3564)

Page 174



Project Name: Empty Property Loan Scheme

1 Summary
1.1 The Project

The capital bid of £200,000 will support owners of empty homes to
bring them back into use through an interest free loan scheme.

The funds will be made available on the condition that the property
is leased back to the Council or another social housing provider
thereby increasing the supply of affordable accommodation in
Cambridge.

The funding will be subject to repayment and recycled back into
the scheme providing a long term and sustainable scheme.

Target Dates:

Start of procurement N/A

Award of Contract N/A

Start of project delivery 1%t April 2015
Completion of project Ongoing
Date that project output is As above

expected to become operational
(if not same as above)

1.2 Anticipated Cost
Total Project Cost £ 200,000

Cost Funded from:
Funding: Amount: Details:

Reserves £200,000 C3563

Page 175



1.3 Procurement process
Not applicable.

2 Project Appraisal & Procurement Report

2.1 Project Background

There are approximately 240 long-term empty properties within the
city. Many of the owners of these properties are attempting to
renovate these properties in order to rent.

However it is often the case that the owners cannot fund these
works leaving the properties vacant for extended periods of time.
The council do not currently have any significant capital funding
which can be offered to these owners in order to support the
revival and re-occupation of the properties.

This funding will establish a loans fund for empty properties. The
loan will be paid back to the Council through rental receipts over a
five year period during which time the owner will be required to pay
back the sum into the loan fund and any surplus rent will be paid to
the owner.

2.2 Aims & objectives

The overall aim of the project is to reduce the number of empty
homes in the City, to increase the supply of housing generally and
also to contribute to the provision of affordable homes within the
City.

A key objective of the scheme is to bring 5 properties per year
back into use as a direct result of the funding.

2.3 Major issues for stakeholders & other departments
No major issues identified.

2.4 Summarise key risks associated with the project

The funding will be subject to a land charge and fully recoverable
from the owner over the period of the loan, on sale or transfer of
the property or upon breach of any of the conditions of the funding.
Successful delivery of the project will be entirely dependent on

Page 176



officer resources being made available (subject to the separate bid
reference PPF3564).

2.5 Financial implications

There are no special financial considerations associated with this
project.

2.6 Net revenue implications (costs or savings)
See PPF Bid 3564 for an Empty Homes Officer.

2.7 VAT implications

The loan repayments (i.e. of the capital sum) will be outside the
scope of VAT, but any interest received will be the payment for a
VAT exempt supply.

With regard to the works that the home-owners themselves will be
contracting for, there will be no VAT recovery through the Council
as it will not be the recipient of that supply.

2.8 Energy and Fuel Savings

(a) Is this project listed in the Carbon
Management Plan? No

2.9 Climate Change Impact

No

Positive Impact offect

Negative Impact

+L

The properties subject to funding will be improved to higher
standard (including their energy efficiency) and the refurbishment
of a property has a lower environmental impact that new build.

2.10 Other implications

There are no other implications identified relating to property,
accommodation, health & safety, community safety, equal
opportunities and diversity.

Page 177



An Equality Impact Assessment (EqlA) has/has not been prepared
for this project and is attached.

2.11 Staff required to deliver the project

Service

Skills

Total Hours

Empty Homes
Officer:
Environmental
Services

(subject to approval
of PPF 3564)

Administering
grant/financial
assistance.

Regulatory work
relating to empty
properties/public
health.

7.5 per week

2.12 Dependency on other work or projects

There are no other projects identified that cannot progress until this

project is complete.

2.13 Background Papers

None.

2.14 Inspection of papers

Author’'s Name
Author’s phone No.
Author’s e-mail:

Date prepared:

Robin Ray
01223 - 457957

Robin.ray@cambridge.gov.uk

12.12.2014

Page 178




000°002

pig [eyde) jaN

0

awoou| [e}o]

SUOIINQLIUOD SNUBASY

Buipun} swwelboud |eydes bunsix3

spun4 paylewleq

Buipun) 49y

suonnqLuo) Jadojans(

Juelc) JUsWuJIBA0L)

Buipung / awoasuj jeyde)

000002

}so9 [ejide) |ejo)

000°00C

:ainjipuadxa |eydes Jsyi0

S98] SJUB)NSUOY) / [BUOISS8J0.d

swdinba % jue|d ‘S9|IYsA JO aseydind

SHJOM / J0joBUOD Bulp|ing

s)s0) |ejde)

sjuUBaWIWO)

3

3

3

3

3

81/L10¢

L1/910¢

91/5102

11214314

14254314

Buijiyouad - Buipunj @ s3so9o |eyde) - jesieaddy jo0aloud jepde)

Page 179



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 180



Agenda Item 10

r‘h\ Cambridge City Council ltem

R

To: Executive Councillor for Housing: Councillor Kevin
Price

Report by: Alan Carter

Relevant scrutiny Housing 14/1/2015

committee: Scrutiny
Committee

Wards affected: Abbey Arbury Castle Cherry Hinton Coleridge

East Chesterton King's Hedges Market Newnham
Petersfield Queen Edith's Romsey Trumpington
West Chesterton

Council Housing at Homerton College

Key Decision

1. Executive summary

The Homerton College scheme is the first to be brought forward in the next
phase of the Council’s own Housing Programme and is notable too to be the
first opportunity to deliver new Affordable Housing on a site not owned by
the Council.

The report requests approval to a capital budget for the scheme based on
the scheme submitted for planning approval.

2. Recommendations
The Executive Councillor is recommended to:

e note the indicative mix, design and layout of the new scheme
submitted for planning approval

e approve the capital budget of £7,007,505 for the scheme detailed in
the Project Appraisal shown as Appendix 1.

e approve that delegated authority be given to the Director of Customer
and Community Services following consultation with the Director of
Resources and the Head of Legal Services enter into a legal
agreement with the developers of the scheme.

Report Page No: 1 Page 181



3. Background

A report to the Housing Scrutiny Committee in July 2014 reiterated that as
the main provider of housing in Cambridge, the reasons why the Council
has its own new build housing programme are as follows;

1. Provide additional social housing to meet the shortfall in
Cambridge and to replace the loss of social housing through the
Right to Buy.

2. Replace some of the Council’s existing social housing that no longer
meets current day standards and is becoming less popular with
residents.

3. Build new house types that will better meet the overall mix of
Affordable Housing needed in the future.

4. Improve the energy efficiency of the Council’s housing.

The Council has completed 28 new homes since 2010 and is well into the
delivery of 152 more. Further, planning approval has just been granted for
104 new Council homes on the Quad scheme on the Southern Fringe.

Officers have subsequently been turning attention to the next phase of new
Council homes and how a more systematic and comprehensive approach to
identifying opportunities for new schemes could be developed, matching
funding streams and timescales to these opportunities. Although this is still
‘work in progress’, officers are beginning to categorise new schemes
opportunities in terms of land ownership as follows;

a. Housing Revenue Account (HRA) land with existing housing
b. HRA garage and small in-fill sites

c. General Fund sites

d. Sites owned by other public sector bodies

e. Sites in private ownership

As an indication of scale, sites have been identified that could deliver
around 300 new social housing units for the Council over the next four
years.

The Homerton College scheme is the first to be brought forward in the next
phase of the Council’s own Housing Programme and is notable too to be the
first opportunity to deliver new housing on a site not owned by the Council.

The scheme is on land originally owned by Homerton College. The College
selected Hill to be their developer/partner. Hill and Homerton College have

Report Page No: 2 Page 182



subsequently formed a joint venture company called Colokate to deliver the
scheme and the land has been transferred into Colokate’s ownership.

An outline planning approval is in place for the scheme and Hill has
submitted a detailed planning application. It is anticipated that planning
approval will be considered by the Development Control Committee in
January 2015. Apart from two existing houses that will be refurbished as
part of the development, the whole scheme will consist of flats and the
schedule of accommodation that has been submitted for the social housing
comprising 39 units is as follows;

For Rent (all flats);

7 no 1 bedroom 2 person — approx. 51sq m
18 no 2 bedroom 3 person — approx. 70 sqm
2 no 3 bedroom 5 person — approx. 97 sqg m

For shared ownership (all flats);

6 no 1 bed 2 person — approx. 53 sqm
4 no 2 bed 3 person — approx. 92 sqm

2 no rented 4 bed 6 person houses on Purbeck Road - approx.
118 sq m each.

Attached to Appendix 1 is the Design Report dated October 2014
providing further detail on the scheme submitted for detailed planning
approval.
The indicative planning and development target programme is as follows:
Planning committee in January 2015
Start on site in May 2015
Compiletion of units in June 2017.
4. Implications
(a) Financial Implications
The capital budget required for the scheme is £7,007,505.
The financial implications of the scheme are shown in Appendix 1.
Appendix 1 shows that the scheme is viable with a pay-back of reserves

and borrowing after 32 years.

Report Page No: 3 Page 183



As the scheme is still subject to planning, the costs are indicative.

The Housing Revenue Account Mid-Term Financial Review captures the
funding available for this scheme and the Council’s ongoing social housing
programme. The budget for this scheme has been built into the 2015.16
HRA budget working papers.

As with all new build schemes as schemes are finalised they will only
proceed if they can be funded within borrowing and capital funding
parameters in the HRA 30 Business Plan. If a final scheme cannot be
delivered within the budget requested then a revised approval will need to
brought back to Committee for scrutiny.

(b) Staffing Implications

The project will be managed by the Housing Development Team in the
Strategic Housing Service. Liaison will be made with City Homes; the
Estates and Facilities Service and the Legal Services Team.

There are no other significant staff implications.

(c) Equality & Poverty Implications

A series of EQIAs have been undertaken for the Council House
Programme, the Housing Development Service and for individual schemes.
The EQIAs mainly highlight the benefits of the Council retaining direct
control of new housing development itself to ensure a focus on the delivery
of housing that meets a diverse range of housing needs. Part of the
assessment underlines the need for Affordable Housing to help those most
likely to suffer poverty as well as ways in which new Affordable Housing will
directly save money for tenants, such as energy saving measures.

Each individual scheme will continue be subject to an EQIA at the feasibility
stage and prior to scheme approval.

(d) Environmental Implications

The social housing will be built to Level 4 of the Code for sustainable
homes.

(e) Procurement

There are no procurement implications.

(f) Consultation and communication

Report Page No: 4 page 184



This scheme does not involve the redevelopment of existing residential
accommodation. Consultation will therefore follow the process required by
the planning process.
Internal communication will be structured around the established groups
that meet every Committee cycle and oversee the Council’s social housing
programme, namely; an officer group; a residents consultative group; and
the Members Steering Group.

(g9 Community Safety

There are no particular Community Safety implications as a consequence of
this scheme.

5. Background papers
None
6. Appendices

Appendix 1 - Project Appraisal Homerton Scheme

7. Inspection of papers

To inspect the background papers or if you have a query on the report
please contact:

Author’'s Name: Alan Carter — Head of Strategic Housing
Author’'s Phone Number: 01223 — 457948
Author’s Email: Alan.carter@cambridge.gov.uk

Report Page No: 5 Page 185



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 186



Appendix 1 -

Project Appraisal Homerton Scheme

1. Proposed scheme:

The scheme is located on an area of land north of Harrison Drive off
Hills Road in Queen Edith’s Ward. The site is adjacent to Homerton
College and sits between the Hills Road Sixth Form College and the
railway line.

The scheme is on land originally owned by Homerton College. The
College selected Hill to be their developer/partner. Hill and Homerton
College have subsequently formed a joint venture company called
Colokate to deliver the scheme and the land has been transferred into
Colokate’s ownership.

An outline planning approval is in place for the scheme.

The planning approval allows for the demolition of a number non-
residential buildings and the construction of up to 95 residential units
with a new access from Harrison Drive, and a mix of town houses and
apartments with 40% affordable housing.

Hill has submitted a detailed planning application. It is anticipated that
planning approval will be considered by the Development Control
Committee in January 2015.

The attached Design Report dated October 2014 provides further
detail on the scheme submitted for detailed planning approval

The following is the schedule of accommodation for the scheme.

Type Affordable Market
1 bed 2 person 13 8
2 bed 4 person 18 25
2 bed 4 person wheelchair 4 0
3 bed 5 person 2 3
4 bed 5 person 2 15
5 bed 8 person 0 7
Totals 39 58

Page 187



The sizes of the Affordable Housing will be as follows;

For Rent (all flats);

7 no 1 bedroom 2 person — approx. 51sg m
18 no 2 bedroom 3 person — approx. 70 sqm
2 no 3 bedroom 5 person — approx. 97 sq m

For shared ownership (all flats);

6 no 1 bed 2 person — approx. 53 sqgm
4 no 2 bed 3 person — approx. 92 sqm

2 no rented 4 bed 6 person houses on Purbeck Road - approx.
118 sq m each

All of the Affordable Housing will meet Lifetime Homes Standard

All units will meet Level 4 of the Code for Sustainable Housing

2. Programme

Planning committee in January 2015
Start on site in May 2015
Completion of units in June 2017.

3. Viability and other finance implications

Capital Costs
Package Price (including construction,
design, planning etc.) £6,580,435
Employer Agent (1.5%) £98,707

Page 188



Clerk of Works (1%) £65,804
Marketing (shared ownership) £79,500
Legal Fees £51,500
Internal Development Fee (2%) £131,609

Total £7,007,555

Funding
Right to Buy Receipts £1,559,755
Shared Ownership Receipts £795,000
Reserves £2,326,400
Borrowing £2,326,400

Rent Levels assumptions —
1 bed - £109.80 per week
2 bed - £124.35 per week
3 bed - £151.78 per week

(Note — as well as rent, a service charge will be payable in respect
of the communal parts of the scheme.)

Shared Ownership assumptions —
1 bed market value - £225,000
2 bed market value - £325,000

Initial shares of 30% assumed.

Page 189



On the basis of the above the scheme will pay back the reserves and
borrowing required in 32 years. The Housing Revenue Account 30 Year
Business Plan assumes pay-back up to 35 years.

Note — An interest of 1% is assumed when reserves are used to fund a
scheme. A 4% interest rate is assumed on borrowing. It may be possible
to fund all of the scheme costs using Right to Buy receipts and reserves.
However, this would give a false impression of the schemes viability and
therefore a balance of funding is assumed in the viability assessment.

4. Legal and Procurement

Heads of Terms have been agreed with Colokate. The Council will buy
the Affordable Housing flats under a 125 year lease and will buy the
freehold of the two refurbished houses.

There are no procurement implications for the scheme.

5. Other implications

AECOM has been appointed to provide an independent verification that
the cost of the scheme to the Council is reasonable in the prevailing
market. Their initial view is that the package price is within the range
expected for this type of development although it is at the higher end of
the range.

A number of factors can influence the cost of a new development which
can make a site by site comparison difficult. Some of the main factors
are;

- The existing use of the site and whether there are significant costs
associated with clearing and decontaminating a site for example.

- Whether there is significant new ‘infrastructure’ required for the
new scheme — for example, whether long new roads are required
to achieve an acceptable new access.

Page 190



- The design and property type. Blocks of flats are more expensive
to build than houses. There is then a trade-off between cost and
density ie how many flats you can get on a site.

- Build cost inflation. For example, costs are reported to have
increased locally by around 12% in the last year.

Although it is difficult to compare sites, the following information provides
an indication of the cost of the Homerton scheme in relation to the most
recently assessed scheme in the Council’s programme.

Build Cost per sq m Cost per unit
Homerton £2369 £168,729
Aylesborough Close £2177 £162,844

Page 191



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 192



54

JJoday ubisaq - diysJaujued mjdg

il
A

I UH
’ =
j |
L
[ILE
| I &l

20eds Ajluswe [BJjua) i3 MaIA

UOLIBWOH le BuisnoH [1ouno)

Pag 193



af8)|0] UOUBWOH Al / 8AUQ UOSKUEH - diysuautued madg e d

Apnas Aeg uorens|3 I ajeas 03 jou Buimed( 230N

uoI3eAs[e Uo3ea0]

92UBJJUS T %00|g T MBIA

AQNLS NOILVYAI13 Td 4207149

UOLIBWOH le BuisnoH [1ouno)



[ Joday ubisaq - diysJaujed mydg

xoddde gy @ 00T:T 8|e9S

Apnjs Aeq uoijeas|a aAljejuasadday

£
n
<+
™
o]
-
n
o
o

Buippelo |ejew pejelopad
Aa16 Jyb1| -Buniied a[0Aoiq 8indes pasojous

UOREUSA
10} 3014 qicoAsUOY

SOWERL} MOPUIM
aysodwod Asub ybi

juswale
yull peja [eew Aeub bl

Jepow
B yum Youg pas —

seluooleq pepo [ejew As1b
Wby pejesoyed pue pazelp  —

|les pienB paze|b

Adouea pejo |ejew Asu6 1ybi
Buippelo |ejaw Aa1b Jubi|

UOLIBWOH le BuisnoH [1ouno)

Page 195



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 196



Agenda Item 11

;Q Cambridge City Council Item
-
To: Executive Councillor For Housing
Report by: Liz Bisset
Relevant scrutiny Housing
committee: Scrutiny
Wards affected: All

Homelessness Prevention Grant Funding Programme 2015-16

Key Decision

1. Executive summary

The Council administers a grant funding programme to external partners,
which aims to support the Council’s strategic objectives in tackling and
preventing homelessness. The Council’'s own funding for these projects is
augmented by homelessness prevention grant provided by the Department
for Communities and Local Government (DCLG). The DCLG grant, despite
its title, is not ring-fenced, but the Council renewed its commitment to
tackling homelessness by delegating authority to the Head of Strategic
Housing to authorise expenditure of these funds until 31.3.2015.
Government normally commits homelessness prevention funding in two
year tranches but the Council’s allocation, announced in September 2014, is
for the 2015-16 financial year only. Therefore, this report is required to seek
approval for the grant programme to 2015-16 pending a value for money
review in 2015.

2. Recommendations
The Executive Councillor is recommended:

1) To note, subject to the budget setting process and formal adoption by
Council of the 2015-16 budget, the proposed grant funding allocations
as outlined in this report, along with approval to spend funds, if
awarded, by DCLG as outlined in 3.10.

2) To agree the ongoing principle, that DCLG Homelessness Prevention
Grant should continue to support initiatives to prevent and alleviate
homelessness and, in so doing, support the principles outlined in the
Council’s proposed Anti-Poverty Strategy

Report Page No: 1 Page 197



3) To agree to consider a value for money review report, along with
recommendations for future homelessness prevention fund allocations
in the 2015 October cycle

4) To approve that authority for new grant approvals should continue to
be delegated to the Head of Strategic Housing until 31st March 2016.
Thereafter, funding approval will be required from the Executive
Councillor for Housing following scrutiny by the Housing Committee,
except for grants of less than £5000 which will be delegated to the
Head of Strategic Housing to authorise.

3. Background

3.1 Housing General Fund (HGF) grants to housing agencies and DCLG
Homelessness Prevention Grant have traditionally been treated separately
in respect of committee approvals

3.2 The award of Housing General Fund (HGF) grants to housing
agencies have been subject to approval at Community Services Scrutiny
and the DCLG homelessness prevention grant has been used by the
Council to make funding awards to organisations that fit with the Council’s
strategic objectives on homelessness. It has been subject to delegated
authority to the Head of Strategic Housing. Authority was delegated at
Community Services Scrutiny Committee on 17" March 2011 and holds until
31 March 2015.

3.3 DCLG Grant funding is now rolled into the Business Rate Retention
Scheme (BRRS) and the allocation of Homelessness Prevention Grant is
still visible within this.

3.4 Despite the separate approvals process, both sets of grants are aimed
at preventing and alleviating homelessness and are now presented as one
for approval in this report

3.5 Both sets of grants aim to align with the objectives outlined in chapter
6 of the Council’'s Housing Strategy which deals with Housing Advice,
Homelessness and Housing Options
https://www.cambridge.gov.uk/sites/www.cambridge.gov.uk/files/docs/housi
ng-strateqy-2012-15.pdf

3.6 The key objectives contained within the strategy are:
= Prevent homelessness and rough sleeping

» Minimise use of temporary accommodation and maximise use of
longer term housing solutions

Report Page No: 2 Page 198



= Enable people to make informed choices about their housing
» Promote sustained and settled lifestyles and minimise social exclusion

3.7 A number of grant agreements are due to expire in March 2015 and
others are covered by agreements up to 31 March 2016. There are an
additional 8 grants where agreements are currently being revised and 2
which requires the establishment of a grant agreement for the first time

3.8 The DCLG/HGF grants programme was subject to an Internal Audit
inspection in 2014 and a key recommendation from the report was that the
Council conducts a value-for-money review of all grants in 2015-16 to
ensure that the services funded make strong and effective contributions to
the strategic objectives outlined in 3.6 above.

3.9 The grant funding allocations for 2015-16 are outlined in the table in
appendix 1. The recipient organisations are:

= Cambridge Link-Up

= Cambridge Cyrenians

= Cambridge Citizen’s Advice Bureau
= Cambridge Re-use

=  Wintercomfort

= Cambridge Women’s Aid

» Riverside English Churches Housing Group
= YMCA

= CHS Group

» Jimmy’s Cambridge

= Centre 33

= Cambridge Central Aid

= Cambridgeshire County Council

» Homeless Link

» Cambridgeshire Constabulary

» Crime Reduction Initiatives

3.10 In addition to these proposed grant awards, the Council currently has
two bids for funding lodged with the DCLG. These are:

Enhancement of women’s refuge services (bid value £100,000)

The Department of Communities and Local Government has announced a
£10million fund for local housing authorities to help them strengthen refuge
services. The aim is to ensure we have effective national coverage that
keeps victims of domestic abuse safe. The funding is available for 2014-15
and 2015-16 and is to be used to provide refuges that adhere to the
standards set out by the DCLG. Up to £100,000 will be available to each
successful local housing authority for this reason.

Report Page No: 3 Page 199



Currently Cambridgeshire County Council provides the majority of funding
for the Cambridge Women’s Aid (CWA) refuge. The current contract has
been extended to March 2017 but, as with other services formerly funded
from the Supporting People programme, has been required to make savings
from the annual contract and funding to support the children in refuge has
come under greatest pressure. The Council is supporting a bid of £100,000
from CWA to use the funding to ensure the continued provision of a refuge
service to women and children and to maintain existing standards. CWA
also hopes to use the funding to reduce the barriers women have to
accessing refuge. To achieve this CWA aims to enter into partnership with
the other two refuges in the county to employ a Community Psychiatric
Nurse to offer an improved service to women with mental health issues.
Funding will also be used to support women to move between refuges for
safety reasons when a travel warrant is not sufficient.

Augmentation of the Single Homelessness Service (bid value £202,
617)

The Council is the lead authority in an existing sub-regional Single
Homelessness service and was advised on 9" December 2014 that the
following bid, which will expand the existing Single Homelessness Service,
had been successful:

Part 1 — Supported Lodgings Scheme

This part of the project will focus on homeless individuals with one or
more support needs that are located within Cambridge City, South
Cambridgeshire, East Cambridgeshire and Huntingdonshire district
councils as there is a shortage of affordable housing for single
individuals, compounding non-housing problems these individuals also
have.

Accommodation will be provided through the supporting lodgings
scheme based on the existing and successful model piloted by Hope
Cambridge and YMCA. The scheme matches existing community
volunteers to act as hosts providing either short-term relief, “room-
only” or supported lodgings accommodation for individuals who are
homeless or at risk of homelessness.

Part 2 — Chronically Excluded Adults Service
Under this part of the project, the Chronically Excluded Adults (CEA)
service, based in Cambridgeshire, will be extended to include

Peterborough. The service will work with those with complex and,
often multiple needs who are homeless or at risk of homeless,

Report Page No: 4 Page 200



ensuring that this group receives a person-centred approach and
supported pathway into accommodation.

The CEA service will employ 2 coordinators to cover 1 full time and 1
part time post in Peterborough to provide support to this hard-to-reach
group through joined-up local services and development of support
packages tailored to the individual customer’s needs. Customers will
be supported and matched to suitable accommodation in
Peterborough’s private rented sector. The established project
manager will focus on building further strategic relationships with
service providers and commissioners across the sub- region and, in
particular, Peterborough to ensure a joined-up person-centred
approach.

The CEA service will enable complex needs customers in
Peterborough to access an essential service to offer support and
access to services. This holistic approach s based on
Cambridgeshire’s successful Chronically Excluded Adults (CEA)
project which has received national recognition for its work with this
client group. As a direct result of the project, there was a significant
fall in crime and mental health costs for this cohort of 15 customers.
Over the two year period since the project has been running there was
an average cost saving of £958 per month per customer.

3.10 The proposed grant to Cambridge Central Aid (CCA) is in direct
response to the uncertainty surrounding the future of the Cambridge Local
Assistance Scheme (CLAS). It is proposed that this grant award goes ahead
even if CLAS continues beyond 31% March 2015

3.11 The funds identified for CCA, CHS Group along with those funds
marked as ‘unallocated’ have been redirected from a resource normally
used to bolster Discretionary Housing Payment (DHP) funds used to
temporarily fill shortfalls in housing benefit entittement and prevent
homelessness and debt. For 2015-16, however, officers estimate there are
sufficient carried forward funds in the DHP budget. This position will require
careful review next year.

3.13 The DCLG Homelessness Prevention Grant allocation of £563,471.56
was announced in September by the National Practitioner Support Service
(NPSS), which is DCLG-funded service aimed at highlighting and supporting
best practice within local authority housing options and homelessness
services. Accompanying the announcement was a statement encouraging
authorities to spend the grant monies on homelessness services despite the
fact that the grant is no longer ring-fenced. The statement read:

Report Page No: 5 Page 201



We would always encourage local authorities to use their Preventing
Homelessness Grant allocation to support the development and
enhancement of front line housing services, which will ensure that services
for anyone homeless, threatened with homelessness, or rough sleeping in
your area are available and are of a high quality.

3.14 Included with homelessness prevention funded services is a contract
to provide street and mental health outreach services to rough sleepers and
single people at risk of rough sleeping and homelessness. This is
highlighted, along with other allocated grants at appendix 1.

4. Grant funding review and future grant funding approvals

4.1 The homelessness prevention grant programme will be
comprehensively reviewed in 2015 and the findings of a value-for-money
review will be brought back to Housing Scrutiny Committee in October
2015

4.2 In order to ensure transparency in the process of awarding grants
moving forward officers will seek approval for grant awards and renewals
with an annual value in excess of £5000 via committee from 1 April 2016.
Grants of a value lower than £5000 will continue to be awarded under
delegated authority to the Head of Strategic Housing

5. Implications

(a) Financial Implications

The financial implications of the homelessness prevention grant programme
are outlined at appendix 1. The DCLG grant of £563,471.56 per annum is
awarded until 31% March 2016 and so there are break clauses in all grants
and contracts in order to mitigate against the risk of DCLG funding being
withdrawn or reduced for future years.

(b) Staffing Implications

There are no City Council staffing implications

(c) Equality and Poverty Implications

The services outlined in this report are targeted at vulnerable and hard-to-
reach groups or those suffering financial disadvantage. There are no

proposals to remove or reduce funding to any of these organisations and,
therefore an Equality Impact Assessment has not been carried out.

Report Page No: 6 Page 202



(d) Environmental Implications

+L - funding of furniture recycling by Cambridge Reuse helps to prevent
landfill. There are no known adverse implications arising from the award of
funding to any of the organisations contained within this report.

(e) Procurement

The Street and Mental Health Outreach Service contract exceeds the
Official Journal of the European Union (OJEU) thresholds for service
contracts and will be the subject to an OJEU compliant tender process when
the service is re-tendered next year.

(f) Consultation and communication
As part of the full grants value-for money review process planned during
2015 and the Housing Strategy review, partners will be consulted on
strategic direction for homelessness prevention services via the
Homelessness Strategy Implementation Group

(g0 Community Safety
The contract for Street and Mental Health Outreach Services is specifically
shaped to improve community safety by targeting street-based anti-social
behaviour.
A number of grant recipients listed above in appendix 1 make a significant
contribution to community safety. For example, Cambridge Women’s Aid
provides refuge and support for victims of domestic violence and makes a
significant contribution to community safety in so doing. Evaluations of the
Chronically Excluded Adults Service have shown significant reductions in
costs to the Criminal Justice System.
6. Background papers
None
7. Appendices
Appendix 1 — Homelessness Prevention Grant and contract awards 2015-16

7. Inspection of papers

To inspect the background papers or if you have a query on the report
please contact:

Report Page No: 7 Page 203



Author’'s Name: David Greening
Author’s Phone Number: 01223 457997
Author’s Email: david.greening@cambridge.gov.uk

Report Page No: 8 Page 204



Appendix 1

Proposed Homelessness Prevention Grants and Contracts 2015-16

Cambridge Link | 2,080 Core support for Enable people to Agreement
Up homelessness make informed undergoing
service users ﬁgﬁ'sclﬁz about their | reyjisjon
group Promote sustained
and settled lifestyles
and minimise social
exclusion
Cambridge 11,860 | Core grant Prevent 31.3.2016
Cyrenians supporting homelessness and
Cyrenians to rough sleeping
provide services
to homeless
people in need of
support.
Cambridge 31,320 | Provision of Promote sustained |31.3.2016
Citizen’s Advice independent and settled lifestyles
Bureau specialist housing and minimise social
advice services exclusion
through CAB.
Cambridge Re- | 8,340 Provision of Promote sustained | 31.3.2016
use furniture and white | and settled lifestyles
goods to those and m!nimise social
affected by exclusion
poverty and
disadvantage.
Wintercomfort 88,160 | A learning and Prevent 30.9.18
development homelessness and

Page 205



Grant recipient | Funding | Brief service Strategic objective(s) | Expiry of
award outline current
for grant
2015-16 agreement
(£)
service for single rough sleeping
homeless or Promote sustained
formerly homeless |  @nd settled lifestyles
people and minimise social
exclusion
Cambridge 44,710 | Provision of an Enable people to 31.3.16
Women’s Aid outreach service make informed
for women and choices about their
, . housin
Zzllr::?igl\e/iec;lr;ice. Promo’?e sus_tained
and settled lifestyles
and minimise social
exclusion
Cambridge 750 Rent subsidy to Promote sustained | Agreement
Cyrenians support working and settled lifestyles | undergoing
residents and minimise social | revision
exclusion
Riverside 4,000 Young person’s Prevent Agreement
English emergency bed homelessness and | undergoing
Churches space rough sleeping revision
Housing Group
YMCA 4,000 Young person’s Prevent Agreement
emergency bed homelessness and | undergoing
space rough sleeping revision
CHS Group 40,000 | Employment Promote sustained |31.3.15
advice service for and settled Iifestyles
those in housing and m[nimise social
need exclusion
Jimmy’s 51,270 | Funding Prevent Agreement
Cambridge contribution to the homelessness and | undergoing
Assessment rough sleeping revision

Enable people to

Page 206




Centre for rough

make informed
choices about their

sleepers
housing
Promote sustained
and settled lifestyles
and minimise social
exclusion
Centre 33 30,000 | Advice and Prevent 31.3.16
advocacy service homelessness and
for young people rough sleeping
threatened with Enable people to
make informed
homelessness choices about their
housing
Cambridge 13,000 | Grants service to Promote sustained | New grant
Central Aid individuals and and settled lifestyles | award to
families, providing and minimise social | 31 3 16
for basic essential exclusion only
Riverside 28,850 | Pre-tenancy work Prevent Agreement
English to support and homelessness and | undergoing
Churches prepare homeless E’l:)gr]rrl]o?ee;?;?agined revision
Housing Group people for . and settled lifestyles
independent living and minimise social
exclusion
CHS Group 13,500 | Young parents’ Minimise use of Agreement
temporary undergoing
accommodation and | evision

maximise use of
longer term housing

Page 207




solutions

Enable people to
make informed
choices about their
housing

Cambridgeshire
County Council

20,000

Chronically
excluded adults
service

Promote sustained
and settled lifestyles
and minimise social
exclusion

Prevent
homelessness and
rough sleeping
Enable people to
make informed
choices about their
housing

Minimise use of
temporary
accommodation and
maximise use of
longer term housing
solutions

Agreement
undergoing
revision

Cambridgeshire
County Council

26,710

Contribution to
Countywide
alcohol service

Promote sustained
and settled lifestyles
and minimise social
exclusion

31.3.17

Homeless Link

7,280

Shared customer
information
system

Prevent
homelessness and
rough sleeping

Service
Level
Agreement
renewed
annually

Cambridgeshire
Constabulary

31,160

Street-life policing,
tackling rough
sleeping, begging

Promote sustained
and settled lifestyles
and minimise social

31.3.15

Page 208



and other street-
based anti-social
behaviour

exclusion

Prevent
homelessness and
rough sleeping

cover shortfall in
discretionary
business rate
relief for
Cyrenians,
CWA,
Cambridge Re-
Use and
Wintercomfort.

Crime 175,000 | Street and mental Promote sustained |31.3.16
Reduction health outreach and settled lifestyles
Initiatives service tackling and minimise social | (contract)
: exclusion

rough Zleepcllng, | Prevent

stre.et- ase -antl- homelessness and

and Enable people to

homelessness make informed

prevention for choices about their

those with mental housing

health problems
CHS Group 15,000 | Young person’s Prevent New grant
(Railway supported housing | homelessness and | award to
House) project rough sleeping 31.3.16

only

Total amount to | 8,390 See above See above 31.3.15

Page 209




Unallocated 26,720
funds*

TOTAL 682,100

* Unallocated funds can be awarded in year under delegated authority to the Head of
Strategic Housing. However, these funds are currently earmarked for the
Discretionary Housing Payment (DHP fund) for 2016-17

Page 210



Agenda Item 12

r‘h\ Cambridge City Council ltem

R

To: Executive Councillor for Housing: Councillor Kevin
Price

Report by: Head of Legal Services, Director of Customer and
Community Services

Relevant scrutiny Housing 14/01/2015

committee: Scrutiny
Committee

Wards affected: All

FINDINGS OF MALADMINISTRATION BY THE LOCAL GOVERNMENT
OMBUDSMAN: HOMELESSNESS
Not a Key Decision

1. Executive summary

1.1 The Local Government Ombudsman has made a finding of
maladministration following a complaint. The complaint relates to the
Council’s homelessness functions.

1.2 In these circumstances, the Head of Legal Services, as the Council’s
Monitoring Officer, has an obligation to report the findings to the
Executive. The Executive is obliged to set out what action has already
been taken in respect of the findings, what action it intends to take and
the reasons for taking the action.

1.3 This report summarises the complaint, acknowledges that there were
shortcomings in relation to working practices and sets out the action
taken in response.

1.4 The Executive Councillor is asked to consider the action taken and to
decide whether it is adequate or whether further steps should be
taken.

2. Recommendation

To endorse the actions taken by officers in response to the finding of the
Local Government Ombudsman.

Report Page No: 1 Page 211



3. The Complaint and the Ombudsman’s Decision

3.1

3.2

3.3

3.4

3.5

3.6

The Ombudsman’s decision letter forms Appendix A to this report. The
complainant is referred to as Mrs X. The Ombudsman summarises the
complaint in these terms:

“Mrs X complains the Council refused to accept a homeless
application even though it knew she was occupying a property that
was being illegally sublet. Delay by the Council in taking possession
action against the tenant who was illegally subletting meant she lived
in unsuitable conditions, facing harassment for longer than was
necessary.”

The background to the complaint is this. Mrs X was renting a house
from a private landlord, Ms Z. In September 2013, it came to the
Council’s attention when visiting Mrs X, that Ms Z, a Council tenant,
was illegally subletting his Council home to Mrs X.

Mrs X visited Council offices that afternoon to discuss her housing
situation and options. The housing officer did not take a homelessness
application, on the basis that Mrs X did not appear to be threatened
with homelessness, but said she should come back and make a
homelessness application if asked to leave the property. The
Ombudsman’s decision is that, in concluding that Mrs X did not
appear to be threatened with homelessness, the Council was making
a decision on her homelessness status, and that this needed to be
done formally. The Council should have issued a formal decision,
which would have triggered rights to a review of the decision, and
further rights of appeal. By not dealing with this in the formal manner
prescribed by legislation, the Ombudsman concludes that the Council
has denied Mrs X her rights of review and appeal.

Later in September, Mrs X visited Council offices to say that she was
being harassed. This led to a meeting with the Council’s housing
enforcement officer but Mrs X said she did not want the Council to
take action at that time. Mrs X also applied to join the housing register
and the Council explained what further information Mrs X needed to

supply.

On 28 October 2013, Mrs X’s solicitor wrote to the Council asking it to
treat Mrs X as being “homeless at home”. This was on the basis that
she had somewhere to live but that it was not reasonable for her to
continue to live there.

The Council responded on 8 November to say that Mrs X was not
threatened with homelessness within 28 days. The Ombudsman says

Report Page No: 2 Page 212



3.7

3.8

3.9

3.10

that she is not persuaded that the Council responded properly to the
request from Mrs X’s solicitor, as it did not make inquiries about her
current circumstances. The Ombudsman also says that the Council
was again making a homelessness decision without following the
statutory requirements, with the effect that Mrs X was not informed of
her rights of review and appeal.

The Council had already served notice to quit on the tenant who was
illegally subletting. It had told Mrs X that it would not treat her as
homeless until possession was granted. In response to the
“homelessness at home” request, the Council delayed taking court
action to recover the property. This was intended to give Mrs X more
time to complete her housing register application and to bid for
properties. The Ombudsman’s view is that the Council should not
have linked Mrs X’s housing needs application with her homelessness
application. The Ombudsman concludes that the Council was at fault
for delaying the possession action, which delayed the point at which it
would consider Mrs X to be threatened with homelessness.

In January 2014, the Council obtained a possession order to recover
the property that had been illegally sublet. At this point the Council
accepted a homelessness application from Mrs X and provided her
with temporary accommodation. In May 2014 she was offered a two
bedroom property and her tenancy began on 25 May. On 6 June, the
Council made a formal determination of Mrs X’s homelessness
application. This was that the Council had no duty to house Mrs X, as
she was adequately housed. The Ombudsman is critical of the time
taken to issue the homelessness decision. The homelessness code of
practice says that councils should aim ot complete their enquiries and
notify the applicant of their decision within 33 working days. The
period taken in this case was considerably longer.

The Ombudsman’s decision letter comments:

“The homelessness function is part of a council’s statutory duty. How it
deals with applications and makes decisions is set out in legislation. A
Council cannot choose which parts of the legislation to follow. If a
decision is made then it has to be communicated in the prescribed
manner. Failure to do so and to include rights of review and appeal is
fault. The facts in this case show the Council has not made
homelessness decisions and communicated them in the correct way.
This has resulted in lost opportunities for Ms X and denied her rights
of review and appeal.”

The Ombudsman has recommended the following action by the
Council:

Report Page No: 3 Page 213



* A written apology for the failings in this case;

* Pay Ms X £300 to recognise her lost opportunities by failing to
provide proper written decisions that she was not threatened with
homelessness and for denying her rights of appeal;

» Pay Ms X £100 for failing to determine the January 2014 within the
recommended timescales without good reason; and

» Pay Ms X £100 for the delay in taking possession action.

The Ombudsman’s recommended actions have been agreed.

4. Response to the Ombudsman'’s findings

Whilst the homelessness service was seeking to obtain the best housing
outcome for Ms X, we accept the Ombudsman’s conclusions.

At the Housing Scrutiny meeting on 30 September 2014, the Executive
Councillor and the Scrutiny Committee considered three other Ombudsman
findings relating to homelessness. The events described in this report took
place some months before that date. The report to the September meeting
identified a number of actions which have already addressed some of the
issues set out in this report; in particular, the need to ensure that
homelessness decisions meet the 33 working day target.

We are undertaking a review of homelessness procedures, which will
include:

¢ |dentifying clearly the circumstances in which the Council needs to
treat an approach formally as a homelessness application;

e Ensuring that applicants are informed of their rights of review and
appeal;

e Giving guidance about the need to keep separate consideration of the
Council’s homelessness duties and consideration of a housing needs
application from the same person;

e Ensuring that homelessness decisions meet the 33 working day
target.

e Guidance to staff on the point at which an applicant is considered to
be homeless and when the Council’s duties to provide Interim
Accommodation arise

e Introduce a more structured and consistent approach to housing
options interviews and ensure that written advice is provided in a
timely manner

Report Page No: 4 page 214



e Deliver further staff training on all of the above

The Housing Advice Service is now systematically monitoring all
homelessness casework so that inactivity on any particular case or
longer stays in temporary accommodation can be identified at the earliest
opportunity

5. Implications

(@)

(b)

()

(d)

(f)

(9)

Financial Implications. The total compensation recommended by the
Ombudsman, and paid or credited by the Council, is £500.

Staffing Implications. The Council needs to make sure it has
appropriately skilled staff to meet its homelessness duties, to ensure
the workloads of those staff are managed effectively and that they are
adequately trained. The actions described in this report have sought
to address these themes. They have also sought to support staff to
deliver a sensitive service, to people with a range of complex needs,
at a time of acute housing stress.

Equality and Poverty Implications. An equality impact assessment
has not been carried out in respect of this report. However, it is clearly
the case that groups with protected characteristics and those in
poverty are going to be significantly represented amongst those
seeking assistance with homelessness from the Council.

Environmental Implications. This report has no climate change
impact.

Procurement. There are no procurement implications.

Consultation and communication. The Monitoring Officer is obliged
to consult the Head of Paid Service (Chief Executive) and the Chief
Finance Officer (Head of Finance) in preparing this report, and has
done so.

Community Safety. There are no direct community safety
implications, but a failure by the Council to discharge its
homelessness responsibilities could give rise to community safety
issues, given the vulnerability of some of those seeking assistance.

6. Background papers

The Ombudsman decision letters are appended to this report.

Report Page No: 5 Page 215



7. Appendices
Local Government decision letter.
8. Inspection of papers

To inspect the background papers or if you have a query on the report
please contact:

Author’'s Name: Simon Pugh. Head of Legal Services
Author’'s Phone Number: 01223 - 457401
Author’s Email: simon.pugh@cambridge.gov.uk

Report Page No: 6 Page 216



27 November 2014

Complaint reference:
14 007 475

Complaint against:
Cambridge City Council

Local Government

OMBUDSMAN

The Ombudsman’s final decision

Summary: The Council is at fault for failing to make homelessness
decisions in the correct manner. This meant rights of review and
appeal were denied. It also took longer than the recommended 33
working days to determine a homelessness application without good
reason for the delay and delayed in taking possession action.

The complaint

Mrs X complains the Council refused to accept a homeless application even
though it knew she was occupying a property that was being illegally sublet.
Delay by the Council in taking possession action against the tenant who was
illegally subletting meant she lived in unsuitable conditions, facing harassment for
longer than was necessary.

The Ombudsman’s role and powers

The Ombudsman investigates complaints about ‘maladministration’ and ‘service

failure’. In this statement, | have used the word fault to refer to these. If there has
been fault, the Ombudsman considers whether it has caused an injustice and if it
has, she may suggest a remedy. (Local Government Act 1974, sections 26(1) and 26A(1))

The Ombudsman cannot question whether a council’s decision is right or wrong
simply because the complainant disagrees with it. She must consider whether
there was fault in the way the decision was reached. (Local Government Act 1974,
section 34(3))

How | considered this complaint
As part of the investigation, | have:

» considered the complaint and the documents provided by the complainant;

* made enquiries of the Council and considered the comments and documents
the Council provided;

» discussed the issues with the complainant’s representative;

* sent my provisional view to both the Council and the complainant’s
representative and invited their comments.

What | found

Ms X was renting a property from a private landlord, Ms Z. She had a tenancy
agreement and paid rent every month. In September 2013 representatives from

Page 217 1



the Council visited the property to talk to Ms X. During this meeting, Ms X found
out it was actually a council property which Ms Z was illegally subletting.

That afternoon, Ms X visited the Council offices seeking advice on her housing
situation and options. The Council’s notes of the meeting show the Council did
not take a homelessness application. The discussion included information about
temporary accommodation and that this is only available in Peterborough. The
housing officer said that she should come back and make a homelessness
application if she was asked to leave the property.

On 23 September Ms X contacted the Council again. She said she was being
harassed. The Council arranged an appointment for Ms X to meet its housing
enforcement officer. Ms X also applied to join the Council’s housing register. The
Council provided Ms X with details of the further information it required to verify
her application.

Ms X met with the housing enforcement officer and made a formal statement about
the harassment. The Council’s notes of the meeting say Ms X did not want the
Council to take any action at that time.

Ms X’s solicitor, Mr Y, contacted the Council on 28 October. In his email, Mr Y
asked the Council to consider Ms X as “homeless at home” rather than place her
in temporary accommodation. The Council says that in response to this, it
delayed taking action to repossess the property Ms X was living in. It says it
hoped Ms X would quickly provide information so she could join the housing
register.

Ms X attended a meeting with a housing advisor on 1 October. Following the
meeting the Council wrote to Ms X on 8 November detailing the discussions. In
the letter the Council refers to homelessness and says “l had no reason to believe
you were homeless or threatened with homelessness within 28 days”.

In November, Mr Y submitted formal complaints to the Council about how it was
dealing with Ms X’s case. The Council again stated Ms X was not threatened with
homelessness with 28 days. It said it was looking into the harassment issues and
was seeking information from the police.

Ms X provided the necessary information to enable her to join the housing register
on 5 December 2013. The Council awarded Ms X band A priority, the highest
category.

On January 20 the Council accepted a homelessness application. On 5 February
an officer contacted Ms X saying temporary accommodation was available. Ms X
contacted the Council on 24 February and was placed in temporary
accommodation.

In May the Council offered Ms X a two bedroom property. Her tenancy began on
25 May 2014. On 6 June the Council wrote to Ms X with the decision on her
homelessness application. The Council said it had no duty to house Ms X as she
was adequately housed.

The Council’s Independent Complaints Investigator wrote to Mr Y in response to his
formal complaint. She did not uphold the complaint.

Analysis

Ms X complains the Council failed to take a homelessness application when she
first visited the offices in September 2013. The homelessness code of guidance
states “if a housing authority has reason to believe that a person applying to the

EP_Y

Final decision Page 2 o 2



20.

21.

22.

authority for accommodation or assistance in obtaining accommodation may be
homeless or threatened with homelessness, the authority must make such
inquiries as are necessary to satisfy itself whether the applicant is eligible for
assistance” .

The Council says a homelessness application was not taken on this date because
Ms X was not threatened with homelessness within 28 days. The information
provided shows the officer who spoke with Ms X was only able to reach this view
after making inquiries of another housing officer. | consider the Council made a
homelessness decision on this day but failed to issue a decision notice in the
required way. A written decision would include details of how Ms X could
challenge the decision if she disagreed with it. By making a decision but failing to
put this in writing, the Council has denied Ms X her rights of review and appeal. |
consider this to be fault.

On 28 October Ms X'’s solicitor, Mr Y, asked the Council to treat Ms X as “homeless
at home”. He was arguing that while Ms X had accommodation it was not
reasonable for her to continue to live there. | am not persuaded the Council
properly responded to this request. It did not make inquiries about Ms X’s current
circumstances.

The Council’s letter of 8 November makes no reference to the “homeless at home”
request or the harassment Ms X had reported previously. The letter does state
Ms X is not threatened with homelessness within 28 days. | consider this was the
Council again making a homelessness decision without following the statutory
procedure and providing a written decision with all rights of review and appeal
explained. | consider this to be fault.

The Council says that in response to Mr Y “homeless at home” request it delayed
taking further possession action. It says this was to give Ms X time to provide
supporting information so she could successfully bid for properties. | cannot see
the connection between these two actions. The Council had told Ms X it would
not treat her as homeless until possession was granted. It then delayed
progressing the possession action. Whether Ms X was accepted onto the
housing register is a separate matter to her homelessness situation. | am not
persuaded the Council was justified in delaying the possession action for the
reasons given. | take the view the Council was at fault to delay the possession
action.

Ms X and Mr Y say the Council did not properly respond to her reports of
harassment. The information | have seen shows Ms X first reported harassment
in September but that she asked the Council not to take further action at that time.
The Council later sought information from the police about an incident Ms X
reported. The police responded to the Council saying it had no records. It
appears this information was not correct but this was the fault of the police so |
cannot criticise the Council.

The Council accepted Ms X’s homelessness application in January 2014 after the
court granted possession of the property. The homelessness code of guidance
says that an authority is obliged to begin inquiries straight away after accepting a
homelessness application. It says an authority should aim to complete its
inquiries and notify the applicant of the decision within 33 working days. It says
that in many cases it will be possible for inquiries to be completed significantly
earlier.

Final decision Page 219 3



23.

24.

25.

26.

In this case the Council took until 6 June to notify Ms X of the decision on her
homelessness application. | have no information to indicate why the decision was
not completed sooner. The Council had firsthand knowledge of the court action to
gain possession of the property and so | can see no reason why the decision took
so long. | consider this delay to be fault.

The homelessness function is part of a council’s statutory duty. How it deals with
applications and makes decisions is set out in legislation. A Council cannot
choose which parts of the legislation to follow. If a decision is made then it has to
be communicated in the prescribed manner. Failure to do so and to include rights
of review and appeal is fault. The facts in this case show the Council has not
made homelessness decisions and communicated them in the correct way. This
has resulted in lost opportunities for Ms X and denied her rights of review and
appeal.

Agreed action
To remedy the fault in this case | recommend the following action by the Council:
» A written apology for the failings in this case;

+ Pay Ms X £300 to recognise her lost opportunities by failing to provide proper
written decisions that she was not threatened with homelessness and for
denying her rights of appeal;

+ Pay Ms X £100 for failing to determine the January 2014 within the
recommended timescales without good reason; and

+ Pay Ms X £100 for the delay in taking possession action.

Final decision

As the Council agreed to the recommendations above, | will not pursue the
complaint further.

Investigator’s decision on behalf of the Ombudsman

Final decision Page 220 4



Agenda Iltem 13

rQ Cambridge City Council ltem

s

To: Executive Councillor for Housing: Councillor Kevin
Price

Report by: Liz Bisset, Director of Customer & Community
Services

Relevant scrutiny Housing 14/1/2015

committee: Scrutiny
Committee

Wards affected: Abbey Arbury Castle Cherry Hinton Coleridge

East Chesterton King's Hedges Market Newnham
Petersfield Queen Edith's Romsey Trumpington
West Chesterton

FUNDAMENTAL REVIEW OF THE HOUSING REVENUE ACCOUNT (HRA)

Key Decision

1. Executive summary

1.1  We are in the third year of self-financing for the Housing Revenue
Account (HRA), whereby we manage a ring-fenced account entirely
self-financed through income from rents, sales and investments,
borrowing and grants. In 2014 the HRA revenue budget for
expenditure on services, at the mid-year review was £15.33m and the
HRA capital budget was £38.8 for the same year. Underlying these
figures is a financial model that informs a 30 year business plan. This
report sets out the scope and process for taking a fundamental review
of the HRA, taking into account spend profiles, past and future
spending pressures, and emergent priorities.

2. Recommendations

The Executive Councillor is recommended:

a) To agree to the scope of the review set out in section 5 of the report.

b) To agree to the timetable set out in section 10.

3. Background

Report Page No: 1

Page 221



3.1

3.2

3.3

The move to self-financing required us to draw up a 30 year business
plan, based on financial modelling which took into account the profile
of activity, income and expenditure current at the time. The financial
modelling made a number of assumptions about future activity,
income and expenditure, based on the facts or best estimates at the
time. At the point of self-financing we, along with other stock retained
authorities who were net contributors to the Treasury, bought
ourselves out of the subsidy system, incurring a debt of £213.6m.

The Business Plan identified five priorities for expenditure:

» Spend on landlord services (housing management, responsive and
void repairs)

* Investment in new affordable housing

* Investing in the existing housing stock

* Investment in new initiatives and income generating activities

» Spend on discretionary services (ie support)

The business plan has been reviewed and updated at the mid-year
review and budget setting stage in each year since its inception.
Adjustments have been made to the budget profiles that underpin the
business plan at these review points. These have accommodated
budget pressures, underspends and opportunities as they occurred.
Looked at cumulatively the level of change over a relatively short
period of time has been significant. Major variables over this time
include:

* The development of an ambitious council owned and managed
affordable housing programme.

* New funding opportunities for the delivery of affordable housing
through the decision to use a proportion of the revenue surpluses ‘set
aside’ for debt repayment; use of higher than anticipated Right to Buy
receipts; potential opportunities to increase the borrowing cap;
partnership opportunities through City Deal and other alliances.

* An asset management programme that has increased exponentially
in the move from decent homes to an investment standard, that has
struggled to spend to the profile.

* The first stages of introduction of welfare reform, putting pressure on
housing management, and risk to income streams.

* HRA revenue saving, with an average target over the last 3 years of
2.2% and savings delivered at an average of 1.76%, equivalent to
£135,830 per annum.

Other pressures arise from changes in assumptions from the original
model:

Report Page No: 2 Page 222



3.4

4.1

4.2

5.1

* Inflation rates remaining lower than anticipated, requiring
commensurate savings.
* Build costs rising further above inflation than anticipated.

It is therefore timely to consider whether investment in our key
priorities needs to be rebalanced to better reflect the actual spend
patterns over the last few years, and new opportunities that have
arisen, particularly for affordable housing. Alongside that,
consideration needs to be given to the likely level of long-term savings
needed to maintain the HRA in balance, and where these will come
from.

General Fund

The General Fund (GF) pays for some housing services, alongside
other non-housing activities. Essentially general fund housing services
are pre-tenancy or relate to private sector housing and include
housing options and homelessness services, temporary or emergency
housing, community safety and some anti-social behaviour cases,
strategic planning of housing services and enabling new affordable
housing. Different elements of some activities are supported by both
the HRA and GF, for example the enabling of new affordable housing
is GF and the delivery can be funded through HRA Capital.

Housing GF activity needs to be considered alongside the HRA for
several reasons. The GF is under considerable pressure to make
savings of £6 million over the next 5 years, and opportunities to
reduce housing expenditure need to be considered as part of a
council-wide approach. Also the HRA and GF are not entirely
independent of each, and the interrelationship between HRA and GF
needs to be understood in terms of how activities are funded and any
knock on impact to making changes in either fund for housing related
services.

Scope of the Review
The aim of the review is:

 To identify past and future spending profiles to inform future
decisions on expenditure.

* To anticipate future funding pressures and what will drive these.

» To rebalance HRA expenditure so that it more accurately reflects
activity and pressures in the budget.

* To identify areas for savings in HRA revenue and capital and
housing general fund.

Report Page No: 3 Page 223



6.1

71

» To consider redirection of resources to existing and future priorities,
where these do not need to be taken to achieve a balanced budget.

» To agree areas for review in subsequent financial years to generate
further savings, using where appropriate zero based budgeting.

Spend Profiles

The review needs to start with a high level summary expenditure over
the last 5 years to examine general trends. Although self-financing
started in 2012/13 it is nonetheless informative to look at trends over a
longer time period to consider what other influences there might be on
patterns of expenditure. The review will consider HRA revenue and
capital, GF revenue, and the interrelations between the various funds.
Examining trends should act as a ‘can opener’ to asking whether
allocations to various activities need to be reduced or increased. In
both the revenue and capital budgets there are some areas which
have consistent patterns of underspend over the previous 5 years,
indicating that budgets should be reduced to better align with actual
expenditure patterns. In the HRA revenue budget variables tend to be
smaller, but where they are consistent they should be considered for
saving, if they haven’t previously been identified as part of the annual
budget processes. The HRA capital programme shows very significant
underspends, and these have increased with self-financing and the
resultant increases in funding available. Although there are
explanations for this such as slippage of programmes and the poor
performance of contractors, it is not acceptable to have such major
variations year on year, and corrective action needs to be taken.
Consideration will include:

* Whether the size of some programmes needs to be reduced to
reflect capacity to deliver, particularly in the decent homes
programme.

 Where there is underutilised budget in areas which are emerging
political priorities such as communal areas and the Cambridge
standard, and how to accelerate programmes in targeted areas.

* Whether budget profiling for refurbishments and new build is over
optimistic in terms of delivery timeframes.

* Where and how capacity to deliver can be improved, where budgets
are retained in areas of underspend.

New Funding Opportunities

The area of greatest pressure, but also opportunity, in the capital
programme, is the delivery of the new affordable housing programme.
The funding landscape is becoming increasingly complex as new
funding streams, particularly, but not exclusively, for affordable

Report Page No: 4 page 224



7.2

8.1

8.2

8.3

housing come on stream. Funding that is needed to deliver the agreed
programme will come from a number of sources including Right to Buy
receipts, use of debt-repayment set aside; borrowing from existing and
potentially new borrowing capacity; use of HCA grant; and revenue
contributions to capital. Work is currently underway to determine the
most advantageous mix of funding opportunities to fund the new
affordable housing programme. This has to be balanced with the need
to fund other priorities, which can be funded from only some of these
funding streams.

The review needs to present different options for the delivery of the
new affordable housing programme. The key variables to consider will
be developing viable models that provide an agreed mix of tenure; the
impact of any realignment of the capital programme on the delivery of
other priorities; and the impact on the business plan of payback
periods.

Budget Pressures

The General Fund pressures have been well documented, most
recently in the Mid-Year Financial Review. The HRA is not under such
immediate pressure, but the introduction of welfare reforms,
particularly the introduction of direct payment of housing benefit to
tenants, is predicted to lead to a big increase in rent arrears. There
are other budget pressures, shared with the general fund, such as
inflation rates, where the reduction in the anticipated CPI rate this
year, coupled with an increase in the building inflation indices,
significantly reduced future investment capacity in the business plan,
reducing the number of new homes anticipated to be deliverable over
30 years for 1,910 to 1,200.

In the general fund we are using the need to take savings as a catalyst
to make transformational changes to services guided by four themes:

« Can we develop the way we interface with our customers and
service users to deliver savings?

» Are there alternative models of service delivery to be considered
such as shared services, or arm’s length arrangements?

* Do we make the best use of our assets such as office and depot
space?

* How are we ensuring that changes protect the most vulnerable and
address social and economic inclusion?

In this review we will identify areas for future exploration at the first
stage, with more detailed reviews or work on the feasibility of

Report Page No: 5 Page 225



9.1

9.2

9.3

9.4

9.5

10.

10.1

10.2

alternative delivery models to follow. A initial programme of all the
specific area has been identified in section 10.

Emerging Priorities

The review of housing finance will need take on board the priorities for
housing set out in the Annual Statement 2014. There will be
opportunities to consider whether existing allocations can be
redirected to meet new priorities, for example retargeted towards an
estate based environmental improvement programme.

The Annual Statement has a strong theme of sharing prosperity and
tackling poverty. There will be opportunities to build on our landlord
services to provide what are sometimes called “landlord plus”
services, which recognize that many of the poorest and most
vulnerable members of the community live in social housing and can
benefit from add-on services as money advice and the availability of
less costly everyday goods and services.

The recent STAR survey of tenants and leaseholders provides very
useful indicators of priorities for residents, what they think we do well,
and where we could improve. This will be used to inform future
priorities.

In the area of private sector housing extending the scope of licencing
of HMOs, bringing more empty homes back into use are being
explored.

Finally, recognition of the links between housing, health and social
care is informing future strategies on health care and support, and
how public agencies can work more effectively together to deliver
better outcomes.

Programme Management

This review fits within the Council’s overall programme management
of transformational change. The review will be managed by a project
board, chaired by the Director of Customer and Community Services,
with the Business Manager and Heads of Service and the Head of
Finance forming the project board. This board will meet monthly.

The review will be in 2 stages.

Stage 1: October — November 2014

Report Page No: 6 Page 226



1. Atop level review of spending profiles to determine whether any
immediate changes should be incorporated into the 2015/16 Budget
Setting reports for the HRA and GF. This work is already underway
and recommendations will be incorporated in to both BSRs. This will
include the recommendation to redirect £1m from asset management
towards other priorities.

Stage 2: October 2014 — October 2015

2. Identifying a service of reviews to be carried out in 2015/16, the
conclusions of which to be incorporated into the 2016/17 BSR. Areas
identified include:

* Decent Homes Programme and other planned works

* Response repairs, voids and cyclical maintenance

* Right to Buy / leasehold and shared ownership support

» City Homes Estate Improvement Programme (Cambridge Standard)
» General Fund housing and general HRA services

» Special services

* Housing plus opportunities

* How to address emerging priorities

This is not an exhaustive list and capacity to carry out reviews and
timeframes need to be agreed in the new year.

4. Implications
(a) Financial Implications

* Financial — to improve financial discipline so that the available budget is
utilized to best effect. Budgets reflect activity and priorities, underspends are
minimized, savings are generated.

+ Services — the reviews, although financially driven, will provide
opportunities to improve service delivery by tackling areas of
underperformance or redirecting resources where they can be better
utilised.

(b) Staffing Implications (if not covered in Consultations Section)
At this stage of the review there are no staffing implications. If any of the
reviews of specific areas lead to proposals that impact on staffing levels

these will be considered as part of the Council’s management of change
process.

Report Page No: 7 Page 297



(c) Equality and Poverty Implications

An initial EQIA has been carried out, which recognises that the review is
likely to make proposals for services used or received by vulnerable
members of the community who are our tenants. The conclusions of the
reviews will be included in a more detailed EQIA when the impact of any
proposals can be evaluated.

(d) Environmental Implications

The activities underpinning the review, particularly relating to New Build and
maintenance of existing stock as part of the Capital programme have a high
environmental impact, where build standards are at least to code level 4 and
the decent homes programme aims to reduced carbon footprint through
measures such as improved thermal efficiency.

Other areas of HRA activity, such as housing management, do not have an
impact on climate change.

(e) Procurement

No new procurement. A number of services within the HRA are already
procured particularly those relating to planned maintenance.

(f) Consultation and communication

The proposals at Stage 1 will come to Housing Scrutiny Committee in
January 2015 as part of the budget proposals set out in the BSR and will be
largely informed by a review of spend profiles to date. The conclusions of
Stage 2 of the review will be brought back to the September/October 2015
cycle, to inform the 2015/16 BSR.

Thought will need to be given as to how to most effectively involve tenants
and leaseholders in the Stage 2 reviews, which may vary depending on the
nature of the review. We have good mechanisms for involving active
tenants, but we may also want to gauge wider views in some cases and in
others use data we already have, for example from the STAR survey.

(g9 Community Safety
None
5. Background papers

These background papers were used in the preparation of this report:
- Housing Revenue Account Budget Setting Account 2014/15

Report Page No: 8 Page 228



https://www.cambridge.gov.uk/sites/www.cambridge.gov.uk/files/documents
/HRA BSR 2014-15 Final.pdf

- HRA Mid Year Financial Review 2014
https://www.cambridge.gov.uk/sites/www.cambridge.gov.uk/files/documents
/HRA-MFR-Sep-2014.pdf

6. Appendices
None
7. Inspection of papers

To inspect the background papers or if you have a query on the report
please contact:

Author’s Name: Liz Bisset
Author’'s Phone Number: 01223 - 457801
Author’s Email: liz.bisset@cambridge.gov.uk

Report Page No: 9 Page 229



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 230



cAMBRIDGE ciTy counciL Adenda Item 15a

Record of Executive Decision

COUNCIL NEW BUILD BUDGETS AND FUNDING
RESTRUCTURE

Decision of: Councillor Kevin Price,
Executive Councillor for Housing

Reference: 14/URGENCY/HSC/8

Date of Recorded 06/11/14
decision: on:

06/11/14

Decision Type: Key

Matter for

To approve revised budgets and changes in the
Decision: PP g g

funding structures of the following schemes;

Wadloes Road

Ekin Road Garage Site
Hawkins Road Garage Site
Fulbourn Road Garge Site

To approve the funding restructure for Aylesborough
Close, Campkin Road, and Water Lane.

Page 231



Why the
decision had to
be made (and
any alternative
options):

The Executive
Councillor’s
decision(s):

The Council new build programme is constantly being
measured against delivery by the 31%' March 2015 to
ensure grant funding from the Homes and Communities
Agency (HCA) Affordable Homes Programme 2011-15
(AHP 11-15) is achievable. The HCA has recently
announced that any schemes that have not yet started
on site will not be able to claim grant through the AHP
11-15. This, together with delays on a number of sites,
means it is likely that 7 sites will not achieve full or part
funding from the AHP 11-15. Therefore the funding
structure of these sites has been reassessed. In order
to maximise the efficiency of using Right to Buy receipts
and maximise the potential of other HCA grant
programmes on these sites an urgent decision is
required to ensure delivery whilst adhering to key
funding constraints.

a) To approve the revised budget for Wadloes
Road of £780,280 and to note the use of Right
to Buy receipts instead of HCA grant.

b) To approve revised budgets for the following
schemes noting the use of Right to Buy
receipts instead of HCA grant.

Ekin Road Garages - £1,132,760
Hawkins Road Garages - £1,493,890
Fulbourn Road Garages - £1,399470

c) To approve the restructure of the funding
strategy for Aylesborough Close, Water Lane and
seven dwellings at Campkin Road and Water
Lane to fund these schemes using HRA reserves
plus any HCA grant achieved by through bids to
the Affordable Homes Programme 2015-18 (AHP
15-18

Reasons for the Ag outlined above

decision:

Page 232



Report:

Scrutiny

consideration:

Conflicts of
interest:

Comments:

See Briefing Note attached.

The Chair, Spokesperson of Housing Scrutiny
Committee and Opposition Spokes were consulted prior
to the action being authorised

No conflicts of interest were declared by the Executive
Councillor.

This urgent decision will be reported back to the next
Housing Scrutiny Committee on 14 January 2015

Page 233



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 234



BRIEFING NOTE:
COUNCIL NEW BUILD BUDGETS
AND FUNDING RESTRUCTURE

This urgent decision comprises three parts for approval, thus this report
comprises three parts as set out below.

a) Wadloes Road increased funding requirement

In error our developer partner, Keepmoat, had not accounted for some
costs in the previous development appraisal for Wadloes Road, which
has resulted in an increase in the cost of the scheme to the Council. This
issue has been exacerbated by the market values of the market sale
dwellings reported by our appointed valuer being £20,000 less than
Keepmoat had assumed in their earlier development appraisal.

In total the above issues increase the cost of the development (net of
land value) to the Council from £675,100 to £780,280. This is further
impacted by the loss of £106,340 in HCA grant for this scheme as the
scheme cannot be completed by the end of March 2015.

As outlined below, it is proposed that this scheme is now funded using a
mix of RTB receipts and direct revenue funding of capital (DRF) through
the Housing Revenue Account (HRA). The payback to the HRA for the
contribution to this scheme would then be 24 years and therefore well
within the 35 year benchmark payback period.

b) Use of Right to Buy receipts for Fulbourn Road, Ekin Road
and Hawkins Road garage sites and Wadloes Road

The HCA have nationally stated that any schemes that have not yet
started on site will not be able to claim grant through the AHP 11-15.
Although start on site is imminent for two of the above schemes there
have been a number of delays, including protracted discussions with
Highways during the planning process, a rigorous approach to applying
for change of planning use class and local access issues, which means
it will not be possible to claim for AHP 11-15 grant. Therefore the funding
structure for these schemes has been reassessed. These sites deliver a
net additional number of dwellings into the Affordable Housing stock and
are therefore eligible for the use of Right to Buy receipts. The lost HCA
grant will be £17,723 per dwelling, whereas the amount of Right to Buy
receipt that can be utilised will be in the region of £45,000 to £50,000 per

Page 235



dwelling across the four sites. The balance of funding will be provided by
the previously budgeted use of DRF.

Due to the increase in funding per dwelling from the RTB receipts the
call on DRF will be reduced, which will allow this funding to be used on
other projects.

The payback to the HRA for each scheme is as follows

Ekin Road — 25 years
Hawkins Road — 24 years
Fulbourn Road — 27 years

¢) Funding restructure strategy for Aylesborough Close,
Campkin Road and Water Lane

The majority of the social housing at the Campkin Road site will be
delivered by the end of March 2015. There are seven houses that are at
risk of being delivered post March 2015. Through the funding structure
review it is proposed that DRF released above is used to fund the HCA
AHP 11-15 shortfall for this scheme. This is a worst case scenario and
the Council has the opportunity to secure grant funding at the AHP
2011-15 rate of £17,723 per social housing dwelling through the
Affordable Homes Programme 2015-18 (AHP 15-18). The AHP 15-18
will extend funding until 31%' March 2018 and will be available to bid for
and claim pre 31% March 2015.

Neither Aylesborough Close nor Water Lane has started on site due to
difficulties rehousing the last few residents, therefore the Council is
unable to claim grant from the AHP 11-15. The difficulty in achieving
completion by the end of March 2015 had already been recognised for
Water Lane and part of Aylesborough Close with a revised funding
structure, anticipating complete funding through DRF, receiving approval
in the HRA Mid-Year Financial Review (MFR). With the HCA
announcement that schemes yet to start on site being unable to claim
grant from the AHP 11-15 Aylesborough Close has been re-reviewed.
Again it is proposed the balance of this scheme be funded through DRF.
Although it is not possible to use RTB receipts on these schemes it is
proposed that grant funding, again at a rate of £17,723 per social
housing dwelling, be pursued from the AHP 15-18 to part fund these
schemes.

Page 236



Summary

The position at the HRA MFR was a net cash cost to the HRA of
£15,479,920 (capital cost net of grant and land transfer value) to deliver
the 146 programme plus 12 additional dwellings.

With the ability to use RTB receipts on some of the schemes in place of
HCA grant, this reduces this cost to £15,360,620, even with the
increased costs of delivering Wadloes Road.

This cost to the HRA will be further reduced if HCA funding through the

AHP 15-18 of £726,640 is secured, reducing the HRA revenue
contribution to £14,633,980.

Page 237



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 238



cAMBRIDGE ciTy counci. Agenda ltem 15b

Record of Executive Decision

REFURBISHMENT OF THE CAMBRIDGE ACCESS SURGERY

Decision of:

Reference:

Date of
decision:
18/11/14

Decision Type:

Matter for
Decision:

Why the
decision had to
be made (and
any alternative
options):

The Executive
Councillor’s
decision(s):

Councillor Kevin Price,
Executive Councillor for Housing

14/URGENCY/HSC/9
Recorded
on:
18/11/14
Non Key

To seek approval to spend capital monies, which are
earmarked within the repair and renewals funds for the
Access Surgery, but where the scheme does not
currently appear in the Capital Plan and the costs
exceed £10,000 in total. This is an urgent decision
because the building work has already commenced.

This is an urgent decision because the building work
has already commenced.

As specified under Part 4C 6.1.2 of the Councils
Constitution, It was not deemed practical to convene a
quorate meeting of Council to agree the addition to the
Capital Plan.

To agree an increase of £80,000, in the capital
expenditure already included in the Council’'s Capital
Plan as part of the project for the completion of the
refurbishment works at 125 Newmarket Road. This
expenditure will be fully financed using repairs and
renewals funding, and is in addition to the £100,000
approved at Community Services Committee in March
2012.

Page 239




Reasons for the
decision:

Report:

Scrutiny
consideration:

Conflicts of
interest:

Comments:

As outlined above

A report detailing the background is attached and
background papers.

The Chair and Opposition Spokes were consulted prior
to the action being authorised.

The Leader approved this addition to the Capital Plan
on 24 November 2014.

No conflicts of interest were declared by the Executive

Councillor.

This urgent decision will be reported back to the next
Housing Scrutiny Committee on 14 January 2015 and
then Council on 26 February 2015.

Comments were received from the Opposition Spokes
Opposition Spokes — Independent Group. The points
raised were addressed by Officers.

No adverse comments were received.

Page 240



A A

ﬁ Cambridge City Council Item

==

To: Executive Councillor for Housing: Councillor Kevin
Price

Report by: Alan Carter

Relevant scrutiny Housing 4/11/2014

committee: Scrutiny
Committee

Wards affected: Abbey Arbury Castle Cherry Hinton Coleridge

East Chesterton King's Hedges Market Newnham
Petersfield Queen Edith's Romsey Trumpington
West Chesterton

REFURBISHMENT OF THE CAMBRIDGE ACCESS SURGERY - URGENT
DECISION
Not a Key Decision

1. Executive summary

The purpose of this paper is to seek approval to spend capital monies,
which are earmarked within the repair and renewals funds for the Access
Surgery, but where the scheme does not currently appear in the Capital
Plan and the costs exceed £10,000 in total. This is an urgent decision
because the building work has already commenced.

2. Recommendations
The Executive Councillor is recommended:

To ask the Council (with the decision to be taken out of cycle by the Leader)
for an increase of £80,000, in the capital expenditure already included in the
Council’'s Capital Plan as part of the project for the completion of the
refurbishment works at 125 Newmarket Road. This expenditure will be fully
financed using repairs and renewals funding, and is in addition to the
£100,000 approved at Community Services Committee in March 2012
(please refer to appendix 1).

3. Background

The Cambridge Access Surgery is based at 125 Newmarket Road,
Cambridge. The surgery offers a primary health care service for homeless
people in the City and the Council received then Office of the Deputy Prime
Minister (ODPM) funding back in 2003 to establish the service in partnership
with the Primary Care Trust (PCT). The Council owns the building and it is

Report Page No: 1 Page 241



currently leased to Malling Healthcare with a sub-lease to the current
contract holder for street and mental health outreach services in the City
(currently Crime Reduction Initiatives - CRI).

As part of its 2009-12 Homelessness Strategy the Council had an objective
to create a One-Stop Shop for healthcare services for homeless people. A
report went to Community Services Scrutiny Committee in March 2012
requesting £100,000 of funding from the repair and renewals fund be set
aside to make the building fit-for-purpose to create the One-Stop-Shop
(appendix 1). This request was approved and the decision can be viewed
at
http://democracy.cambridge.gov.uk/documents/g529/Printed%20minutes %2
015th-Mar-
2012%2013.30%20Community%20Services%20Scrutiny%20Committee.pdf
?T=1 (page 4/5)

Following approval at committee, the project was subsequently delayed
because the Primary Care Trust (PCT) was being wound down and it was
not clear for some time which organisation the Council would enter into a
lease with. Following a tender process a new organisation was appointed to
run the Access Surgery and the Council entered into a lease with Malling
Healthcare on 1% October 2013.

The refurbishment works were subsequently tendered and a contract was
awarded. The contractors started on site in May 2014 and are set to
complete in December. Both in the time leading up to the award of the
healthcare contract and the subsequent drafting of the specification for the
refurbishment contract, the Housing Advice Service took the view that it
would make sense to cease all routine maintenance works at 125
Newmarket Road and include them in the specification so that all the works
could be completed together in a logical order under one single building
project. The building has not formed part of the Council’s cyclical
maintenance programme up until now and significant improvements were
required to bring the building up to standard.

The works that were added into the contract, which the Council would
normally expect to pick up as part of its maintenance responsibilities under
the current lease include mechanical and electrical installation upgrades,
which alone account for more than £65,000.

The current estimation for the work in total is £167,821 (excluding project
management fees of 9.75% of the contract sum). An arrangement has been
entered into with Malling Health for the company to make a contribution of
up to £15,000, calculated on the basis of fittings requested by the company
that are either necessary clinical items or are of better quality than the
standard item but represent better long-term value.

Report Page No: 2 Page 242



Officers were aware that sufficient monies were set aside in the repair and
renewals funds to cover the cost of the works. However, as the additional
sums (beyond that agreed by committee in 2012) are above £10,000
approval is required for the additional works, and for both the expenditure
and financing to be incorporated into the capital plan.

4. Implications
(a) Financial Implications
This expenditure will be fully financed using repairs and renewals funding,
and is in addition to the £100,000 approved at Community Services
Committee in March 2012
As at the end of September 2014 there was £285,048.91 in the joint repairs
and renewals fund for 125 and 451 Newmarket Road, which is considered
sufficient to meet both this cost and future projected investment need.
(b) Staffing Implications (if not covered in Consultations Section)
None
(c) Equality and Poverty Implications
The Access Surgery offers a primary healthcare service to patients who are
homeless or formerly homeless and traditionally suffer from poor health care
outcomes and low life expectancy. The surgery continues to ensure that
access to both primary and secondary health services is more readily
available for this patient group. For these reasons it was not felt necessary
to conduct an Equality Impact Assessment.
(d) Environmental Implications
+M — the newly refurbished building will be more energy efficient with a new
air ventilation system and secondary double glazing a feature of the
refurbishment works

(e) Procurement

The procurement process was led by Freeman Rees Roberts (architects) on
behalf of the Council

(f) Consultation and communication

Report Page No: 3 Page 243



The consultation process is outlined in the previous committee report
contained at appendix 1.

The Council is proposing a news release in December when the works are
complete.

(g9 Community Safety
None
5. Background papers
None
6. Appendices

Appendix 1 - Report to Community Services Scrutiny Committee, March
2012

7. Inspection of papers

To inspect the background papers or if you have a query on the report
please contact:

Author’'s Name: David Greening
Author’s Phone Number: 01223 - 457997
Author’s Email: david.greening@cambridge.gov.uk

Report Page No: 4 page 244



eri Cambridge City Council Item

==

To: Executive Councillor for Housing (and Deputy
Leader): Councillor Catherine Smart

Report by: Alan Carter, Head of Strategic Housing

Relevant scrutiny Community 15/3/2012

committee: Services
Scrutiny
Committee

Wards affected: From Petersfield to Abbey

PROPOSED REFURBISHMENT OF CAMBRIDGE ACCESS SURGERY
Key Decision

1. Executive summary

This report details the role of the Cambridge Access Surgery, a primary health care
service for homeless people in the city, and its contribution to the Council’s strategic
response to homelessness and proposals to refurbish the building to facilitate the
development of the service.

2. Recommendations

The Executive Councillor is recommended:

To agree to offer a capital grant of up to £100,000 to be drawn from the existing
Renewals and Replacements fund to upgrade the facilities at the primary health care
service for homeless people at 125 Newmarket Road

3. Background

3.1 The Cambridge Access Surgery (CAS) is located at 125 Newmarket Road and
offers specialist primary health care services to around 400 patients who are
homeless or have experienced homelessness.

3.2  The building was purchased by the City Council with a grant from the then Office
of the Deputy Prime Minister (ODPM) so that the Council could work more closely
with health care services to achieve better health and homelessness prevention
outcomes for homeless people and is currently leased to Cambridgeshire Primary
Care Trust (PCT).

3.3 The development of this service has meant that Cambridge has very good patient
registration levels amongst this client group. A review of the service was
conducted in August 2007. The review involved extensive consultation with

patients and stakeholders. A report detailing the findings was published in January

2008. The patient consultation revealed that: in the event of services not being
available at the Access Surgery:

Report Page No: 1 Page 245



3.4

3.5

3.6

3.7

3.8

3.9

3.10

21% reported that they would not access health care at all

26 % reported that they would attend accident and emergency services

49% reported that they would access other GP services but many drew attention
to the difficulty of doing this in practice. Reasons cited were finding it difficult to
maintain clinical relationships and being declined registration.

Patients also observed that they were likely to be more ill before they sought
treatment or were able to access health care

An additional aspect to the development of the service at Newmarket Road was
that other homelessness services were co-located on site and the stakeholder
respondents to the review concluded that this provided ‘an essential link between
health and other services’

The Access Surgery currently provides the full range of primary care services and
a number of additional services, tailored to the needs of the homeless client
group. These include joint drug treatment clinics and joint alcohol treatment
clinics (both involving the current provider of adult substance misuse treatment in
Cambridgeshire), weekly in-house appointments with a psychiatrist and practice
nurse outreach clinics at Jimmy’s Night Shelter, Wintercomfort and two main
homeless hostels in Cambridge. Surgery staff are also actively involved with the
Sex Workers Advisory Network (SWAN), which is working, to promote safe sex
and address the health and social needs of street based sex workers in
Cambridge.

The surgery has adjusted its clinical focus to provide care for medical problems
more frequently found in the homeless client group, for example those related to
mental health, substance misuse, alcohol, sexually transmitted diseases and
blood borne virus infections

It also seeks out patients in need of care (for example, substance misusing
patients needing immunisation against hepatitis B, patients with asthma in need of
a medication review) through a continuous audit process.

The outreach service offers health promotional advice and immunisations and
GPs and nurses at the surgery have developed specialist knowledge in substance
and alcohol misuse (The surgery manages 60 of its patients with substance
misuse problems in-house) and liaise closely with the Alcohol Community
Psychiatric Nurse who is part of the Cambridge Street Mental Health Outreach
Team and also based on site at the surgery premises.

In spite of intensive intervention and (apparently) easy access to health care at
the surgery, the patient group suffers an excess morbidity and mortality related to
drugs, liver/gastrointestinal disease often secondary to alcohol problems, mental
health problems, infections (often related to drug use and often involving long
admissions to hospital and sometimes death). Patients are often ‘frequent
attenders’ at Addenbrookes hospital.

There is a need to further the development of a holistic package of health care
services at Cambridge Access Surgery. The City Council is working closely with
the surgery to develop and enhance the service offered to homeless people at
125 Newmarket Road. As part of this plan, a significant upgrade to the building is
required to ensure that patient consultancy rooms meet clinical standards, to
upgrade the information technology services within the building to improve

Report Page No: 2 Page 246



3.11

3.12

services to patients and to refurbish the building throughout for the first time in the
8 years since the City Council took on the ownership of the property.

Contained within the lease to the PCT is a requirement for the City Council to set
aside funds to conduct structural repairs to the building and for the PCT to
manage internal refurbishments and repairs. However, sufficient funds have not
been available for the PCT to do this. The Council currently has a repairs and
renewal fund of £213,000 for the building and a recent assessment of
requirements to 2020 showed that only £43,000 was required. Members are,
therefore, asked to consider whether up to £100,000 could be released from the
repairs and renewal fund for the building upgrade to take place

The grant would ensure that the building is fit for purpose to deliver enhanced
health care with services expanding to include:

e Enhanced substance misuse, mental health and alcohol treatments
e Improved access to dental services foot care and eye tests
¢ In house management and treatment of Hepatitis C

4. Implications

(a)

(b)

()

(d)

(e)

(f)

Financial Implications
The financial implications for the Council are detailed at 3.11 above

Staffing Implications
None

Equal Opportunities Implications

The measures proposed in this report will increase access to health care services
for a range of vulnerable client groups who have experience of homelessness. As
the building works will facilitate an expansion of services to these groups no
Equalities Impact Assessment has been undertaken.

Environmental Implications

These proposals have a +L (low positive) climate change impact. The
refurbishment works will be carried out via the normal City Council tendering
process and, as such, the works will need to meet the Council’s regular
environmental standards. The building works themselves involve only minor
improvements in relation to energy efficiency.

Consultation
Cambridge Access Surgery patients have been consulted on both service
adjustments and building refurbishment via two consultation workshops.
Stakeholders will be consulted on final draft proposals before work begins.

Community Safety
There are no direct implications in relation to these proposals, other than
improved CCTYV provision on site, but it is hoped that more patients / service users
will be accessing a greater range of effective treatments and that, this, in turn will
have a positive impact on levels of anti-social behaviour and community safety in
general. CCTV

Report Page No: 3 Page 247



5. Background papers

These background papers were used in the preparation of this report:

Cambridge Access Surgery — vision and transformation document
Cambridge Access Surgery — service review January 2008

6. Appendices
None

7. Inspection of papers

To inspect the background papers or if you have a query on the report
please contact:

Author’'s Name: David Greening
Author’s Phone Number: 01223 - 457997
Author’s Email: david.greening@cambridge.gov.uk

Report Page No: 4 Page 248



cAMBRIDGE ciTy councie Agenda ltem 15c¢

Record of Executive Decision

RECOMMENDATION TO BUY BACK A DWELLING

Decision of: Councillor Kevin Price,
Executive Councillor for Housing

Reference: 14/URGENCY/CCS/11

Date of Recorded

decision: on:

12/12/14 12/12/14

Decision Type: Non Key

Matter for
Decision:

Why the
decision had to
be made (and
any alternative
options):

The Executive
Councillor’s
decision(s):

The acquisition of dwelling in the city, in line with the
HRA Acquisition and Disposal Policy. In this instance
the property is an ex-Council dwelling that was
previously sold under the Right to Buy, but prior to
the point at which the Right of First refusal legislation
came into force.

If the Council were to purchase the property now, it
could save the Council having to meet the additional
costs associated with a compulsory purchase (if the
property is the main residence of the new owner) at a
later date.

e That the Council, following an approach by the
owner, buy back the ex-Council flat at 10 Ventress
Close, previously sold under the Right to Buy in
1970. Although the Right of First Refusal process
is not applicable in this instance, the Council has
been offered the opportunity to take back a
property that sits within a potential future re-
development area. The scheme has been
approvedﬁgrg@oggfigeration for redevelopment as



Reasons for the
decision:

Report:

Scrutiny
consideration:

Conflicts of
interest:

Comments:

part of the 3 Year Rolling Programme.

e The capital cost of the project is £238,365. This
comprises £225,000 agreed market valuation plus
legal and other fees associated with the purchase
totalling £3,365 and works to bring the property up
to a lettable standard at an estimated £10,000.
The project will be funded from the existing
allocation of £663,000 in the Housing Capital
Investment Plan in 2014/15 for the repurchase of
ex-HRA dwellings and Right to Buy receipts.

e To note the revenue implications arising from
bringing this property back into housing stock
(management, repairs and property
improvements) are anticipated to be fully met from
the rental income from the dwelling once let.

As outlined above

A report detailing the background is attached

The Chair and Opposition Spokes were consulted prior
to the action being authorised.

No conflicts of interest were declared by the Executive
Councillor.

This urgent decision will be reported back to the next
Housing Scrutiny Committee on 14 January 2015

Comments were received from the Opposition Spokes
Opposition Spokes — Independent Group. The points
raised were addressed by Officers.

No adverse comments were received.

This urgent decision will be reported back to the next
Housing Scrutiny Committee on 14 January 2015.

Page 250



Page 1 of 12
Project Appraisal and Scrutiny Committee Recommendation

Project Name Recommendation to Buy Back a

Dwelling
Committee Housing Scrutiny
Portfolio Housing
Committee Date
Executive Councillor
Lead Officer Sabrina Walston

The Executive Councillor for Housing is recommended to approve;

e That the Council, following an approach by the owner, buy back
the ex-Council flat at 10 Ventress Close, previously sold under
the Right to Buy in 1970. Although the Right of First Refusal
process is not applicable in this instance, the Council has been
offered the opportunity to take back a property that sits within a
potential future re-development area. The scheme has been
approved for consideration for redevelopment as part of the 3
Year Rolling Programme.

e The capital cost of the project is £238,365. This comprises
£225,000 agreed market valuation plus legal and other fees
associated with the purchase totalling £3,365 and works to bring
the property up to a lettable standard at an estimated £10,000.
The project will be funded from the existing allocation of £663,000
in the Housing Capital Investment Plan in 2014/15 for the
repurchase of ex-HRA dwellings and Right to Buy receipts.

e To note the revenue implications arising from bringing this
property back into housing stock (management, repairs and
property improvements) are anticipated to be fully met from the
rental income from the dwelling once let.

Page 251



Page 2 of 12
1 Summary

1.1 The project

e This report proposes the acquisition of dwelling in the city, in line
with the HRA Acquisition and Disposal Policy. In this instance the
property is an ex-Council dwelling that was previously sold under
the Right to Buy, but prior to the point at which the Right of First
refusal legislation came into force.

e The Housing Act 2004 introduced the ‘Right of First Refusal’
(RFR) which enables local authorities (or other social landlords)
the first opportunity to ‘buy back’ properties being sold by former
tenants who acquired the property under the Right to Buy (RTB).
The Act came into effect on the 18 January 2005. The Council
have 8 weeks to determine whether to enact this right and a
following 12 weeks to complete on the purchase should they opt
to. On this occasion, the owner occupier has approached the
Council directly with a view to the Council re-acquiring the
property.

e The HRA Acquisition and Disposal Policy includes a number of
criteria upon which the acquisition of a dwelling should be
considered, including whether the property meets an identified
need.

1.2 The Property

Property Address 10 Ventress Close
Cambridge
CB1 8QX
(see Appendix B, C)
Property Type Flat
Number of Bedrooms 2
Number of Reception Rooms 1
Garage in Curtilage No

Page 252



1.3 The Criteria

1 Property has significant  disabled

adaptations

2 Property is particularly suitable
disabled adaptation

3  Property has 4 or more bedrooms

4 Property location frees up land or access

or is suitable for future development

5 Interests of Council met by repurchase

with value for money demonstrable

1.4 Target Dates / Deadlines

Date of RFR Contact
Initial voluntary contact from owner
8 Week Deadline for RFR Council Decision

HMT in principle decision to proceed with

re-purchase

Stock condition survey completed
Independent market valuation completed
Latest Completion Date for Purchase
Urgent Decision Circulated

Page 3 of 12

No

for No

No
Yes

Yes

Not applicable
w/c 04/08/14
Not applicable
Yes

17/11/14
13/10/14
Not applicable

1.5 The Cost (*at vendors anticipated Market Value)

Capital Cost

*Purchase Price (Open Market Value)
Stamp Duty

Legal Fees

Other Costs (Valuation)

Decent Homes Works Required to Re-
Let (Estimate)

Total Capital Cost

Page 253

£225,000
£2,250
£1,000
£115

£10,000

£238,365



Capital Cost Funded from:
Funding: Amount:
Reserves £0

Repairs & Renewals £0

Section 106 £0
Borrowing £0

Right to Buy £68.510
Receipts ’
Other £169,855

Total Revenue Cost
Management Costs

Maintenance / Repairs

Major Works / Improvements
(MRA/Depreciation)

Total Revenue Expenditure
Revenue Income (Rent)

Net Revenue Cost / (Surplus)

Page 4 of 12

Details:

Capital Allocation for
Property Buy Back

Per Annum
£470
£750

£1,250
£2,470
(£6,730)
(£4,260)

Capital Project Appraisal and Committee Report

1.6 What is the project?

The project seeks to buy back the ex-council dwelling at 10
Ventress Close, which is a two-bedroom maisonette. The property
was sold under the Right to Buy. The occupier has approached the
Council to enquire whether the Council wishes to buy the property
back. The occupier has requested a quick decision by the Council
prior to putting the property on the open market.

Page 254



Page 5 of 12

1.7 What are the aims & objectives of the project?

“Creating a great place to live, learn and work”

The location of 10 Ventress Close is shown on the attached plan
(Appendix C). No’s 9 — 10a are similar properties 1 is currently
tenanted and in council ownership. Together with the large gardens
it can be seen from the plan that there is redevelopment potential for
the site. The feasibility and viability of the wider redevelopment has
been approved to be considered as part of the 3 Year Rolling
Prgramme.

In the interim, using the property as general needs housing provides
an extra unit of accommodation, where there is currently pressure
on the Housing Register. The location and style of the property
provides a unit of accommodation that would suit a couple or small
family.

1.8 Summarise the major issues for stakeholders & other
departments?

The project requires input from the Estates & Facilities team to
identify the Decent Homes potential investment required. An initial
stock condition survey was undertaken on 17/11/14

Legal are required to undertake and complete on the purchase of
the property, and have already been approached to allocate a
Solicitor to this project, which is expected to have a timeframe of 6
to 12 weeks.

The vendor of the property is anticipating a quick decision and to
receive full market value for the property.

As some the surrounding properties are already in council
ownership, and are let and managed by City Homes, there is not
expected to be any adverse impact for neighbouring residents.

1.9 Summarise key risks associated with the project
Risks:

Page 255



Page 6 of 12
One of the key risks that this project aims to mitigate is avoidance of
the potential to need to acquire the property by compulsory
purchase order at a later date, should the site be earmarked for re-
development. At the compulsory purchase order stage the
transaction would be for market value, plus a home loss payment
(10% of market value) if the property was the owner's main
residence, plus increased fees and any officer time incurred.

Not taking the opportunity to purchase the property at this time may
have a detrimental impact on the time frame of any future re-
development programme in the area.

If the Council were to purchase the property now, it could save the
Council having to meet the additional costs associated with a
compulsory purchase (if the property is the main residence of the
new owner) at a later date.

1.10 Financial implications

The market value of the property provided by Pocock & Shaw in
October 2014 for the Council is £225,000, with the costs of purchase
and of achieving the decent homes standard for letting being a
further £13,365, bringing the total to £238,365.

Financial viability assessments have been carried out, considering
three scenarios. These include:

¢ Rent at Local Housing Allowance level, with 100% funded
through HRA resources (Scenario 1)

¢ Rent at Local Housing Allowance level, with 30% funded
through retained right to buy receipts and 70% HRA resource
(Scenario 2)

e Rent at Target Social Rent level, with 30% funded through
retained right to buy receipts and 70% HRA resource
(Scenario 3)

In all three scenarios, the costs of purchase and making good for re-
letting would be recovered through rental income over a number of
years, after allowing for the ongoing costs of managing and
maintaining the dwelling.

Page 256



Page 7 of 12

However, a decision to let the property at target social rent
(Scenario 3) would result in the authority not realising payback on
its investment for 49 years, which is way outside of the 35 year
maximum payback period desired.

With rent set at the Local Housing Allowance level, the authority
would receive payback in 43 years without the use of right to buy
receipts (Scenario 1), or within 34 years with the use of right to buy
receipts (Scenario 2).

With this in mind, this business case has been prepared and
presented on the basis of charging Local Housing Allowance rent
levels and utilizing right to buy receipts to fund 30% of the purchase.
Sufficient retained right to buy receipts exist to allow this to happen.

1.11 VAT implications

Retention of the property “bought back” in the Housing Revenue
Account, for use as local authority social housing would have no
adverse vat implications.

A decision to make alternative use of the property would require
specific consideration of any potential negative vat implications,
although these would not be anticipated to be significant.

1.12 Other implications

There are no other direct implications associated with this project.

1.13 Estimate of staffing resource required to deliver the project

The Housing Development Officer in the Housing Development
Team, with the support of the Housing Development Manager.

The Business Team have undertaken the initial financial analysis
required to understand the costs associated with buying back the

property.
A Surveyor in the Estates & Facilities Team is required to complete

the initial stock investment survey. This is a one-off visit to the
property plus time to write the report.

Page 257



Page 8 of 12
Legal will be required to undertake the actual buying back of the
property into HRA ownership. It is unclear at this stage how long
this will take, but estimated to be 8-12 weeks.

1.14 Identify any dependencies upon other work or projects

The success of the project in the first instance is the ability of the
Estates & Facilities Team and the City Homes Team to get the
property up to Decent Homes standard and re-let quickly in order to
maximize rental income.

1.15 Background Papers

1 Stock Condition Survey results
2 Initial Property Valuation - Pocock & Shaw — 10" October 2014.

1.16 Inspection of papers

Lead Officer Sabrina Walston
I[:leoad Officer's Phone 01223 457910

Lead Officer's e-mail: sabrina.walston@cambridge.gov.uk

Date prepared:

Page 258



6G¢ abed

Page 9 of 12

Capital Project Appraisal - Capital costs & funding - Profiling Appendix A
2014/15 | 2015116 | 2016/17 | 2017/18 | 2018/19 C ¢
£ £ £ 3 £ omments
Capital Costs
Building contractor / works 10,000
Purchase of property, vehicles, plant & equipment 225,000
Professional / Consultants fees 3,365
Other capital expenditure: 0
Total Capital cost 238,365
Capital Income / Funding
Government Grant
S106 funding
R&R funding
Right to Buy Receipts 68,510
Existing capital programme funding 169,855 Buy Back Allocation
Revenue contributions
Total Income 238,365
Net Capital Bid 0




Page 10 of 12
Appendix B

Photographs of the site —front aspect & aerial:

Page 260



Page 11 of 12
Appendix C

-y P

:.JE‘E type Map Title here Name (compusory)
o7 from Intranat Mapping|

AF-_.- T

i 151 Comorn syt med st St 3014, Oreancs Servwy Licanca Me. 00216730 11,250 & A4

Page 261



Page 12 of 12

Land Registry Title number CB297138

: Crdnance Survey map reference TL4756SE
Official copy of Scale 1:625 enlarged from 1:1250
title p|a n Administrative area Cambridgeshire ;

Cambridge /

Page 262



	Agenda
	4 Minutes
	6 Standard Item: Write Off of Former & Current Tenant Arrears
	7 Housing Revenue Account Rent Setting Policy
	8 2015/16 Housing Revenue Account Budget Setting Report
	9 Housing Portfolio Revenue and Capital Budgets 2015/16 (Estimate) and 2016/17, 2017/18, 2018/19 and 2019/20 (Forecast)
	10 Council Housing at Homerton College
	FINAL Appendix 1 Project Appraisal Homerton
	Homerton 14-085 Design Report low res Pages 43-45

	11 Homelessness Prevention Grants
	Appendix 1_ Homeless Prevention Grant

	12 Local Government Ombudsman Maladministration Finding: Homelessness
	348889 - 14 11 27 final decision_ Appendix

	13 Fundamental Review of the Housing Revenue Account
	15a New Build Budgets
	Briefing note - New Build Budgets

	15b Refurbishment of the Cambridge Access Surgery
	Report 2014_Refurbishement of the Cambridge Access Surgery
	Background paper_ report to Community Services_15.03.12

	15c Recommendation to Buy Back a Dwelling
	Report_Recommendation to Buy Back FINAL- 10 Ventress Close


